VAST A&

EERAMR AR

China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

7
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

A
&

i

B 7R B 5

?

BRIz R AR)

Stock code A X5%: 6166

=

ANNUAL REPORT &%

2020

(RF

)
DS w

7 i

=
X

y AN

%

Vo
A STA AN AVANAN A

N/\E




About us

Founded in June 1995, China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited (referred to as “China VAST Development”,
stock code: 6166.HK) is one of the pioneer providers in the planning, development and operation of large-scale industrial town
projects. Riding on its experience in property development accumulated in the initial stage, China VAST Development was
transformed into a pioneer in new urbanization construction in 2005. The Company has been committed to developing large-
scale industrial town projects in the strategic planning areas under the integration of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei and “Two Horizontal
& Three Vertical Urbanization Plan”, demonstrating its four comparative advantages including: unigue abilities in industrial town
planning, designing & positioning, abilities in infrastructure investment and construction, abilities in marketing & promotion, and
related auxiliary facilities for logistics, residential & commercial properties. Through cooperation with local governments under
long-term agreements, unlike other ordinary property developers, industrial towns are designed to provide a wide spectrum
of comprehensive and professional services for regional industrial development and development in towns, including planning
and designing, industry positioning, land preparation, infrastructure construction, marketing and promotion and related auxiliary
facilities for logistics, residential and commercial properties. Currently, China VAST Development has over 60 subsidiaries including
Langfang VAST Urban Development Co., Ltd., Shijiazhuang Vast Urban Development Co., Ltd., Shijiazhuang Gaocheng Vast Urban
Development Co., Ltd., Ezhou Vast Urban Development Co., Ltd., Wuhan Aviclub Vast Aviation Urban Development Co., Ltd. and
Langfang City Property Development Co., Ltd., all of which are responsible for construction and development service of different
industrial towns. China VAST Development is working together with local government of Langfang and Shijiazhuang of Hebei
province, Ezhou and Wuhan of Hubei province in respect of development of 8 industrial town projects with project planning areas
of approximately 123 sg. km. Focusing on the optimization of infrastructures in the abovementioned regions, transformation of
industry and construction of urbanization as well as building and realizing full integration of working and living communities for its
residents, China VAST Development will spare no effort to become a leading provider and operator of industrial town in China.
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Forward Looking Statements

This annual report includes forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of forward-
looking terminology, including the terms “believe”, “estimate”, “anticipate”, “expect”, “intend”, “may”, “will" or “should” or, in each
case, their negative, or other variations or similar terminology. These forward-looking statements include all matters that are not
historical facts. They appear in a number of places throughout this annual report and include statements regarding our intentions,
beliefs or current expectations concerning, among other things, results of operations, financial condition, liquidity, prospects and
growth strategies of the Group, and the industry in which the Group operates. By their nature, forward-looking statements involve
risks and uncertainties because they relate to events and depend on circumstances that may or may not occur in the future. We
caution you that forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and that our actual results of operations,
financial condition and liquidity, and the development of the industry in which the Group operates may differ materially from
those made in, or suggested by, the forward-looking statements contained in this annual report. In addition, even if our results of
operations, financial condition and liquidity, and the development of the industry in which the Group operates are consistent with
the forward-looking statements contained in this annual report, those results or developments may not be indicative of results or
developments in subsequent periods.
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Financial Highlights
HEREE

(in RMB'000A ¥ T )

Revenue
WA

Gross profit
ER

Profit before tax Profit for the year
RREE AR AR EF 5 F

For the year ended 31 December
BE12 A3 BILEE
2020 2019 Approximate
RMB RMB Change %
AR AR AV 8%
Revenue WA 2,398.6 million B& 2,670.0 million A& -10.2
Gross profit ES 1,672.2 million 5& 1,870.7 million B -10.6
Profit before tax R 75 A A1) 1,203.7 million B8 1,287.1 million & -6.5
Profit for the year RERF 844.6 million §& 828.4 million BE 20
Proposed final dividend per share  E:EARKEIRRE HK$7#%0.18 T HK$#E#0.20 7T -10.0

R EETEERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Financial Highlights
HHEREE

(in RMB'000A E#F )
Segment revenue
DEBA
90.3% 90.7%
RMB2,166.2 million RMB2,421.1 million
AR¥2,166.2E8 AR#2,421.188

FY20 FY19

20 BITRFE 19 BTREFE
RMB2,398.6 million RMB2,670.0 million
AR¥2,398.6658 AR¥2,670.088

8.0%

RMB214.7 million
AR¥214.788 /

&3%-——jr‘—d1L——— 1.4% 1.3%

RMB198.2 million RMB34.2 million RMB34.2 million
AR¥198.2E8 AR¥34.288 ARY34.288

Segment gross profit

2 HPEF

92.5% 97.4%
RMB1,546.1 million RMB1,821.7 million \
AR#1,546.158 AR#1,821.758

FY20
20 BIREE

RMB1,672.2 million
AR¥1,6722858

FY19
19 BIEE

RMB1,870.7 million
AR¥1,870.788

6.3% 1.5% —
RMB105.7 million RMB28.8 million K
AR¥105.788 AR¥28.8HE
1.1%
1.2% RMB20.2 million
RMB20.4 million ARH20.288
AR¥204HE
@ Industrial town development @ Property development @ Property leasing
EXMHEER YEERE YERE
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Chairman’s Statement

FEHE
Dear Shareholders,

With the coming of spring, all is revitalized. We bid farewell to the
unforgettable 2020 and opened a beautiful gradually-unfolding picture which is
full of vitality and hope. At this new starting point, may | take this opportunity
to express our greatest gratitude and best wishes to all shareholders,
investors and friends on behalf of the board of directors of the Company and
myself!

It is very special though it seems very common. It is very difficult yet it
looks pretty easy. 2020 is an extraordinary year, as COVID-19 has brought
increasing instabilities and uncertainties to the global economy which has
been under "major lockdown”, severely hindering the development of China’s
economy. Notwithstanding such macro background and numerous adverse
effects, China VAST Development showed great perseverance and overcame
difficulties all the way. We worked hard to make new breakthroughs in the
face of headwinds and sought development under crisis and challenges. For
the year ended 31 December 2020, the operating revenue of the Company
reached RMB2,398.6 million, with a gross profit of RMB1,672.2 million, net
profit of RMB844.6 million and basic earnings per share of RMBO0.51.

During the year, we overcame various difficulties and made
continuous breakthroughs. Facing various challenges brought by
COVID-19, the Company, with all-round planning and precise policy
execution, comprehensively promoted the orderly resumption of work
and production of its projects in the new norm of epidemic prevention and
control, and achieved good results in balance of both epidemic control
and project development. The construction of Longhe Center (gg/a/
L) in Longhe Park, Langfang has commenced; the landmark project, Vast
Longhe Conference Center (RZ&EA &+ 1), has been in good progress
efficiently; the environment at Longhe Central Park (§g/7 /s A &) has been
continuously refined with facilities such as various road traffic facilities, urban
underground pipe network and power distribution station getting improved,
creating a more safe, convenient and efficient living environment; the Tongan
Street, Sports Park and New Yizhong Park Gfi—/2AE) in Gaocheng Park,
Shijiazhuang were completed, inspected and have been put into use. Positive
progress has also been made in the construction of infrastructure projects in
Parks such as Luancheng, Ezhou and Wuhan.

B R 2R E E T IREE AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

K%ﬂ | REEE - BREH - #2020

C IRFE AR RS EREF BB EERIRE
Eﬁ o VHERTER  BAMRRKRARERSY
NEEARE  MERER  REE SRR
BUARFIF PR

EUSERTE  ROBSEEFE - 2020F 21k
TER—F - FIEHARIBEARRITE R
TERETEEARES - 2IREOEE A KEH ]
AREE - AR BB RE AR - mHE
B AEESMELTANZE  dRARERMN
BRTKRZE  —BUWB R WIEER T
Hﬁﬁ$ﬁaﬁ%vﬁﬁ%%ﬁ$ﬁiﬁﬁoﬁ
F2020F12A31BIEFE - ARIEERAEE
AEMZ%BBﬁ%ﬁ:Eﬁ%ﬂAEMLmzz
BEL FHEARES4MM6EET  SREX
BRARKEQ.51TT »

F > ﬁﬂﬂ§§ﬁ1$ﬁ§W°ﬁﬁ%ﬁE
HRMEZ RS - AESERME - BEESE
Eﬁ%bfl%%¢iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁlﬁ
= MBI T EEREEERERI BTN WS
SR ] o ERETEEIA = [ B AP OD RUED AR R - HAR
MIE B ARG FET O RS - B R
BEIRSRTETRA - SIER MR - MW T
ER EEMSEHEMNTE  HETEMNES
FEREANEERE  AXTERERBLE
BERE PR EETRIKIIZAGER -
gk~ SR - BRUREE R AR MEIE B RIS

TSR

BE—-
==
&l



Chairman’s Statement

EEEE

During the year, we stuck to the right path and kept innovation
and steady expansion. The Company has made every effort to overcome
the impact of the epidemic and continuously optimized various marketing
channels such as attracting investments from central enterprises, existing
investors, exhibitions and Cloud Merchants. The efficiency of investment
attraction has been effectively improved with the combination of these
precise fund attraction efforts, which has reached a new level. The
establishment of a series of stimulus projects such as the Cloud Computing
Data Center for Intelligent Integrated Application Service, Cloud Computing
Data Center for Intelligent Technology and Cloud Computing Data Center for
Intelligent Industry Integration and Innovation has brought strong impetus
for realizing the replacement of old growth drivers with new and high-quality
economic development in the region.

During the year, we united as one, pooled our strength and worked
hard. The brand influence and popularity of the Company has significantly
enhanced as we actively promoted development of the industry through
consultation and joint construction leveraging on the international high-end
event platform. As a platinum member of the Opening Ceremony of China
International Import Expo cum Honggiao International Economic Forum,
we participated deeply in the Third China International Import Expo and co-
hosted The 3rd IASC International Aviation Supply Chain Leadership Summit
with other institutions from China, France, Britain and Germany, which
provided new ideas for the recovery of global aviation industry and the
development of airport industry in the post-epidemic era. We attended the
2020 China Langfang International Economic and Trade Fair, hosted the Third
China International Airport Economic Development High-end Conference (5
= ET EE B ER e A 3 R 2 im &) and made contribution to organization
of China’s first international, worldwide and comprehensive economic and
trade fair to be opened online thoroughly since the outbreak of COVID-19; we
also took part in all the events of the 2020 Boao Asia Forum in the capacity of
a platinum partner of it to continuously deepen exchanges and cooperation
in the industry and facilitate win-win development; actively participated in
China Langfang (Beijing) Global Investment Conference (1 E-Erth (b =) &
FRIEE A=) as the global investment promotion strategic partner of Langfang
Airport Economic Zone of Beijing Daxing International Airport to help Langfang
attract investment and talents.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFEE

During the year, we lived up to our original aspiration and
acted responsibly. With a strong sense of home and country in mind
and shouldering corporate responsibility without hesitation, China Vast
Development used love as a shield to resolutely fight against the epidemic
to the end and made great contribution to ensuring economic and social
stability and development with concrete actions. In 2020, in the face of
serious shortage of epidemic prevention supplies, by fully integrating global
industrial resources, the Company urgently purchased more than 120,000
pieces/sets of medical supplies and donated to the frontier of the fight
against the epidemic, and made oriented donation of 30 tons of organic
vegetables and 35,000 jin of rice with accumulated donations and materials
amounted to more than RMB5.2 million, which provided strong support for
local governments to fight against the epidemic and promote the resumption
of work and production. As the global epidemic continues to spread, the
Company made a further donation of more than 20,000 pieces of medical
supplies to foreign offices and the Paris Regional Council in France. The
Company was successively awarded as “Advanced Private Enterprise in
Fighting against COVID-19 Epidemic (B H B A Z B LER LT )" by
All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce and “Member Enterprise with
Outstanding Contribution to the Fight against COVID-19 Epidemic (312 #17s fit
KEBRHESEE S B M%) by China Real Estate Chamber of Commerce.

In 2020, China Vast Development fought its way through brambles and thorns,
remained unshakable and even firm through self-improvement and strived to
forge ahead in reform and innovation. It ranked top three in the “2020 China
Top 50 Industrial Park Operators (20204 [ B & % &2 38 2 755038)" and
won the honor of “Civilization Unit in Hebei Province ([4k% X A8 A7)" and
“Advanced Collective in Promoting High-quality Development in Anci District,
Langfang (BsLr 1 22 R (& B = 'S 8 3[R St & 48)" as well as the "Hong Kong
Top 100 Excellent Brand Award (% 10058 £ # s 2 48)". The Longhe Park,
which is operated by the Company, won honors such as the first prize of “2020
China New Urban List (20204 & Fr BI85 [ £%)", “Top Ten Park Operation
Service Benchmark (+A R @& & R# 12" and "Advance Development
Zone for Utilization of Foreign Investment (At FIFBSNE 5 R EER)".

R EETEERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Chairman’s Statement

EFEE

In 2021, the world’s economic situation is still complicated and we will seek
development with long-term vision, constantly explore new ways of industrial
operation and improve the layout of industry in depth. We will deepen
our development in Longhe Park, advance the construction of important
projects in other cities in the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region and the Yangtze
River Economic Belt. We will promote the deep integration of industrial and
urban development, build new industrial towns that are suitable for living and
working, and create new poles of growth for high-quality regional economic

development.

Only if we have a direction in mind, can we go far. Standing on a new stage
of development and sticking to new concept of development, let us keep
the spirit of struggle, forge ahead in spite of difficulties, with sweat and hard
work, tenacity and persistence, to create better days together.

Wang Jianjun
Chairman
31 March 2021, Hong Kong
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE D

Financial Review

Revenue

Our revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020 was substantially
generated from: (i) land development projects/arrangements, representing
our fee income derived from development of industrial town projects; (i) the
sales of properties; and (iii) property leasing. The table below sets forth a
breakdown of our revenue:

g E)

A

HMBZE2020F12A31H EFEHRAEZER
B (O)LFEEE T ERMEREET
IR BERWA  (WREE  (i)EEE -
RGO AR

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31MALEE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETF T

Fee and service income relating to/arising from THbFIE B E S THHERE AR

land development projects / arrangements BRASU A 2,166,174 2,421,131
Revenue from the sales of properties LIES SN 198,190 214,699
Revenue from property leasing WERERA 34,264 34,177
2,398,628 2,670,007

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to
RMB2,398.6 million, representing a decrease of 10.2% as compared with
RMB2,670.0 million for the same period in 2019. The decrease in revenue
was mainly because revenue from land development projects decreased as
compared with that generated in the same period last year.

As for the land development business, we recorded a revenue of RMB2,166.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2020, representing a decrease of
10.5% as compared with RMB2,421.1 million for the same period in 2019.

B R 2R E E T IREE AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE D

For the year ended 31 December 2020, an aggregate of 600,081 sg.m. of
land in Longhe Park was sold by the relevant local government at a total land
premium of RMB3,764.4 million. Compared with the aggregate of 694,082
sg.m. of land in Longhe Park sold by the local government at a total land
premium of RMB4,422.0 million for the same period in 2019, there were
decreases in the area of land sold and the land premium during the period.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, we recorded a total fee income
of RMB1,969.3 million from Longhe Park, representing an decrease of
RMB122.0 million as compared with RMB2,091.3 million for the same period
in 2019. The fee income recognised from sales of land was RMB1,732.5
million as compared with RMB1,945.8 million for the same period in 2019,
land preparation service income received from a successful land buyer was
RMB200.0 million and other comprehensive services fee income was RMB36.8
million (for the same period in 2019: RMB53.7 million). Other comprehensive
services fee income was calculated and charged with reference to a certain
proportion to the tax imposed on Longhe Park resident enterprises during the
year.

In addition, we also recorded revenue from land development projects in
other parks. For Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park, the
Group recognized a revenue of RMB41.9 million from industrial development
service, while a revenue of RMB25.8 million and RMB18.6 million from land
preparation and investment services and industrial development service
in this park was recognised respectively in the same period of 2019. For
Shijiazhuang Gaocheng VAST Industrial Town Park, the Group recognized a
revenue of RMB76.9 million from land preparation and investment services,
representing a decrease of 13.8% as compared with RMB89.2 million of the
same period in 2019. For VAST Ezhou Industrial Park, the Group recognized
a revenue of RMB23.6 million and RMB38.2 million from land preparation
and investment services and industrial development service respectively,
while a revenue of RMB174.1 million from land preparation and investment
services in this park was recognised in the same period of 2019. The revenue
from land preparation and investment services of the above three parks
was calculated under the cost-plus method, and the revenue from industrial
development service was calculated according to a certain percentage of the
amount of investment in additional park establishment. The decrease in the
revenue of the above three parks was due to the reduced investments for
balanced development in these parks.

For the property development business, we recorded a revenue from the
sales of properties of RMB198.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2020,
representing a decrease of RMB16.5 million from RMB214.7 million for the
same period in 2019. We delivered the area of residential, commercial and
industrial properties of 17,038 sg.m. for the year, representing an increase
of 2,111 sg.m. as compared with the area of property delivered of 14,927
sg.m. for the same period in 2019. As a result, the revenue from residential,
commercial and industrial properties increased by RMB30.3 million for
the year. However, revenue from the sales of car park units decreased by
RMB55.0 million in the year because less car park units in the project ancillary
area were delivered in the year. Therefore, overall revenue from the sales of
properties decreased in the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE D

Cost of Sales and Services

Our cost of sales and services consists of (i) cost of land development
arrangements, (i) cost of properties sold, and (iii) direct operating expenses
for property leasing. For the year ended 31 December 2020, our cost of sales
and services amounted to RMB726.4 million, representing a decrease of 9.1%
as compared with RMB799.3 million for the same period in 2019, which was
primarily due to the decrease in the cost of sales of properties during the
year.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the year ended 31 December 2020, our gross profit amounted to
RMB1,672.2 million, which represented a decrease of 10.6% as compared
with RMB1,870.7 million for the same period in 2019. Our gross profit margin
decreased from 70.1% in 2019 to 69.7% for the year.

Other Income

Other income increased from RMB160.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to RMB201.3 million for the year, representing an increase of
RMBA40.4 million, which was primarily because the revenue from government
grants increased by RMB11.2 million and the revenue from provision of
infrastructure services increased by RMB11.6 million.

Other Gains and Losses

Other gains for the year were net gains of RMB115.9 million, mainly
attributable to the exchange gains of RMB104.7 million recorded during the
year.

Selling and Marketing Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2020, our selling and marketing expenses
amounted to RMB87.9 million, representing an increase of 43.4% as
compared with RMB61.3 million for the same period in 2019. Such increase
was primarily due to the increase in advertising costs as a result of our
strengthened efforts in marketing and promotion and publicity in 2020.

Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2020, our administrative expenses
amounted to RMB322.9 million, representing a decrease of 11.9% as
compared with RMB366.6 million for the same period in 2019, primarily due to
the decrease in staff costs because of the decrease in number of employees
and the social security relief and deferred payment policies implemented by
the country due to the COVID-19 epidemic.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE D

Finance Costs

Finance costs increased by RMB82.7 million (or 32.3%) from RMB256.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to RMB339.1 million for the year.
The increase in finance cost was mainly due to an increase in our average
outstanding balance of bank loans and other facilities.

Profit Before Tax

Profit before tax decreased by RMB83.4 million (or 6.5%) from RMB1,287.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to RMB1,203.7 million for the
year.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense decreased by RMB99.6 million (or 21.7%) from RMBA458.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to RMB359.1 million for the
year, which was primarily due to a decrease in profit before tax and deferred
tax for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Profit

As a result of the foregoing factors, the net profit of the Group increased
by RMB16.2 million (or 2.0%) from RMB828.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to RMB844.6 million for the year.

Earnings Per Share

The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
RMBO0.51, while the diluted earnings per share was RMBO0.49 (for the year
ended 31 December 2019: basic earnings per share was RMB0.50 and diluted
earnings per share was RMB0.48). The above basic and diluted earnings per
share were calculated based on the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 1,651,237,000 shares and 1,749,474,000 shares, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE D

Cash Position

Cash and cash equivalents decreased by RMB50.7 million from RMB697.0
million as at 31 December 2019 to RMB646.3 million as at 31 December
2020, principally attributable to: (i) the net cash inflow of RMB847.6 million
from our operating activities; (i) the net cash outflow of RMB121.7 million
from investing activities, which was primarily a result of net placement of
RMB221.0 million in restricted bank deposits, the payment of RMB119.6
million to purchase and build self-use assets and investment properties and
the payment of RMB66.1 million to acquire two subsidiaries, and partially
offset by the net withdrawal of deposits with original maturity over three
months of RMB252.6 million; (i) the net cash outflow of RMB758.9 million
from financing activities, which was primarily due to the repayment of bank
loans and other loans of RMB2,853.8 million, the payment of interests of
RMB576.1 million and the payment of dividends of RMB287.0 million, and
partially offset by new bank loans and other loans of RMB2,964.6 million.

Financial Assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL increased from RMB149.2 million as at 31 December
2019 to RMB154.7 million as at 31 December 2020, which was mainly due to
investments in limited partnership funds.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables increased from RMB2,712.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to RMB2,755.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2020, mainly due to the increase in trade receivables from land development
projects, comprising of RMB564.7 million from Longhe Park, RMB463.5
million from VAST Ezhou Industrial Park, RMB514.8 million from Shijiazhuang
Gaocheng VAST Industrial Town Park, RMB1,137.1 million from Shijiazhuang
General Aviation Industrial Town Park and RMB59.5 million from Wuhan
Development Zone General Aviation Industry Comprehensive Demonstration
Zone. As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of trade receivables at FVTPL
decreased by RMB115.7 million, mainly due to a discounted change in the
expected repayment plan.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE D

Prepayments and Other Receivables

Prepayments and other receivables decreased from RMB646.3 million as
at 31 December 2019 to RMB370.8 million as at 31 December 2020, which
was mainly due to the settlement of receivables of RMB113.4 million from
two subsidiaries disposed last year, and the transfer of prepayment for
construction projects of RMB78.2 million.

In Progress Land Development Arrangements

In progress land development arrangements increased from RMB4,127.3
million as at 31 December 2019 to RMB4,445.0 million as at 31 December
2020. Such increase was mainly due to the investment in newly-added land
development in Longhe Park for the year.

Properties under Development for Sale

Properties under development for sale increased from RMB1,519.5 million
as at 31 December 2019 to RMB1,797.2 million as at 31 December 2020.
Such increase was mainly due to the fact that Foxconn City Phase Ill, Longhe
Center (formerly known as Hongtai Commerce Plaza) Phase |, Electronic
Information Industrial Park Phase Il and Wuhan Hangyaohong Technology
Project obtained construction work commencement permits and carried out
construction works during the year.

Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables decreased from RMB1,052.6 million as at 31
December 2019 to RMB927.7 million as at 31 December 2020, which was
mainly attributable to a decrease of RMB115.3 million in trade payables.

Bank and Other Borrowings

The Group's total bank and other borrowings increased by RMB121.3 million
from RMBA4,586.0 million as at 31 December 2019 to RMB4,707.3 million as
at 31 December 2020. Secured or guaranteed bank loans increased from
RMB3,118.3 million as at 31 December 2019 to RMB4,034.5 million as at 31
December 2020, while other secured or guaranteed loans decreased from
RMB1,467.7 million as at 31 December 2019 to RMB672.8 million as at 31
December 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE D

Convertible Bonds, Notes and Senior Notes

The Group issued convertible bonds and notes amounting to USD50 million
and USD110 million respectively on 9 January 2018. The terms of convertible
bonds and notes are 3 years and 1 to 3 years respectively. The coupon rates
of both are 6% with interest payable semi-annually. The convertible bonds
can be converted to the shares of the Company at the initial conversion price
of HKD4.75 per share before maturity. The conversion price is subject to
adjustments according to terms of the agreement. The prevailing conversion
price as at 31 December 2020 is HK$3.97 per share. As of 31 December 2020,
the Group redeemed notes of USDé4 million.

On 8 January 2021, the Company and the initial investor entered into the
deed of amendment to extend the maturity date of the convertible bonds and
the remaining outstanding notes to 10 January 2022 and amend certain terms
of the subscription agreement, the terms of the convertible bonds and the
notes, and other relevant transaction documents. The conversion price of the
convertible bonds was revised to HK$3.54 per share (subject to adjustment).

Additionally, the Group issued senior notes of USD180 million with a term
of two years on 28 June 2019. The coupon rate is 13% with interest payable
semi-annually.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group provided guarantees to banks which granted mortgage loans
to certain purchasers of the Group's properties. As at 31 December 2020,
such mortgage loan guarantees amounted to RMB728.0 million compared
to RMB954.2 million as at 31 December 2019. Such guarantees would be
released upon the earlier of: (i) the transfer of the relevant building ownership
certificates to the purchasers; or (i) the satisfaction of obligations under the
mortgage loans by the purchasers.

Pledge of Assets

Certain assets of the Group have been pledged to the banks, trust fund
companies and other financial institutions to secure certain loans and
banking facilities granted to the Group.
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EEENWE D

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's principal financial instruments are comprised of bank and other
borrowings, convertible bonds, notes, senior notes and bank balances and
cash. The main objective for the use of these financial instruments is to
maintain a continuity of funding and flexibility at the lowest cost possible.

As at 31 December 2020, bank balances and cash and restricted bank
deposits were RMB1,256.1 million, among which RMB1,210.0 million was
denominated in Renminbi, RMB41.8 million in USD and RMB4.3 million in HKD.

As at 31 December 2020, our total bank and other borrowings were
RMB4,707.3 million, among which RMB4,693.4 million was denominated in
Renminbi and RMB13.9 million in HKD, with maturity terms as follows:
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Among the RMB4,707.3 million of bank and other borrowings, RMB1,430.8
million was borrowed at a floating rate, whereas RMB3,276.5 million was
borrowed at a fixed rate.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's gearing ratio (total liabilities to total
assets) was 57.7%. The Group will continue to adopt more conservative
financial policies and control its gearing ratio at the industry average level.
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Key Risks and Uncertainties Facing by the Group

The followings are part of the key risks and uncertainties identified by the
Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown
below which are not known to the Group or which may not be material now
but could turn out to be material in the future.

We do not decide on the exact timing of the sale of land use rights in the
industrial town projects we develop; the selling price of such land use rights
is subject to market factors through the public auction, tender or listing for
sale process; and the percentage of fees payable to us may fluctuate due to
changes in the relevant law, regulation or government policy.

The demolition of buildings and relocation of incumbent residents and
businesses on the sites where our industrial town projects are built may
result in delays in our development of projects and/or increase in our
operating costs.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group's business is principally denominated in Renminbi. Apart from
certain cash, bank deposits, amounts due from/to related parties, bank
and other borrowings, convertible bonds, notes and senior notes which are
denominated in foreign currencies, the Group is not subject to any significant
risk from fluctuations in exchange rates. No currency hedging arrangement
had been made by the Group during the year. The Group will closely monitor
and manage its exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates.

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposals

The Group entered into equity transfer agreements with independent third
parties in respect of the acquisition of the entire equity of two subsidiaries
at a total consideration of RMB77.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. In addition, the Group entered into equity transfer agreements with
independent third parties in respect of the disposals of the entire equity of
four subsidiaries at a total consideration of RMB9.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2020. The Group recognised a gain from such disposals of
RMB2.1 million in the profit and loss.

Saved as disclosed above, the Group did not make any material acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies and significant
investments during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Employee Remuneration and Relations

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 838 employees (31
December 2019: 938 employees). The Group provides employees with
competitive remuneration and benefits, and the remuneration policy will be
reviewed on a regular basis based on the performance and contribution of
the employees and the industry remuneration level. In addition, the Group
provides various training courses to enhance the employees’ skills and
capabilities in all aspects.
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Business Review

Industrial Town Development

We are one of the pioneer service providers in planning, development and
operation of large-scale industrial towns in China. Our primary business
focus, being industrial town development business, significantly differentiates
us from a traditional property developer. When we commenced development
of Longhe Park, our first industrial town project, in 2005, there were very few
market players in the PRC offering a similar range of services, and industrial
towns only became a development model to drive China’s urbanization
process in the recent decade. We currently co-operate with certain local
governments in Hebei and Hubei provinces in relation to development of
eight industrial town projects. As one of the pilot models to drive China’s
urbanization process, an industrial town typically hosts a cluster of
enterprises with a selected common industry theme, together with relevant
supporting facilities such as logistics, residential and commercial properties,
creating a fully integrated working and living community for its residents. In
addition to our industrial town development business, we develop and invest
in residential, commercial and industrial properties in both our industrial
town projects and other areas in Hebei province, which accounted for only
a portion of our total revenue. As a key part of our industrial town business,
we (i) plan and design industrial towns and position industrial towns with
selected industry themes, (i) convert land planned for development into land
suitable for sale by the local governments in accordance with our cooperation
agreements, (iii) promote the sale of such land to attract target customers to
set up businesses in our industrial town projects, and (iv) provide follow-up
management and operation services to enterprise customers in our industrial
towns.

With the expansion and diversification of the business of the Company,
we currently provide planning, development and/or operation services in
eight different-themed industrial town projects, consisting of: (i) Longhe
Park; (i) Longhe Resort; (iii) Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park, (iv)
Yongqing VAST Industrial Town Park, all of which are located in Langfang City,
Hebei province; (v) Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park; (vi)
Shijiazhuang Gaocheng Vast Industrial Town Park, both of which are located
in Shijiazhuang City, Hebei province; (vii) VAST Ezhou Industrial Park in Ezhou
City, Hubei province; and (viii) Wuhan Development Zone General Aviation
Industry Comprehensive Demonstration Zone in Wuhan City, Hubei province.
After over 10 years of development, Longhe Park is progressing towards its
maturity in a fast development stage. The remaining seven projects are in the
early stage of planning and development. However, with the improvement
and betterment of the terms of cooperation agreements signed between
the Company and local governments, some of our cooperation agreements
enable us to record revenue in the early stage of development, thus providing
support for developing project on a rolling basis.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDWN

The following map shows the locations of the cities where our industrial town LA T Bl 88 R B PIR AR T 4E 18 B BT i RIfL
projects situated. B

Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Integration
and Development
SREBRRE

C?Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone
v RIIKES

20 B R ZRE ¥ TR E R A R A F) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Langfang City, Hebei Province
AL E BT

TR TE/AETEEREERE L
From Longhe Park/Longhe Resort

Al R EHERKS

@ Airport #45

@ Port &Rl

) High-speed
@ istepesd o
G

Beijing
b3
Beijing Capital International Airport

LS AER S 1\

Guangyang Technology
Regeneration Park:

Longhe Park and
Longhe Resort,
Langfang
EABHER
BRI

ERE

To Beijing Capital International Airport 70km/A 82
AEREEEEEES

To Tianjin Binhai International Airport 70km/A 2
AT R B 5

To Beijing Daxing International Airport 26km/A 2
RIEREE

To Tianjin Port 100km/A 2
EGNEELE

From Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park

AT R EHME RS

To Beijing Capital International Airport 70km/AE
AIEREE SRS

To Tianjin Binhai International Airport 75km/n B
AL RA LB R 5

To Beijing Daxing International Airport 15km/~ &
RIEREE

To Tianjin Port 105km/A B

Geographical Advantage

economic growth regions in China

— Located in the central east of Hebei Province, with “Beijing, the capital,

lying in the north and Tianjin in the east”.

— Eight expressways, five major railway lines as well as eleven national
and provincial highways crossing this area.

— Beijing Daxing International Airport was open to aviation in 2019.

e Driven by the national strategy of “Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Integration and
Development Plan”, Langfang is well positioned to seize opportunities

arising from the economic growth of Beijing

— As a result of the significant increase in the lands and properties price in
Beijing, population and certain industries have migrated to surrounding

areas.

— The coordination development in the region requires the integration
planning and construction in respect of transportation, public service

and environmental protection.

— The strategic location of Langfang enables itself to capture opportunities
arising from the economic growth of Beijing. Coupled with the
integration development of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei, Langfang is expected
to further its economic growth, land appreciation and property price

increase.

e Praised as “the Pearl of the Corridor between Beijing and Tianjin”,
Langfang is situated in the Bohai Coastal Metropolises, one of the major

BUES

BRE|

BiEREEEFILM o

BREROEE

BRIEER o

ERYIEER LK -
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Shijiazhuang City, Hebei Province
ALEBARET

o EXA

Zhangjlakou

Pl
Beijing

Tianjin

AN
AR ® Cangzhou
Shijiazhuang

Hengshui

ma
Xingtai

Geographical Advantage

¢ Shijiazhuang City is the capital of Hebei Province and one of the important
and major cities in Beijing and Tianjin region, as well as the political,
economic, technological, financial, cultural and information center of
Hebei Province. Shijiazhuang City is a city where the implementation of its
coastal open-door policy and open financial market was approved by the
State Council.

o Shijiazhuang is the transport hub of the nation-wide rail transport in which
four railways lines, namely Beijing-Guangzhou, Shijiazhuang-Taiyuan,
Shijiazhuang- Dezhou and Shuo Huang, converges. Expressways such
as Beijing-Shijiazhuang, Shijiazhuang-Taiyuan, Huanghua-Shijiazhuang,
Shijiazhuang-Linzhang intersects at Shijiazhuang City with an aggregate
mileage of highway of over 6,400 kilometers.

o Shijiazhuang clearly puts forward to develop into the second major city in
Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei area and the economic center of the southern region.
It strives to become a new economic growth pole of the Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei region.

R EETEERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

. A
Chengde

Tangshan
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Ezhou City, Hubei Province
BN

Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone
RIBESR

(O 5

Zhijiang

Geographical Advantage

Ezhou City is located in the eastern part of Hubei Province and the south
bank at the mid-stream of Yangtze River. Neighbouring with Wuhan in the
west, Ezhou City is the core city of the Wuhan Metropolises, the major city
of the Edong Cities, the regional logistic center and the transport hub.

Ezhou City is an important node of the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone.
As the new Reform and Opening of the PRC transits to the development
strategy of implementation of opening of new regions, the Yangtze River
Delta Economic Zone, Ezhou City can leverage on the Golden waterway to
promote the development of the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone and
thus creating a new Chinese economic support belt.

The construction of Hubei Province made Wuhan as the center and linked
other cities like Ezhou, Huangshi, Huanggang in a radial intercity transport
network. The fastest train from Wuhan Station to Ezhou Station only takes
22 minutes.

The Shun Feng airport locating in Ezhou specializes in high-end express
delivery on an all-cargo basis. The airport will become the fourth in the
world and the first in Asia cargo airport distributing center, which is only
20 kilometers from the park.

:/
Hongh! cmb. =\
!
“y

BluES

&

Huanggang

& &h
Xvanmng Huangshi

o SPNTRI ML B RER - RITPIFERF - @
BEOE - REUER T B A T A SEER R T
BROET - RIFIERP OMEEIRAR -

e INTBREILELSTNEZHTY @ RIK
BEEATEFT — R ERNEE EENE
EFRA B  REESKERSRT
RSB E - miTER RSB ES -

s MAEZRURERFL - BN - &
A FHE S W R 2R - R
TEESBIN U N R IRIETF 22088 o

o JEZHISEITEMN - EFIERSHRIENE
EEEM  ZHSEKARRED - FME
—HEEEBEATL - HERE0NE
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Wuhan City, Hubei Province
LB ERED

Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone
RIBER

Zhulang

“,\/‘EEL@

Shishou

Geographical Advantage

e \Wuhan is located in the middle of China and is the mega city at the mid-
stream of Yangtze River, the capital of Hubei Province, an important
industrial, scientific and educational base, as well as a comprehensive
transportation hub in China.

e Pursuant to the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone strategy, Wuhan is

included as a core development city. It shall play the role of radiation for
cities at mid-stream of Yangtze River and establish itself as the growth
pole at mid-stream of Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone.

e \Wuhan is the center of China’s high-speed railway with only five hours

of high-speed train ride to cities such as Beijing, Shanghai, Chongging,
Shenzhen and Hong Kong. As an aviation hub in the middle of China,
Wuhan owns 40 overseas direct routes and is the only city in central China
with direct routes to four continents.

R EETEERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE D

The following table sets forth our project status, industry themes, scope
of services and fee arrangement for each industrial town project as of 31

December 2020.

Industrial town

TREHIHMEEETHEE B REE202095128
BMEMIN - EXTRE  RBEBENERLREE -

project® Industry theme Scope of services Fee arrangement Status
EXmEBEAM EXITE PR &8 & BRARY BiR
Langfang,
Hebei province
S B
(I) Longhe Park ¢ Information e Planning and design, e Calculated with e Progressing towards
() BEN=E technology, advanced industry positioning, reference to a certain an active development
manufacturing, land preparation, percentage of land stage, and contributed

Planned site area: modern services and infrastructure sale proceeds and to our income during
BEEH®EE - property development construction, taxes paid by resident the year

o BRI - EEsE marketing and follow- enterprises o IEFRRRERFE A UAK
28.0 million sq.m. BRI EmE up servicesto manage e IRTMHEFTSRIER KR WEAFERG
280B8F K and operate the PEALRERMES WATE

project MBI E
o B BRET EETE

() Longhe Resort,
Langfang

() EBSHREA RS IRAE
REH

Planned site area:
HENEHERE -

9.5 million sg.m.
9.5 BTk

e \acation home and o
facilities, business
headquarters and
culture business
subject to finalization

s ERERRME  EmEL
BRXCEB(FEE)

i~ H3mERIE - EREER
MR ~ TIGTTIHA R
EEMEERENER
PR

Planning and design, e
industry positioning,

land preparation,
infrastructure
construction,

marketing and follow-

up services to manage e
and operate the

project

RE - REt EETE

i~ EHERTE - EiRE%
MEEERR TS TTERA R
EERSEIRENER
BR7%

Calculated with
reference to a certain
percentage of land
sale proceeds and
taxes paid by resident
enterprises
1213 R TS SIEED
DAL REREES
WMEFIESTE

¢ Binding agreement
signed; land
preparation and
infrastructure
construction not yet
commenced
BEETANRIOH
& KA EBIER
AR
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Industrial town

i

project™ Industry theme Scope of services Fee arrangement Status

EXmRERO EXTE B 7% &5 & BERTH BiR

(I Guangyang e Under planning e Planning and design, ¢ A portion of the net ¢ Binding agreement
Technology o 32| industry positioning, land sale proceeds signed; land
Regeneration Park® land preparation, representing the preparation and

() ESREEER infrastructure sum of our actual infrastructure

construction, investment amount construction not yet
Planned site area: marketing and follow- with a pre-agreed commenced

RENMEIEE

15.0 million sg.m.
15.08 & Tk

(IV) Yongaing VAST
Industrial Town Park

(V) K ERFREZETHE
B[

Planned site area:
B ETE -

14.0 million sg.m.
1408 &K

¢ Intelligent equipment
manufacturing, new
energy, new material
industry
. *”%Eé% RS
TRER « FTMRIES

up services to manage

and operate the
project
HEl -

AT EEX

1\imﬁﬁ\gwm
ST K
E@&m%ﬁﬁmﬁé

MEREER

AR

e Planning and design,
industry positioning,
land preparation,
infrastructure
construction and
marketing

RE - RE EERE
iz« THpEER - HR
R R T 51T

B R 2R E E T IREE AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

return and a portion
of the remaining net
land sale proceeds
in accordance with
our equity interest in
the relevant project
company
T RS SRR
B —H5 - mAERERIE
ER MO ERZRERIE
(BELMEZEH) -
PARER D 84 T B L3
BT TIRER R
MREBIER QR
RESHED) B4R

Commission services
income, which is
calculated based on a
certain proportion of

a fixed return and the
aggregate investment
in the park
ZIERBWA - ZEE
133 & B (B 18 & 25 R
—FEHEE

° ERRDT/\!’]Qij]E,]Tﬁ
& ORFAIA T ERIE Ko
ER AR

¢ Binding agreement

signed; land
preparation and
infrastructure
construction not yet
commenced

ERFTRELRINR

P RFIA TR R
% BRI
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Industrial town

project™ Industry theme Scope of services Fee arrangement Status
EXmEEAO EETE B 7% &5 & BERTH R
Shijiazhuang,
Hebei province
TEARET
(V) Shijiazhuang General e General aviation e Planning and design, e Commission services e Binding agreement

Aviation Industrial industry, modern industry positioning, income, which is signed; land

Town Park services and property land preparation, calculated based on preparation and
V) BERHERMTES development infrastructure a certain proportion infrastructure

TiEE R o BAMZEEZE  IBAMR  construction and of a fixed return and construction
BRI marketing the aggregate cost commenced, and
Planned site area: o JRE| - B/ET - EEX incurred in the park contributed to our
RENEHE TS - iz~ T EEIE - EEER o ZIEMRBUA - #EE  income during the year
MERERR R 51T 88 B LEEMEEKRE o BETAELORNNG

20.0 million sa.m. BN —TELLPIETE & BRI EER
2008 8F K EMRiEaa - WER

FEBGERAER

(VI) Shijiazhuang ¢ Healthcare industry, e Planning and design, ¢ Commission services e Binding agreement
Gaocheng VAST eldercare industry and industry positioning, income, which is signed; land
Industrial Town Park tourism land preparation, calculated based on a preparation and
V) ARHENAREE  EFEE BZEZEK  infrastructure certain proportion of infrastructure
TEE @ g construction and a fixed return and the construction
marketing aggregate investment commenced, and
Planned site area: o RE| - RE EET in the park contributed to our
FENEHETS - iz~ TR - BERR o ZIEMRBUA - #EFE  income during the year
HERERE R 51T 88 B LEEEELTEN o BETAORNNG
27.1 million sq.m. —ELLHIEE & BRI EER
27.1B8F K EMSE - WA
FEBREBAETR
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Industrial town

project™ Industry theme Scope of services Fee arrangement Status
EXmRERO EETE B 7% &5 & BERTH iR
Ezhou,
Hubei province
LB SM T
(VIl) VAST Ezhou Industrial e Intelligent ¢ Planning and design, Commission services e Binding agreement
Park manufacturing, industry positioning, income, which is signed; land
VI) ZRDMEEER electronic information land preparation, calculated based on a preparation and
and strategic emerging  infrastructure certain proportion of infrastructure
Planned site area: industries construction and a fixed return and the construction
FRENEmAE - o HgeRliE EFEE marketing aggregate investment commenced, and
BIMR IR E 2 o HHE| B EET in the park contributed to our
4.3 million sg.m. i~ TR - R o ZIEMRBUA - #EE  income during the year
A3BEFHK MR KR T 51T i LR REEIZEEEN » ERITEORION
—EHIEE & CHBTHERR
EER R - WER
FERBRAER
Wuhan,
Hubei Province
ML A RED
(VIl) Wuhan Development e General aviation ¢ Planning and design, Commission services Binding agreement
Zone General industry industry positioning, income, which is signed; land
Aviation Industry o BAMEEZE land preparation, calculated based on a preparation and
Comprehensive infrastructure certain proportion of infrastructure
Demonstration Zone construction and a fixed return and the construction
Vi B EBmESE marketing aggregate investment commenced
IFATER o HRE| - B/ET EXEE in the park e BEERITEBNRNAIW
fir ~ THIEREE - BAER o ZIRBUA - REFE & DRAITHMERER
Planned site area: MR ER K T35 1T i PR kEEEELEN  EEREER
RENEHEIE - —ELBIFHE
5.1 million sg.m.
5188 K

Notes: Fff5E

(1) Our Longhe Park, Longhe Resort, Yongqing VAST Industrial Town Park, (1)  FEFIREEA SH R -« B 5200 25 7% KA R A
Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park, Shijiazhuang Gaocheng i KERGZEEMHEER  ARHEBEAMEE
VAST Industrial Town Park and VAST Ezhou Industrial Park are developed by our RMHAER - ARGEENARERDHEE R
wholly-owned subsidiaries. Wuhan Development Zone General Aviation Industry REBMNEXBERBEAKRMOENRE R AL
Comprehensive Demonstration Zone is developed by our controlling subsidiary. o RERERBMERGRETHEMNME AR

PIEYIERH B AREE -

(2)  We entered into a co-operation agreement with the local government for the (2 I 2011F4 427 B 375 BT RISL A 1E 1%
development of Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park on 27 April 2011. o AEEGREREE - BEEHR B
Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park is in close vicinity to Beijing Daxing bR A BB RS - M5 EEE(BEES
International Airport, whereas the development plan of the surrounding area of B EE) MR ZEREE R BT BT #ITE
the airport, including Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park, is under review B o ANE BB AR BIIAR S - F 1742020
by the local government. As such government planning has not been released, we F12A3N AXKFREGR BB EE G
have not commenced development of Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park BRI EENEEEMLRRGBEDEFE
as of 31 December 2020. The industry positioning and our scope of services for 2 °
Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park are subject to changes.

(3)  Since City Plan 2035 (203544 i #7#1) of Zhangjiakou has not been approved to () FIFSRER H 2035 F R REIZ S8 B HL7E

date, and VAST Zhangjiakou City New Industrial Park and Zhangjiakou City Modern
Industrial Park have not made substantial progress, after friendly negotiation by
all parties, we have signed agreements to terminate the cooperation of the park
projects for the above two parks respectively at the end of 2020.

FRREEEMEZEREAR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

R A e 2 2R R E B R R O RS
BERWARBSEELER - £BEHRFHE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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)

Longhe Park

After years of development, an accumulated land of 7,259,077 sqg.m.
(accounted for 37.2% of saleable land) was sold by the local government
of Longhe Park. For the year ended 31 December 2020, fee income
derived from our development of industrial town projects at Longhe
Park was RMB1,732.5 million. The table below sets forth selective
information about the classification of land, planned site area and site
area sold of Longhe Park as of 31 December 2020.

(1 EUTSHE
KBZFNERE BRI BFER
sHHHEE L H07,259,077F oK (M5 ] s £ it
37.2%) o EE2020% 12 B31AILEFE 5K
BT SHMENREEEMHEEBEENGSE
BURABARE7325BET - TRHTI
2020F 12 AN BEA=HEE B LD
oAb EERE HEE T EENE

BEH o
Planned site
Classification 28 area® Site area sold® Saleable land unsold
HBGH
[EE T G E R REBHTHEL
sg.m. sq.m. % Sq.m. %
FK FIK % FK %
Saleable &
* Residential and o IEE K
commercial area mER 10,288,300 3,399,696 33.0 6,888,604 67.0
e Industrial area s EXRE 9,205,500 3,859,381 41.9 5,346,119 58.1
Subtotal of saleable land  A] {Hiz& L/ NG+ 19,493,800 7,259,077 37.2 12,234,723 62.8
Non-saleable FHHE
e Roads o JER 4,431,300 N/AT@EA NATEA NATER NATER
e Greenery space o KLz 4,074,900 NATEA NATEA NATEA NATEA
Subtotal of non-saleable  FEHiE+ it
land BT 8,506,200 N/ATEM NANER NANEBER NATER
Total Bt 28,000,000 7,259,077 N/A FEA 12,234,723 N/A NEA
Notes: Bzt -
(1) Planned site area is based on the planning approved by the relevant local () BEMEHERE RS BT BT
government. IR EIMEETE
(2)  Percentages are calculated as the site area sold by the local governments Q) BEOHEMARFEBARINE - BES

through public auction, tender or listing for sale process as a portion of the

total saleable site area under the same land classification.

B SR AR T H S (S E R R
B E AR — LR B — 55
st -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The table below sets forth details regarding land sold by the local TREHEHE2020F1283MBIEEEH T
government, the relevant average selling price, land premium and a BT B TS - AT EE -
breakdown of our fee income for the year ended 31 December 2020. T RS AR B E AU ARBRAE
Land sold  ASP sold Oour fee income/
by local by local Land percentage of
government government premium land premium
WHEBF  HEBUEH RIEWERKBA
HEN L FHHEE IHHES htibHES
sg.m.  RMB/sg.m. RMB'000 RMB'000 %
AR/
TR TRk ARETT ARETT %
Year ended BEZE2020%F
31 December 2020 12A31BIEFE
Residential and FEREELM
commercial land 443,482 8,238 3,653,500 1,656,426 45.3
Industrial land T+ 156,599 708 110,900 76,097 68.6
Total st 600,081 6,273 3,764,400 1,732,523 46.0

B R 2R E E T IREE AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



() Longhe Resort

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

() EREh RS R R M E R E it

The table below sets forth selective information about the classification TR 2020512 A31 B B 3250 59 1%
of land and planned site area of Longhe Resort as of 31 December 2020. KEEREMEE LD RRE (L bE
TEREEER -

Classification bak| Planned site area™

HENLHEED
sg.m.

Saleable oHE

» Residential and commercial area s FERNEER 4,525,200

e |ndustrial area o R 1,162,000

Subtotal of saleable land A E b N Et 5,687,200

Non-saleable FEHE

e Roads o ERE 563,700

e Greenery space o 42fbZe 3,249,100

Subtotal of non-saleable land Bl A 3,812,800

Total et 9,500,000

Note: BE -

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning approved by the relevant local 1) REMEMmEEDEREE R BT E

government. BIFREIMETE ©
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(lll) Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park

During the year 2020, we continued our communication with people’s
government of Langfang and people’s government of Guangyang District
of Langfang in respect of the Guangyang Technology Regeneration
Park. As of 31 December 2020, the industrial positioning and service
scope of the park were still subject to adjustment as the detailed
planning for the surrounding area of Beijing Daxing International Airport
has not been released, thus no development work had been carried
out in respect of the park. The Company will continue to communicate
with people’s government of Langfang and people’s government of
Guangyang District of Langfang in respect of the Guangyang Technology
Regeneration Park and strive to commence land consolidation and
facility construction as soon as possible.

(IV) Yongging VAST Industrial Town Park

The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and
planned site area of Yongging VAST Industrial Town Park as at 31
December 2020.

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

() EEREECE
1220204+ B PIER BB T A R IBUIT M2 BB
D EREARBESEMERR B EE
HEEBRFER - HE2020F12 A31
B - AR K BB RS FE [ A R
B ARBH - ZEENHEZETLNRRBEH
ENAEFENR - MARFABEREAZ - 28]
A E s R A RBRT R ERS R
ARBRSHESR B CEER REHE
B FERREE T IR R R

(V) KB ERREXRTHER
TRBIIN2020F12 431 BXBERRESE
MHAEE A B L5 8RR B S E
AR -

Classification Wik | Planned site area™
FENEHEED
sg.m.
5K
Saleable HHE
¢ Residential and commercial area s FERMEHER 3,660,100
¢ Industrial area o E¥E 3,533,900
Subtotal of saleable land AR e 7,194,000
Non-saleable FHHE
e Roads o JERK 2,266,400
e Greenery space o Bz 4,299,000
e Supporting facilities o BEENERIE 250,800
Subtotal of non-saleable land FEHE £ b/ N et 6,816,200
Total Fb 14,010,200

Note:

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local
government by us for approval.

R EETEERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

G

() REEHEABEDEREMZ2RXTFERILS
BT LALEE RO ARE] ©



Management Discussion and Analysis
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(V) Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park

The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and
planned site area of Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park
as at 31 December 2020.

(V) AaxHBERANZERTEREE

TREHIFH2020F 12 A31 B AR FEEAM
TEEMAREABI DB RAETH
ERMEEER o

Classification 2% Planned site area™
FENLHEED
sg.m.

Saleable oHE
¢ Residential and commercial area o FEREKEER 5,313,000
e Industrial area o EXERE 6,347,000
Subtotal of saleable land B HEE /N5t 11,660,000

Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o ERK 3,668,900
o Greenery space o Kbz 2,716,200
e Supporting facilities o EENRIE 1,954,900
Subtotal of non-saleable land FEHE £ /N5t 8,340,000
Total et 20,000,000

Note:

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local
government by us for approval.

As at 31 December 2020, the accumulated area of land preparation
started in Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park was
approximately 1,650,000 sg.m. In 2020, the Group recognised
income from industrial development service of RMB41.9 million with
reference to a certain percentage to the amount of investment in park
establishment.

BIRE -

() REMEHEBEDEREMEXTFE@UT
B AVEZE HERO AR -

202012 A31H - ARHERAMEESE
THEERCDHESN LR RHEEN S
1,650,0005F 77 K ° 120204 @ AREE LR
BEEEMIEEEN —ELOIBEREXER
BRISMAARBLI9FE T
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

(V1) Shijiazhuang Gaocheng VAST Industrial Town Park
The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and
planned site area of Shijiazhuang Gaocheng VAST Industrial Town Park as
at 31 December 2020.

v A

AXHEREAFREETEHEERE
TREFIIN2020F12 AN B AR EERE
FEXTHEERGE IS ELEE LM
HEMEIRE R o

Classification 28 Planned site area™
FENLHEEY
sg.m.
Saleable oHE
* Residential and commercial area e FERMHER 9,497,900
e |ndustrial area o R 4,582,900
Subtotal of saleable land A HEE /N E 14,080,800
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o ERE 3,905,900
o Greenery space o GR{L 2 2,850,000
o Supporting facilities o EEANERIE 6,234,800
Subtotal of non-saleable land s/ NEt 12,990,700
Total Wt 27,071,500
Note: Bz -

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local
government by us for approval.

As at 31 December 2020, the accumulated area of land preparation
started in Shijiazhuang Gaocheng VAST Industrial Town Park was
approximately 788,000 sg.m. In 2020, the Group recognised income
from land preparation and investment services of RMB76.9 million,
calculated using the cost plus method.

PR EGEXEMAEEAR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

(1) REEWEBHDERRMEXTEBLT
BUFLALEE HERDARE] o

202012 A31H - ARHEREREE
THEERDEN IR RHEEN S
788,000 J5 3K ° FA20204F + A EIREARK
KINBERER T BB ARG BAAR
76958 °



(VII)VAST Ezhou Industrial Park

The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and
planned site area of VAST Ezhou Industrial Park as at 31 December
2020.

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

(Vi) ZR=SPMEEER
TREFIH2020F 12 A3 B EH=PMEZE
EEE L B RRENbEENGRE
o

Classification ok} Planned site area™
HENLHEED
sg.m.
Saleable oHE
» Residential and commercial area s FERNEER 749,300
e |ndustrial area o R 2,228,600
Subtotal of saleable land A s N et 2,977,900
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o ERE 630,700
o Greenery space o Hx b2 502,600
e \Vater space o JK 18 F i, 200,700
Subtotal of non-saleable land e /N5 1,334,000
Total st 4,311,900
Note: B

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local
government by us for approval.

As at 31 December 2020, the accumulated area of land preparation
started in VAST Ezhou Industrial Park was approximately 740,000 sq.m.
In 2020, the Group recognised income from land preparation and
investment services of RMB23.6 million, calculated using the cost plus
method, and income from industrial development service of RMB38.2
million with reference to a certain percentage to the amount of
investment in park establishment.

() REGEBEABSIEREMZ2XTEELS
BT LAEE A AR B -

F20204F12 8310 » BRSBMEXEERK
10 £ #h 79 3% R 5t 78 49 & 740,000F J5
K o R20204F + ANER BIR IR ACAS AN A OA
REIMEERERBUAARK23.688
7T RIRIREREMIRE A —E L P
REXZRBRBVAARKEIB2BET °
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(VilwWuhan Development Zone General Aviation

Industry Comprehensive Demonstration Zone

The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land
and planned site area of Wuhan Development Zone General Aviation
Industry Comprehensive Demonstration Zone as at 31 December 2020.

VIR EZHBREEMEELZGRSRERE

TRHFFIHR2020F 12 A31 B REFEER
MEXEFETHREHE LD ERRES
HEENERER

Classification 28 Planned site area™
FELHEED
sg.m.
K
Saleable oHE
¢ Residential and commercial area s FERMHER 1,585,300
o Industrial area o E¥E 2,547,700
Subtotal of saleable land Al R N 4,133,000
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o iEPK 719,000
e Greenery space o 47fbz=Ef 204,900
e \Water space o JK I8 F b 38,800
e Supporting facilities o ERENELIE 50,100
Subtotal of non-saleable land FEHAE £ 3/ ET 1,012,800
Total st 5,145,800
Note: BIE -

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local
government by us for approval.

As at 31 December 2020, the accumulated area of land development
started in Wuhan Development Zone General Aviation Industry
Comprehensive Demonstration Zone was approximately 1,164,000
sq.m.

R EETEERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

M REEHERDEREMZXTERLT
BURF AR RERO R B -

FA20205F12 8310 - RERBEEBMESE
fRe R R B REN A IR B RETE AL
731,164,000 5K °



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE D

Property Development B R

As at 31 December 2020, we had 24 projects at various stages of 2020128318  HIE G 24 EENTEH
development, mainly concentrating on development of residential,  F[EERMIER  FESHPHEETE A%  EX
commercial and industrial projects with a wide range of products including  18H @ ERERSIEEE AF - 5IZE - TER
residence, apartment, villa, retail stores and office buildings. We had  $#RIFARE « 20206128318 - BEF=E -
residential, commercial and industrial land reserves of gross floor area of FEEMEXYMEM NI E L HBEZERREL
1,591,970 sg.m. remain unsold as at 31 December 2020. 1,591,970 752K »

We classify our projects into three categories according to the stages of  FIRIEMAZEEEREEE 5 A=1EE5 :

development:

. Completed properties. Completed properties represent properties °

for which we have received the certified construction completion
report from the relevant government construction authorities. As at
31 December 2020, our completed properties consisted of Mingren
Garden, Foxconn City Phase |, Foxconn City Phase I, Hongtai
Meishuguan Phase |, Hongtai Meishuguan Phase I, Yihejiayuan Block
A, Hongtai Longdi Phase |, Hongtai Longdi Phase Il, Chuangye Plaza
Phase II, Longhe Park — Talent Home, Yulong Bay Phase | and Electronic
Information Industrial Park Phase I.

. Properties under development. Properties under development represent °

properties for which we have received the requisite construction work
commencement permit with respect to all or a part of our projects
before completion of the entire projects. As at 31 December 2020, our
properties under development consisted of Foxconn City Phase IlI,
Longhe Center Phase |, Electronic Information Industrial Park Phase I,
Electronic Information Industrial Park Phase I, Tanghai Project (Plot
3 Yuehu Bay), Hubei Changjiang zhihui Port Innovation Startup Base
Phase | and Wuhan Hangyaohong Technology Project.

. Properties planned for future development. Properties planned for .

future development represent properties for which we have received
the relevant land use rights certificates but have not yet received the
requisite construction work commencement permit. As at 31 December
2020, our properties planned for future development consisted of
Electronic Information Industrial Park Phase Il, Longhe Center Phase II,
Qingnianhui, Yulong Bay Phase I, Yulong Bay Phase Ill, Huahang
Apartment and Tanghai Project (Plot 1 and Plot 2), Ezhou Zhanyao
Project, Ezhou Huineng Project and Hubei Changjiang zZhihui Port
Innovation Startup Base Phase Il.

B TYE - R TYWERWEI A BB
TR#EASENRTIRBIREOWE - KB
2020F 12 A31H BB R IMESR
BEANE  BLEE—8 - BLEH-
Hi - RIEERIE - ARENE 8
BEAELAR - REES—H - ZREL
BIZERE=—H EUafiEATR
CHEE-—HREFEREXR -

BRPYE - BRTWERE  NEEEE
RIR 2R DA R KB AR E
TREETFFAIENYE - R20209F12 A
INE - HMWERTYERES TEM
=H AL —H EFEREXE—
B -EFEREXE_H  FAERGHK
HWALHE) R RITE BB AR A E M
—HREUEMROARIEIRR -

REERRFAZENME - REERRFARE
R IR AR fF AR - BRI
FIfEREATREBIFAUENYE - R
20205F 12 A31H - B BIER K%
MYEBRETESEEXR -8  #u+F
DN EFE - HES -8  fEs
=B ERAE - BEEEB (154 - 258
#) ~ SEMNEBIBIEE - SBIFEREIE B KoL
ROTEEBRIFAIZEEt —Hf o

Some of our projects comprise multiple-phase developments on a rolling  FH I8 E TIER BETEEENZEEEIER -
basis. One project may include different phases at various stages of HMHEE AL BIEERT « HEPFIRENE
development, i.e., completed properties, properties under development and  RERBEEZETRZEEEEOE -

properties planned for future development.
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The following map shows the geographical locations and key data of our
properties as at 31 December 2020.

GFA Langfang
Type /R REER EBEh T
Foxconn City =t B
Completed B®T 181,000
Under construction 34 118,000

For future development  RZRFIZE -

Chuangye Plaza (Phase Il) RI¥AE=H

Completed B®T 29,000
Under construction 34 =
For future development ~ ARZRFIZE -

Hongtai Longdi % ZREEER

Completed B®T 351,000
Under construction e =
For future development ~ RZRFIZE -

Chengde
HiE
°

@ Tangshan
Bl

. Tianjin
Longhe Center 85T /0 3
RE
Completed B%T -
Under construction pizy= 70,000
For future development  R7RF9%E 116,000

Electronic Information Industrial Park in Longhe Park

EIENEEFEREXE

Completed BT 61,000 e

Under construction wE 27,000 BEIj Ing-

For future development  5R2KB9% 110,000 Tianjin-Hebei
Longhe Park - Talent Home Reglon
ETBHE - ATXE TEEME

Completed B¥%T 22,000

Under construction e =

Hubei Province
it E

For future development ~ ARZRFIZE -

Yihejiayuan (Block A) FEFI{E%5 (AB)

Completed B%T 85,000
Under construction e =
For future development ~ RZRFIZE -

Completed BRI 64,000
Under construction T =
For future development ~ RKFH#E -

R EETEERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

LA 81 88 R 7020204612 A 31 B K P11 2 6893 38
UERTEHRE -

GFA
Type B EEMEE
Hongtai Meishuguan %3 %8
Completed B%T 252,000

Under construction EE -
For future development  RIRFHEE -

Completed B®T -
Under construction 12 -
For future development  A&3KFH% 11,000

Huahang Apartment E#i Q5

Completed B%T
Under construction i3 =
For future development R 2€F3% 10,000

Yulong Bay ff3E%

Completed B®T 159,000
Under construction Jes= =
For future development ~ R2RFEEE 472,000

I— Tanghai Project Ei§1EH

Completed B®RT -

Under construction pis = 16,000
For future development KR53 188,000
Completed B®T -

Under construction 12 -

For future development ~ RZRFE%E 112,000

Completed BE%T -
Under construction TEE -
For future development  AR2RFA%E 87,000

Completed BE%®T -
Under construction TEE 24,000
For future development  R2RF%E 90,800

Wuhan Hangyaohong Technology Project
REMBAREIER

Completed B®RT -
Under construction jes=3 8,400
For future development ~ RZRFAZE -




Management Discussion and Analysis
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The following table shows the saleable area remaining unsold for our

AT RZER20205F12 A31 AR M ER M Al &

properties as at 31 December 2020: H7E
Gross The Saleable Area
Floor Group's Remaining
Site Area Area Land-use Purpose  Interest Unsold®
£6
Project Name and Location HREBRAE EHEE BEEE AR FrERE  HUEERY
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FAK)  (FAK) (%) (FAK)
Langfang B
Foxconn City (Phases I to ETERM(—HZE=H) 126,545 299,000  Residential and commercial 100% 136,400
39 Fukang Road, Langfang AT & FR B39, FEREE
Chuangye Plaza (Phase Il ey 8,820 29,000 Commercial 100% 23,000
39 Nanlong Road, Langfang B R REI9N G
Hongtai Longdi (Phases I and ) FRES(—5 - —H) 126,929 351,000  Residential and commercial 100% 37,300
259 South Yinhe Road, Langfang BRI B 259%: FEREE
Longhe Center BT 47,486 186,000 Commercial 100% 171,000
West Chuangye Plaza, Nanlong Road, Langfang ~ Essim@ sz alEAER FSES
Electronic Information Industrial Park in ETETRETEEELE 187,815 198,000 Industrial 100% 160,800
Longhe Park (Phases I and 1) (-8 =#) E¥
89 Fukang Road, Langfang AT & FR BRI
Longhe Park - Talent Home BIRHE-ATRE 12,666 22,000 Residential 100% 21,000
125 Furao Road, Langfang AT BB 1255, i
Yihejiayuan (Block A) FARER (AR ) 35,430 85000  Residential and commercial 100% 2,820
300 Xichang Road, Langfang [T AE 8 32 300%% FEREE
Mingren Garden ZADE 29141 64,000  Residential and commercial 100% 250
76 Heping Road, Langfang BHmRTE76%: FEREE
Hongtai Meishuguan (Phases | and THREHE(H - =8) 120739 252,000 Residential and commercial 100% 16,400
28 Huaxiang Road, Development Zone, Langfang BB B %4 3 7 pR 285 FEREE
Qingnianhui EEE 4,279 11,000  Residential and commercial 100% 9,000
175 East Aimin Road, Langfang EsshT B RRIE175%; FEREE
Huahang Apartment EfAR 10,557 10,000 Residential 100% 10,000
175 East Aimin Road, Langfang EsshT 8 RRIE175%; i
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Gross The Saleable Area
Floor Group's Remaining
Site Area Area Land-use Purpose  Interest Unsold®
£8
Project Name and Location BREBRAE EHEE BEEE AR FERE  HTEERY
(s.m) (sa.m.) (sa.m.)
(FAK)  (FAXK) (%) (FAX)
Chengde RE
Yulong Bay (Phase I to ll) HEE(—HE=H) 142,841 631,000 Residential and commercial 100% 478,700
Junction of Southwest of Wuwei Road and EETHE AR AN - FEREE
Siliujing Road, New District, Chengde M7 A8 2
Tangshan Bl
Tanghai Project (Plot 10 3) BSEE (1-3550) 665935 204,000 Residential 100% 204,000
North Shore, Caofei Hu, Qi Nongchang, EmERa+Ey T
Caofeidian District, Tangshan EiMitE
Ezhou M
Ezhou Zhanyao Project P ERIER 55753 112,000 Residential and commercial 100% 112,000
South of Desheng Road, East of Xingye YiRoad, S/l —KEA - FEREE
Ezhou Bk
Ezhou Huineng Project SBiNEERLIER 87,350 87,000 Industrial 100% 87,000
North of Xuejiagou, East of Xuguang Avenue, SR RERE E¥
Ezhou EREILR
Hubei Changjiang Zhihui Port Innovation M RIEES 81,870 114,800 Industrial 100% 114,500
Startup Base BIFTAIERY EX
North of Yanghu Road-Central West, SHmREABRE
East of Wu Chu Road, Ezhou BRRTRRILA
Wuhan RE
Wuhan Hangyaohong Technology Project RIEfBsh R IE B 14,760 8,400 Industrial 100% 7,800
South of Xingcheng Avenue, REMERRYEEERTD EX
East of Xingfu Zhong Lu, Shamao Street, BOR - B AELE
Hannan District, Wuhan
Total FoE 1758916 2,664,200 1,591,970
Note: MEE -

(1) Remaining saleable area includes area completed but not yet sold, area under (1)
construction, area for future development and area pre-sold but not yet

recognised as revenue.

B R 2R E E T IREE AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

HAEHERECRIERFEERSE  EEE
1 RRFAZEEERD BEERERRBANE
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The following table sets forth the revenue, gross floor area (“GFA”")/unit sold,

TRHEIIEZE2020F12A31B FFERESEL

and average selling price (“ASP”) for each of our revenue-generating property WA KIKA - BEREERE([REmE])
H2  RFHEE(FEHEE]D -

for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Year ended 31 December 2020

EZ2020F12A31HILFE
Project EHE Revenue GFA sold ASP
WA CEREEE THEE
RMB'000 sg.m. RMB/sg.m.
AREFIT Tk AREITFRK
Foxconn City Phase Il (Longhefengjing) =+ B — Bige ml i =
Residential (=] 43,486 3,217 13,518
Hongtai Longdi Phase | REEIB—H
commercial [HES 2,169 143 15,168
Hongtai Longdi Phase Il RARBERS —HA
Commercial B 4,041 265 15,249
Hongtai Meishuguan Phase Il RIEE R =8
Residential F= 3,029 245 12,363
Yulong Bay Phase | Tl BE & —ER
Ccommercial [SHES 3,808 320 11,900
Electronic Information Industrial Park &= 8 E%E
Plant = 135,616 12,398 10,939
Yishujia P EER
Residential F= 5,162 450 11,471
Sub-total INE 197,311 17,038 11,581
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31BLEE
Project Ancillary Area HEHBE Revenue GFA sold ASP
'ON CEEEEE THEE
RMB'000 sg.m. RMB/sg.m.
ARETTT Fk AR EFK
Foxconn City Phase Il (Longhefengjing) & + B — HA 16 497 32
Underground Chamber ARSI E
Hongtai Meishuguan Underground RREMETE 143 187 765
Chamber
Yulong Bay Phase | Underground HEE—Hi T E 446 201 2,219
Chamber
Yihejiayuan Underground Chamber  BEFI{EZaH = 96 156 615
Sub-total Net 701 1,041 673
Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HILEE
Revenue Unit sold ASP
'ON EEHE THEE
RMB'000 unit RMB/unit
AREF T 1 AR,/ (A
Foxconn City Phase Il (Longhefengjing) =+ i — H 624 42 14,857
Underground Car Park Unit BERE S N B
Hongtai Meishuguan Underground — RZEERHEH T &L 1,833 27 67,889
Car Park Unit
Hongtai Longdi Underground Car pagos: i NE=XI) 2,646 39 67,846
Park Unit
Yulong Bay Phase | Underground 5 e —Hith N B 1,409 15 93,933
Car Park Unit
Yishujia Car Park Unit BRAGREBAL 1,252 8 156,500
Sub-total /et 7,764 131 59,267
Total st 205,776
Less: Tax and surcharges A Be kM (7,586)
Total revenue after tax Fii& U A 198,190

R EETEERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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() FOXCONN CITY PHASE Il (LONGHEFENGIJING) IN

LONGHE PARK

ENSHES LB - (TR

Foxconn City Phase Il, also known as Longhefengjing
Project, is located 1,000 meters south of the
intersection of Nanlong Road and Jianshe South Road,
providing property units of various sizes to satisfy
different housing demands. The Project is along the
routes of Buses No. 11, 15, 16 and 33, while Jianshe
South Road closely connects to Xinkai Road, Yinhe
Road and Heping Road of the downtown area. From
the Project, there is a 15-minute drive to reach
Wanda Plaza, Mingzhu Commercial Building and other
properties in the core business circle, and only a
5-minute drive to Langfang High-speed Railway Station.
The Project is well equipped with nearby facilities,
including Anci District Central Hospital under planning
in the south, No.5 Middle School, No.14 Primary School
and Anci District No.1 Kindergarten in close vicinity,
and Longhe Park First Primary School under planning
in the surrounding area. As such, the Project provides
a complete range of access to medical, education,
leisure and shopping facilities.

In 2020, the sales income recognised (including
underground) and commercial and residential area
recognised of Foxconn City Phase Il project amounted
to RMB44,126,000 and 3,217 sg.m., respectively. As at
31 December 2020, the total GFA and remaining future
saleable GFA of Foxconn City Phase Il project were
148,000 sg.m. and 23,000 sq.m., respectively.

B LR BN AR S 1E
B fREEEHEEREERZX
ArT71,0000K + PR Z KL -
MESEEERFR 1115416
K3 IET ARBLIEE « [
P R AR B B TR [ BT R RE - 4R
B - FITREZEE  155ER
EBRERES  PRAESZRON
Y S E RSN EE
2 BERERELES  MAR
Bl R @R OBl FRREF -
TN - RIRE—4) - REIFEA
BYEE—NEE BE ¥
B - KH - BY—EE2 -

20204 - B+ —HIE A ®
RIEE WA B AREA4,126,000
T(EH TEHD) - HELERE
E & AB3,217F 7K o B20204F
12A318 ' EXFEW_HEEE
32 SR A A5 148,000°F 75 K - &
BRAR IR A B B R E 15 423,000
Tk e
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(I1) ELECTRONIC INFORMATION INDUSTRIAL PARK IN

LONGHE PARK
EEfEEFFEEXE

The Electronic Information Industrial Park in Longhe
Park, Langfang is a high-end office building industrial
project located in the center of the high-tech industrial
cluster in Longhe Park, Langfang. Given such location,
the project provides easy access to transportation, as
it is 5 minutes away from Langfang High-speed Railway
Station from which it takes 20 minutes to reach
downtown Beijing and Tianjin by high-speed railway.
The project also adjoins Beijing-Shanghai, Beijing-Hong
Kong-Macao and Beijing-Taipei Expressways. Featuring
single buildings for businesses, the Industrial Park is an
integrated industrial project which serves for business,
office, exhibition, communication and training.

In 2020, the sales income recognised and area
delivered of the Electronic Information Industrial Park
project amounted to RMB135,616,000 and 12,398
sg.m., respectively. As at 31 December 2020, the
total GFA and remaining future saleable GFA of the
Electronic Information Industrial Park project amounted
t0 198,000 sg.m. and 160,800 sq.m., respectively.

R EETEERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

BRI TREFEEEXE
REMMABERIER - LN
DN R ER I EEREN
BOME - BAM BB+ E
Ao sHBIEERDSEY B
H20n B R EELR - K2
HIR O - EARUR -
AR RARES - HARET
AUBEBRAT - £B% -
DRE N HIER—E

WERAEERIER -

R2020F - EFEEEXE
EHEBRHEERARBARK
135,616,0007T * 46 4 B E &
£12,398F 75K o 1420209 12 A
318 EFEREXEEB &2
SETE T8 4198,000F 77 5K - Flgg
SRR A] B 2R EEE 75 4 160,800 F
JoK o
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(111) CHUANGYE PLAZA (PHASE I1) IN LONGHE PARK

IS ERRAE =M

Chuangye Plaza is currently the most well-established
large-scale office building in the south of Langfang.
Located at the center of Longhe Park and next to
Anci Administrative Service Center, Chuangye Plaza
is a landmark of Longhe Park. With Nanlong Road on
the north and Changfu Road on the east, Chuangye
Plaza provides direct access to the high-speed railway
station from which it takes 20 minutes to reach
Beijing and Tianjin by high-speed railway. Also close
to Yinhe Road and Jianshe Road, the project enjoys a
road network extended to all directions with smooth
transportation access across the south of Langfang.
Inside the project, one single floor covers an area of 60
sg.m. to 1,870 sq.m. without indoor columns, enabling
an open and practical space with sufficient access to
sunshine.

As at 31 December 2020, the total GFA and remaining
future saleable GFA of Chuangye Plaza (Phase
II) project were 29,000 sg.m. and 23,000 sg.m.,
respectively.

BIZEKEZ B AR YT R ARk 7
MAREBFE - LRI
Ed - BZRITBRBTOR
B BREN SRS
Z o ILERFREE - REIGE AR
HEEE 200 ESE AR
B - R0 o BRATERIM BE AN
R RRESIE/N\E B
FAA MG Bl - BEEE60T
JIRENBIOF T K - EAESL
= FRER - ABAEER

M20205 124318 » BIEKRE
—HIE B 4R S 15 /29,000°F
TR RISRR A B2 EEER
23,000 75K °
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(IV)HONGTAI LONGDI IN LANGFANG, HEBEI PROVINCE

A 4L & BR LA T 2 SR RE R

Hongtai Longdi, as a residential and commercial complex,
is located in Longhe Park, a hub in Langfang's southern
expansion. Longhe Park not only enjoys proximity
to the Capital Economic Circle, but also occupies a
strategic position of Langfang in respect of its function
in the Beijing-Tianjin region. It is also a smart eco-city
characteristic of its modernization and integration of
production and municipal functions in southern Langfang.
With Nanlong Road on the north and Yinhe Road on
the west, the project is conveniently located within two
kilometers from Langfang Station of Beijing-Shanghai
High-speed Railway.

In 2020, the sales income recognised (including
underground) and commercial and residential
area recognised of Hongtai Longdi amounted to
RMB8,856,000 and 408 sg.m., respectively. As at 31
December 2020, the total GFA and remaining future
saleable GFA of Hongtai Longdi project amounted to
351,000 sg.m. and 37,300 sg.m., respectively.

(V) HONGTAI MEISHUGUAN IN
PROVINCE
A 3bE BB T R 2R A B

EEEBR/EETRBERSGARE
i 7 RS T P O A DR A —
EUSHR  ERRREHEE
BEEZHOAEER  hEE
TR B L B R F
RIS ERMRE - - = — R
RAEH ~ ER—ENEREEHN
W oo BEALSEREEE - FmERT
B BEEERESEEN MM AR
BEN - BERE -

H2020F  REGREISERIEE
A B AR 8,856,0007T (& iy
TES)  HESEREmES
408 75 K © 7220204 12 A 31
B EZEBEEaREmEs
351,000 75K + Flgh KRR AT &
RIS A37,300F 5K o

LANGFANG, HEBEI

Hongtai Meishuguan is a residential complex project
comprising residence, apartment, villa and garden
houses which is located in the center of Langfang
Economic and Technological Development Area, Hebei
Province. Located in northeastern Langfang, north
to Oriental University City and south to the Langfang
Financial and Recreational Center, the project enjoys a
well-established transportation network, with only 500
meters away from the Langfang exit of Beijing-Tianjin-
Tanggu Expressway and a 50-minute drive from Beijing
CBD Business Circle.

In 2020, the sales income recognised (including
underground) and commercial and residential area
recognised of Hongtai Meishuguan amounted to
RMB5,005,000 and 245 sg.m., respectively. As at 31
December 2020, the total GFA and remaining future
saleable GFA of Hongtai Meishuguan project amounted
10 252,000 sg.m. and 16,400 sg.m., respectively.

R EETEERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

RIS BB AL RO AL B BRI AL
BERMAERZOMLE - 2 —{E
EEHAEE - AEE A5
RERIEREF AKX - A 5%
KRBT RIL T M - ERERT
REW, - BRI FER SR
Mt BB ER S A
E500°K » BEE507 B E AL
CBDEIFE - 3B A ELE

R2020% © BEER R
& A B A RES5,0050007T (&
HMTED)  HEAEREEE
A245F 75 K ° 7220209 12 A 31
A REERMEEEAEERRE
#£252,000F 75K - FgR AR KA
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(VI) YULONG BAY PHASE | IN CHENGDE, HEBEI PROVINCE

WAt B AR HEEE— 4

Yulong Bay project is a development project with a
mixture of residential and commercial properties in
Chengde, Hebei province. Located in the south part
of Shuanggiao District, Chengde, the project provides
easy access to transportation, as it is less than two
kilometers away from the Beijing-Chengde Expressway
and only six kilometers away from Chengde Station
of Beijing-Shenyang High-speed Railway. The project
adjoins Chengde University City with well-equipped
facilities nearby and a huge development potential for
future real estate projects.

In 2020, the sales income recognised (including
underground) and commercial and residential area
recognised of Yulong Bay Phase | amounted to
RMB5,663,000 and 320 sg.m., respectively. As at 31
December 2020, the total GFA and remaining future
saleable GFA of Yulong Bay Phase | project were
159,000 sg.m. and 27,000 sq.m., respectively.
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Property Leasing

As of 31 December 2020, we had seven completed investment properties,
namely, Chengxiang Building, Meishu Complex, Jinyue Building, Tianfu Center,
Phase | and Phase Il of SME Entrepreneurial Base, Fuao Data Center and
Bangte Environmental Protection Data Center, and two investment properties
planned for future development, including Foxconn Technology Complex C10
and Phase IIl of SME Entrepreneurial Base.

The following table shows the key data of our investment properties as of 31

WERE
M2020F12A318 - BHMEBLHETIREY
¥ DRABBKE EFGEAE - SHEE -
KA~ RNV EAIEREM—H]  —H BB
HEAP ORI ERREUE RO - U RRBEREIE
RRFAERIREYE - BIEE LERHRECIOM
RNV ERIFEEN = -

AT RIBBRN20205F12 A3TH R MR EYES

December 2020.

TEHE -

Gross Floor The Group's Land
Arga  Existing use Interest  lease term
Project Name and Location BEARRMAE BY¥EE BifR SEFERE  IHAEER
(sq.m) (Vear)
(FA%) (%) (%)
Phase 181 of SME Entreprenelirial Base PV ERIER -8 8 126395 Partial leasing - Industrial 100% 50
No. 29 Ruixue Street, Anci District, Langfang BT REREE95% BARE-I%
Chengyiang Building BEAE 11365 Leasing - Commercial and office 100% 50
buiding
No. 66 Xinhua Road, Guangyang District, Langfang BB EHER66% HE-HLERINE
Jinyue Building ST 209 Leasing - Residential and commercial 100% 70
Northwestern comer of the junction of Heping Road R B R AT R R ERER AL A RE-TEREE
and Guangyang Road, Guangyang District,
Langfang
Tianfu Center RERL 8895 Leasing- Commercial 100% 0
South of South Outer Ring, North of Longhe, BT RNEEINRR AR - 2L BE-#%
East of Yinhe Road and West of Changfu Road, SRR - REFRUR
Longhe Park, Langfang
Meishu Complex Fhlirag 9,362 Leasing - Commercial 100% {0
South of Yunpeng Road and East of linyun Road, B A B S ER MR EEERENE - HE-E%
Langfang Economic and Technological SERUR
Development Zone, Langfang
Fuao Data Center ERIBRL 13733 Leasing - Industrial 100% 50
N0.80 Yung Street, Longhe Park, Langfang B E TR EHEER0%, RE-T%
Bangte Environmental Protection Data Center BERREERL 13603 Leasing- Industrial 100% 50
No. 159, Fukang Road, Longhe Park, Langfang By mETS RS RE159% HE-T1%
Phase Ill of SME Entrepreneurial Base UV EAIE R = 64,489 Tobe developed - Industrial 100% 50
No. 29 Ruixue Street, Anci District, Langfang BT Z EREE9% RER-I%
Foxcoon Technology Complex C10 ETERIRIECIO 104,588 Tobe developed - Commercial 100% {0
East of lianshenan Road and South of Erao Road,  BRYi eI ERRERUR - ZRENE e
Longhe Park, Langfang
Total = 354,524

For the year ended 31 December 2020, our property leasing income was
RMB34.3 million. In the future, we will consider the synergies created by
the property development business, to determine the input of resources on
property investment.

HZE2020F12A31BIEFE - BPIMWERER
ABARKESLIEETT o KK RIS EEWE
BEREBOHREBE  REEMERE LNE
TRIEA °
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Impact of COVID-19 and Response

Since January 2020, COVID-19 has spread all over the world. It has brought
certain challenges to our business development, but has little impact on
our core business. During the epidemic, we formulated special response
measures, such as quickly adapting to the needs of epidemic prevention
and control to realize early resumption of work and production, increasing
investment promotion, multi-channel promotion of commercial, residential
and industrial land, and working with the government to help enterprises
in the parks overcome the impact of the epidemic to ensure sound
development of business operations, etc. These measures played a positive
role in the stable development of our business.

As the government's various anti-epidemic measures continue to take effect,
except for a few small medium-risk and high-risk areas that have cases
occasionally, production and life in all parts of China have basically returned
to normal. In particular, the recent large-scale vaccination of COVID-19
vaccine across the country has further controlled the development of the
epidemic, and psychologically eliminated people's panic about COVID-19. The
impact of the epidemic on our business development is diminishing.

We will continue to monitor the development of COVID-19, assess the impact
of COVID-19 on our financial position and operating results, adjust the plans
and measures for epidemic prevention and control and project operations
in a timely manner, and disclose any relevant important information in due
course.

Outlook

In respect of our industrial town development, we will focus on the
development of Longhe Park and continue the foundation works of other
outbound projects (including projects in Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region and
projects in Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone) in 2021. We are confident that
we can complete the annual development plan and revenue plan formulated
by the management of the Group at the beginning of the year.

In respect of our property development in 2021, we will focus on the
construction of Foxconn City Phase Ill, Longhe Center and Electronic
Information Industrial Park. Revenue from sales of properties during 2021 is
expected to be derived mainly from the sales of Foxconn City Phase Il and
the remaining units of Hongtai Longdi, Hongtai Meishuguan and Electronic
Information Industrial Park.

Taking into account our cash and future operating cash flows, and bank and
other borrowings available, we believe that we have sufficient funding to
support these development plans.
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Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) consists of nine Directors, of whom five
are executive Directors, one is non-executive Director and the remaining
three are independent non-executive Directors.

Wang Jianjun (£ E)

Executive Director and Chairman

Mr. Wang lianjun (E£3£%), aged 58, was appointed as our Chairman and
executive Director on 13 February 2014, and the chairman of nomination
committee on 6 August 2014. Mr. Wang is also the founder and the president
of our Group, responsible for our overall strategy, business development and
investment planning. Mr. Wang has 25 years of experience in the real estate
industry. Mr. Wang is the spouse of Ms. Zhao Ying and the father of Ms. Wang
Wei. Mr. Wang is currently the Vice President of China Real Estate Chamber
of Commerce (2EtEHER ) and President of Park Capital Alliance (& [&
&R BB). Mr. Wang received his college diploma (B%}) in Administration
Management (fTIEE 32) from the Rural Enterprises Managers & Leaders
Institute of the Ministry of Agriculture (22 ZF 40 ED 2B IE#E £ %), located
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), in June 1995. He was qualified as
a Senior Engineer (= 4% Tf2A) by the Title Reform Leadership Group of Hebei
Province (r/4t& Bk FEkE4EE )\ 4H), a governmental authority, in December
2001.

Yang Yun (5 )

Executive Director and Vice President

Mr. Yang Yun (#54t), aged 47, was appointed as our executive Director on
17 March 2014. Mr. Yang is the vice president of our Group, responsible for
strategy and development, expansion of industrial town projects and property
development and overall process management of property development. Mr.
Yang has 22 years of experience in the real estate industry. He received his
bachelor's degree in real estate management (i EAL < &) from Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics (I FE8f &8 AE2), located in the PRC, in
July 1998. He was qualified as an Assistant Economist (Bh3E 48z Hm) by the
Title Reform Office of Langfang Economic Development Zone (ERL FA 3% (@ B
2i3%) in October 1999.

Wang Yagang (E 25 fl)

Executive Director and Vice President

Mr. Wang Yagang (E 3= l), aged 40, was appointed as our executive Director
on 17 March 2014. Mr. Wang Yagang is the vice president of our Group,
responsible for overall management of industrial town projects. Mr. Wang
has 18 years of experience in the real estate industry. He graduated from
Agriculture University of Hebei (jafdk 3£ X 22), located in the PRC, majoring
in Management of Urban Economics (#4872 E1%). Mr. Wang is currently a
representative of the People’s Congress in Langfang City, Hebei Province.

B R 2R E E T IREE AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Huang Peikun (E1Zi#)

Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Huang Peikun (& 1%1#), aged 58, was appointed as our executive Director
on 17 March 2014. Mr. Huang is the Chief Financial Officer of our Group,
responsible for our financial management and control. Mr. Huang has 17
years of experience in business management. He received his master’s
degree in Management Science and Engineering (& I2RI22 6 T 72) from
Zhejiang University (41T KX £2), located in the PRC, in December 1999 and his
Executive Master of Business Administration degree from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology (B&#&EHEAE), in June 2012. He was
qualified as a senior accountant (7= 4 2 #1Ef) by the Department of Personnel
Affairs of Guangdong Province (B & AZEE) in February 2000. Mr. Huang
has been serving as an executive director of China Wan Tong Yuan (Holdings)
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 06966)
since Mar 2021. Mr. Huang was the executive director of China Merchants
Land Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 00978)
from June 2012 to August 2013.

Wang Wei (£ )

Executive Director

Ms. Wang Wei (%), aged 29, was appointed as our executive Director on 10
November 2017. Ms. Wang is the daughter of Mr. Wang Jianjun and Ms. Zhao
Ying. Ms. Wang holds a bachelor’s degree in finance from Shanghai University
of Finance and Economics in June 2013. She worked in the Company on a
part-time basis and in an international investment institution before joining
the Company on full-time basis in July 2017. She is responsible for overseeing
the Group's corporate finance activities and mergers and acquisitions. Ms.
Wang has been serving as an executive director of China Wan Tong Yuan
(Holdings) Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code
06966) since Mar 2021.

Zhao Ying (#58)

Non-executive Director

Ms. Zhao Ying (#878), aged 50, was appointed as our non-executive Director
on 13 February 2014 and a member of remuneration committee on 6 August
2014. Ms. Zhao has 12 years of experience in the real estate industry. Ms.
Zhao is the spouse of Mr. Wang Jianjun and the mother of Ms. Wang Wei.
Ms. Zhao also serves as a non-executive director of China Wan Tong Yuan
(Holdings) Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code
06966) since January 2017.
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Wong Wing Kuen, Albert (£ k)

Independent Non-executive Director

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert (£ k), aged 69, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director and the chairman of the audit committee
on 6 August 2014. Dr. Wong has approximately 24 years of experience in
accounting. He has a broad range of experience serving as directors of
various listed companies, including as an independent non-executive director
of APAC Resources Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with
stock code 01104) since July 2004, an independent non-executive director of
Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange
with stock code 00757) since January 2008, an independent non-executive
director of China Merchants Land Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code 00978) since June 2012, an independent non-
executive director of China Wan Tong Yuan (Holdings) Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 06966) since September 2017,
an independent non-executive director of Capital Finance Holdings Limited
(a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 08239) since
January 2018, an independent non-executive director of China Medical &
HealthCare Group Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with
stock code 00383) since December 2018, and an independent non-executive
director of Dexin China Holdings Company Limited (@ company listed on
the Stock Exchange with stock code 02019) since January 2019. Dr. Wong
was a principal consultant of KND & Co. CPA Limited between April 1994 to
December 2017. He was appointed a principal consultant of KND Associates
CPA Limited since January 2018.

Dr. Wong received a degree of Doctor of Philosophy in Business
Administration from the Bulacan State University, Republic of the Philippines
in December 2010. Dr. Wong is member of the following institutions, including:
a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators;
a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries; a
fellow member of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong; a member of the Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute; a fellow member of Association of
International Accountants; a fellow member of Society of Registered Financial
Planners; a member of The Chartered Institute of Arbitrators; an associate
member of The Chartered Institute of Bankers in Scotland; and a full member
of Macau Society of Certified Practicing Accountants.

Notwithstanding Dr. Wong's engagement as an independent non-executive
director of another seven companies listed on the Stock Exchange, Dr. Wong
confirmed that he would devote sufficient time to act as the independent
non-executive Director based on the following:

o Dr. Wong is neither a full time member of the above-named
companies nor involved in the day-to-day operations or management
of such companies. As such, he has no executive and management
responsibility therein;

R EETEERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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. Dr. Wong is primarily required to attend relevant board meetings,
committee meetings and shareholders’ meetings of the above-named
listed companies. He has maintained a high attendance rate for board
meetings, committee meetings and shareholders’ meetings for such
listed companies during the respective latest financial periods since his
appointment dates;

. Dr. Wong's role as a principal consultant of KND Associates CPA Limited
is on a part-time basis and he does not involve in the daily management
of KND Associates CPA Limited;

o with his background and experience, Dr. Wong is fully aware of the
responsibilities and expected time involvements for independent non-
executive director. He has not found difficulties in devoting to and
managing his time with numerous companies and he is confident that
with his experience in being responsible for several roles, he will be
able to discharge his duties to the Company;

. none of the above-named listed companies that he has directorship
with has questioned or complained about his time devoted to such
companies; and

. Dr. Wong's role in the Group is non-executive in nature and he will not
be involved in the daily management of the Group's business, thus his
engagement as the independent non-executive Director will not require
his full-time participation.

Based on the foregoing, the Directors do not have reasons to believe that
the various positions currently held by Dr. Wong will result in Dr. Wong not
having sufficient time to act as the independent non-executive Director or not
properly discharging his fiduciary duties as a director of the Company.

Hsieh Yafang (&2 5%)

Independent Non-executive Director

Ms. Hsieh Yafang (:i253%), aged 47, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director, and a member of the audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee on 10 November 2017. Ms. Hsieh
is currently a senior presenter and anchor for a channel of Phoenix Satellite
Television Holdings Limited. She has over 20 years of journalist experience
in the PRC and Taiwan. She currently serves on the board of the Hong Kong
alumni association of the Cheung Kong Business School as the Executive Vice
President. Ms. Hsieh received her EMBA from Cheung Kong Business School
in 2007 and her Bachelor of Art with focus in Japanese studies from Soochow
University in Taiwan in 1996.
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Wang Yijiang (£ —3I)

Independent Non-executive Director

Professor Wang Yijiang ((—T), aged 67, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the remuneration committee
and a member of the audit committee and nomination committee on 10
November 2017. Professor Wang is currently a Professor of Economics and
Human Resource Management and Academic Associate Dean of Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business, a senior fellow at the National Center of
Economic Research, Tsinghua University and a Professor Emeritus of the
Carlson School of Management of University of Minnesota. He served as vice
president of the Chinese Economists Society and was a tenure professor of
University of Minnesota and Tsinghua University.

Professor Wang graduated from Peking University with a Bachelor's degree in
Economics in 1982. He then pursued further studies in the United States and
obtained a Master’s degree and a Doctor of Philosophy degree in Economics
in 1989 and 1991, respectively. His research areas cover human resource
management, labour and personnel economics, comparative international
management systems, economics of transition and emerging markets and
economics of organization, and his research findings have been frequently
quoted.

Professor Wang currently serves as a non-executive director of Zhejiang Red
Dragonfly Footwear Co., Ltd. (a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange
with stock code 603116) since September 2016, an independent non-
executive director of Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group Limited (@ company
listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 00908) since August 2015, and
an independent non-executive director of TCL Electronics Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 01070) since February
2016. He was an independent director of Beijing Huatu Hongyang Education
& Culture Corp., Ltd. (@ company listed on National Equities Exchange and
Quotations in the PRC with stock code: 830858) between November 2012
and June 2017, an external director of XCMG Construction Machinery Co.,
Ltd. (@ company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code 000425)
between July 2010 and July 2017, and an independent director of Shenzhen
Zggame Co., Ltd. (@ company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock
code 300052) from March 2014 to May 2020.
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Senior Management
Our senior management is responsible for the day-to-day management of our
business.

Xu Ming (4 85)

Mr. Xu Ming (#:88), aged 54, was appointed as our vice president on 20
March 2006. He is responsible for our capital management and the daily
operation of Langfang VAST. Mr. Xu has over 35 years of experience in
business management. Mr. Xu graduated from Tianjin University of Finance
and Economics (K32BH 48 A £, formerly known as Tianjin College of Finance
and Economics (K281 4&E27), located in the PRC, in master’s course on
economics (%€ E2) in June 1999. He was qualified as a Senior Economist (&
A48 378M) by the Agriculture Bank of China, Hebei branch (B £ 258170k
A 17) in December 1999.

Cui Xiangxu (£ [@8)

Ms. Cui Xiangxu (E[m1/8), aged 51, was appointed as our vice president on 3
August 2006. She is responsible for our finance, cost and legal management.
Ms. Cui has 25 years of experience in business management in the real
estate market. Ms. Cui graduated from the Lang Fang Radio & TV University
(BB EIE TR AE), located in the PRC, majoring in accounting (&€:t£2), a
correspondence course, in July 1992. She was qualified as an Economist (4§
JESRM) by the Medium Level Title Assessment Committee for Langfang Rural
Enterprises (ERtm 45> ¥ b BB FET Z €) in September 2001.

Company Secretary

Mr. Lam Wai Tsang (#¥£4%), aged 37, was appointed as the company
secretary of our Group on 1 February 2018. Mr. Lam is @ member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree of business administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong,
majoring in professional accountancy. He has over 14 years of experience
in audit, accounting and finance with an international audit firm and a listed
company in Hong Kong.
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to ensuring a high standard of corporate
governance practices and continues to closely monitor the compliance with
the applicable requirements. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) except for the following deviation:

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Mr. Wang Jianjun has been assuming the roles of both the
chairman of the Board and the president of the Company since the listing of
the Company'’s shares on 25 August 2014. The Board believes that resting
the roles of both the chairman and the president in the same person has
the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within the Group and enables
more effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. Although
these two roles are performed by the same individual, certain responsibilities
are shared with executive directors to balance the power and authority. In
addition, all major decisions are made in consultation with members of the
board as well as senior management. The Board has three independent non-
executive directors who offer different independent perspectives. Therefore,
the Board is of the view that there are adequate balances of power and
safeguards in place. The Board would review and monitor the situation on a
regular basis and would ensure that the present structure would not impair
the balance of power in the Group.

In respect of code provision A.1.3 of the Code, notice of at least 14 days
should be given of the regular board meeting to give all directors an
opportunity to attend. During the year ended 31 December 2020, one Board
meeting was convened with less than 14 days’ notice to enable the Board
members to react timely and make expeditious decision making in respect of
transactions which were of significance to the Group’s business. As a result,
the aforesaid regular Board meeting was held with a shorter notice period
than required with the consent of all the Directors for that time being. The
Board will do its best endeavours to meet the requirement of code provision
A.1.3 of the Code in the future.

Under Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors and other
non-executive directors should attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of the shareholders.
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Due to other pre-arranged business commitments which must be attended,
Ms. Zhao Ying, being a non-executive director of the Company, was not
present at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 2 June 2020
(the “AGM"). However, Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert, Ms. Hsieh Yafang and
Professor Wang Yijiang, being independent non-executive directors and
members of the audit committee of the Company, were present at the AGM
to ensure an effective communication with the shareholders thereat.

Code provision E.1.2 provides that the chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Wang Jianjun, the Chairman of the
Board, was unable to attend the AGM due to other pre-arranged business
commitments which must be attended. Mr. Huang Peikun, an executive
director and the chief financial officer of the Company who took the chair
of the AGM, together with other members of the Board who attended the
AGM, were of sufficient calibre for answering questions at the AGM and had
answered questions at the AGM competently.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”) as the guidelines for the directors’ dealings in the securities of
the Company.

Specific enquiry has been made to all directors of the Company and all
directors have confirmed that they have complied with the applicable
standards set out in the Model Code throughout year ended 31 December
2020.

Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management, businesses,
strategic directions and financial performance of the Group. The Board holds
regular meetings to discuss the Group’s businesses and operations. The
Board delegates the day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Group to the management team. The delegated functions are reviewed
by the Board periodically to ensure that they accommodate the needs of the
Group.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Board consists of nine Directors, of whom five
are executive directors, one is non-executive director and the remaining
three are independent non-executive directors. The table below sets out the
roles of each member of the Board and their relationships:

Position
Executive Director, Chairman of
the Board and President of the Company

Directors
Wang Jianjun
(spouse of Zhao Ying
and father of Wang Wei)
Yang Yun
Wang Yagang
Huang Peikun

Executive Director and Vice President
Executive Director and Vice President
Executive Director and

Chief Financial Officer
Wang Wei (daughter of Executive Director

Wang Jianjun and Zhao Ying)

Zhao Ying Non-executive Director

(spouse of Wang Jianjun and

mother of Wang Wei)
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert Independent Non-executive Director
Hsieh Yafang Independent Non-executive Director
Wang Yijiang Independent Non-executive Director

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 50 to 55. Upon specific enquiry by the Company, there has been no
change in the information of the Directors required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules since the Company’s last published annual
report.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from all of
the independent non-executive directors and the Board is of the view that all
the independent non-executive directors are independent in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

All Directors (including non-executive directors) are appointed for a specific
term of three years which may be extended as each and the Company
may agree, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting (“AGM") in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company. Article 84 of the articles of association of the Company provides
that at each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

FRREEEMEZEREAR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

M2020F12A31H » EFEHNABRESERK - &
PRERWITEE  —BARIENTEF  HT=
ZREBMIERITES - TRIBEFSSHER
BE R E AR

E= i
E=td WITESE EFEEIR
(BRZEBK b ZUNSIEEE
FRZH)
o MITESREIGR
F TR WITESHRAIBE
=R WITESEREEWHKE
IFR(ERER WiTES
Rz L5)
fizEE] FFMITES
(EREZEBR
IR
FoxiE BIFRITEE
FiCkbs B FRITES
F-I BIIFRITES

EERRRERENGEF BN ES0E5E ©
BARDNRHWEHEBERE  BEAR RS
FIRUAR  BEESHERE T ARE TR
ZB13.51BIE T LA -

AARDEEREBBEFFNITESH LB R
HEEERE - BRE ETRAEIISMG - E
EZERRMBEBFRTESORBYAL -

ZI EERERES
MEEZ(BRIIFNTER) R=F(AIREEE
B EA QR E MIER) O EEERHEST
HARBARAAMERAMAUNKRBFRS
(TRFBFRE DHERERBERET - AQF
HEERARAEMERTE  NEERRAFAS
b ER=0—HNES(IMEEABLIF=K
BE - AARSEE=5—HAZ) ARERT
EREE(RERFEEHEZENALIRED
B=FHmERT K-



Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

Attendance at Meetings of the Board, Shareholders
and Board Committees

During 2020, the Board held 4 regular board meetings, 2 audit committee
meetings, 2 remuneration committee meetings and 2 nomination committee
meetings. As regards general meetings, the Company held the AGM on 2
June 2020.

The table below sets out the attendance of each Director at the relevant
meetings:

EEgeR RREEREERSEE
o HFE RO 8

R2020% - EFERTNRTHESEEH -
MABZZEREH  MAHWERRTHERM
RRAZAREH - RREARME - ARAR
202066 A2 A BITRIBFAE

TERFBISESTNAREHO L FELE -

Number of meetings attended/eligible to
attend for the year ended 31 December 2020
HZ2020512A3M1B L EEHE AEREENEEEE

General Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board meeting Committee Committee Committee
Ezg RRAE ERZEE FMzEg REZEE
Executive Director YTEE
Wang Jianjun TRE 2/4 01 N/A N/A 212
TiER TEA
Yang Yun Hh 3/4 01 N/A N/A N/A
TER TEA TEf
Wang Yagang Bl 2/4 0/1 N/A N/A N/A
A A TiER
Huang Peikun EiE 4/4 ”n N/A N/A N/A
TiER TEA T
Wang Wei I% 4/4 7 N/A N/A N/A
TER TEA TEA
Non-executive Director FHTES
Zhao Ying et 4/4 0N N/A 2/2 N/A
TiER T
Independent Non-executive Director Bk TES
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert Foxig 4/4 111 212 N/A N/A
T NER
Hsieh Yafang HEFH 4/4 11 2/2 2/2 2/2
Wang Yijiang -1 4/4 11 2/2 2/2 2/2
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Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

To assist Directors' continuing professional development, the Company
has arranged trainings and recommended Directors to attend relevant
seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. All the Directors
understand the importance of continuous professional development and are
committed to participating in any suitable training to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Directors are also continually updated with legal
and regulatory requirements, and business and market changes to facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities through various Board meetings and
resolutions. The table below sets out the individual training records of each
Director received for the year ended 31 December 2020:

Read materials

EENFREEXRRE
RBBERNHASEERR  ARRERHE
WiEHEEHF AR T ABERIENRER
HBEEE - 2REEFAPFEEXERRNER
M WS EERDE R IR IIA B R R BT
EMBLE - EEZMEBSEETGHLRE
& THESAEREEREERTE  EBRMS
BWRMER - MERTTRE - TREFIVE
20205 12A31 A L FE R EEMERIEIIME
RFDER -

Attending seminar(s)/programme(s)/
conference(s)/training(s) relevant to
the Group's business or directors’ duties

HEARASEEERRESHEN

B R Ny Yt V-t

Wang Jianjun FTEE v v/
Yang Yun B v/ v
Wang Yagang F R v 4
Huang Peikun =T i v v
Wang Wei B v v
Zhao Ying 8 v/ v/
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert ok v v
Hsieh Yafang Han v v
Wang Yijiang S il v v

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company, consisting of three independent non-
executive directors, namely Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert (chairman), Ms.
Hsieh Yafang and Professor Wang Yijiang, was established with specific
written terms of reference and is responsible for the review and supervision
of the Group’s financial reporting process and internal controls, and
recommendation on the re-appointment of external auditors. For the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee has met twice to review
the unaudited interim financial statements for the six months ended 30 June
2020 and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019, the risk management and internal control system of the Group, and
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit function and discuss with
the management and the external auditors the accounting principles and
practices which may affect the Group and financial reporting matters.

The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 comply with the applicable
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and all other applicable legal
requirements. The Audit Committee therefore recommended for the Board’s
approval of the Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, consisting of two independent non-executive
directors and one non-executive director, was established with specific
written terms of reference, and is responsible for making recommendations
on the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all the
Directors and senior management of the Company including making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive directors and senior management and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy
for approval by the Board. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Remuneration Committee met twice to review the remuneration policy for
Directors and senior management of the Company and assess performance
of the executive directors. The remuneration for the Directors and senior
management comprises basic salary, retirement benefits and discretionary
bonus. Details of the amount of emoluments of Directors paid for the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements. Members of the Remuneration Committee are Professor Wang
Yijiang (chairman), Ms. Zhao Ying and Ms. Hsieh Yafang.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee, consisting of one executive director and two
independent non-executive directors, was established with specific written
terms of reference, and is responsible for considering the suitability of a
candidate to act as a director on the basis of the candidate’s qualification,
experience, integrity and potential contribution to the Company, and
approving and terminating the appointment of a director. A candidate to
be appointed as independent non-executive director must also meet the
independence requirement set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee met twice to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board. Members of the
Nomination Committee are Mr. Wang Jianjun (chairman), Ms. Hsieh Yafang
and Professor Wang Yijiang.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy. The Company seeks to
achieve board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
All board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. As at the date of this report, the Board comprises
of nine directors, of whom six are males and three are females. Three are
independent non-executive directors, thereby promoting critical review
and control of the management process. The Board is also characterised
by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of gender, nationality,
professional background and skills.
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Corporate Governance Functions

No corporate governance committee has been established. The Board is
responsible for performing the corporate governance functions such as
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on corporate
governance, reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, reviewing
and monitoring the Company's policies and practices in compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, reviewing the Company's compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

Directors’ Responsibility in Respect of
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs and results of the Group. In doing so, the Directors
opted for suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently and
used accounting estimates as appropriate in the circumstances. With the
assistance of the accounting and finance staff, the Directors ensured that the
financial statements of the Group are prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and appropriate financial reporting standards.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, in relation to their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on
pages 81to 87.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management and
internal control system of the Group, and an effective risk management
and internal control system enhances the Group's ability in achieving
business objectives, safeguarding assets, complying with applicable laws
and regulations and contributes to the effectiveness and efficiency of its
operations. As such, the Group’s internal control procedures include a
comprehensive budgeting, information reporting and performance monitoring
system. The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal audit function and the Group's risk management and internal control
system annually, covering all key control, including financial, operational
and compliance. The examination consisted of enquiry, discussion and
validation through observation and inspection (if necessary). The result of
review will be reported to the Board and some measures would be proposed
if there is any area for improvement. The Board has conducted reviews of
the risk management and internal control systems and is satisfied with the
effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management and internal control
system of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2020.

R EETEERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

BREAMAE
ENN Tlﬂiﬁkiﬁcﬁm% ZES -EFER
BTRERRGEE - ZZD%‘JE& CIR/ASIE(EES

ﬁiﬁﬂ’]ﬁﬁl%&%‘ﬁ : Fnz Ebﬂl‘ii$&?%— RE
EERENBIRSETERR BRI REER
RAEMBREERAERETE &f%&ﬁb%
E o RAARRETEEEAMESABNLEE
ATRIREEATER

ESARMBREEAENEE

BEERR REAEAEERHEAEERATR
Hﬁ%ﬁi%,ﬁﬁﬁﬂkuﬁi&%ﬁmﬁﬁ“i&%«% ° Ffﬂlt B
FEBVEREREANGTBE B
TNEMEEHEET E@E#&Eﬁ%/\ﬁﬂ’ﬁﬁ%ﬁj}? :
EEMRARENMBREIIREEERE ME
BB REERRE

RATSMNEZEENEE) « ERT SFTAITTHERE
BEHAREMBHRRBERTNEAFNES
ERTABIZ AN S

2 B B 2 A B B

EEEHER  HABEASENREBRERE KNI
IR RS MARNRKREE RN E RG]
MEREEEREBEE REEELZ RET
BERARREREEN  WREAEE R EER
BB - At - AEBEKANEIERFRIES

EHIEE - ﬁ##ﬁ#&&%%ﬁ%f%? o BREER
B HF R AR E NI R AR AN
B [\ f TR N MR R R A MEF %Pﬁﬁfﬁﬁi

= - B SERAREE BERREE
A AWM ERBRERERE(WER) -
BREAEFEER  NEEAZESEZRE -
TR A T - REE2020F12A318 LEF
B EEgiTRAREERATEZERS R
RARENEREEMAREZERGERATRT
2o



Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

The Company regulates the handling and propagation of inside information
according to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” published
by the Securities and Futures Commission and as indicated in the corporate
responsibility policy and various affiliate proceedings to ensure inside
information remains confidential until the disclosure of such information is
appropriately approved, and the propagation of such information is efficiently
and consistently made. The Company regularly reminds the Directors and
employees about the due compliance with all policies regarding the inside
information with the latest regulatory updates.

Auditors’ Remuneration
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total fees paid/payable in respect
of services provided by the Group's external auditors are set out below:

ARRRBEREFINEEBERZRERHNIA
BHHEWEES I REEXEERKEAZERER
AT HER R AARBIEE - UHERAREHE
SREERENERRE - MARESN M
BRE—BARET - ARFEHIREEE RE
SR RETRESOHEEENNMEARTHEE

o

el
>3+§

R AT <=

BE2020F12A31B IEFE » slAKESNEZH
RMPTIR VRIS EN, RN VBB BHEIIMT

Services rendered Frid iy RS Fees paid/payable
Bt E A

RMB'000

AREFT

Audit services FEEHRTE 3,350
Review services ERIRM 1,050

Remuneration of Senior Management
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the remuneration of the senior
management members is set out by band as follows:

SR EIEE /TN
HZE2020F12A31HILFE - aABEEREN
AR EYI T

Band of remuneration N Aa B Number of person
A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 TZ 1,000,000 2

Company Secretary

Mr. Lam Wai Tsang was appointed as the company secretary of the Company
on 1 February 2018. Mr. Lam has complied with the relevant professional
training requirement for company secretary under Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

Shareholders’ Rights

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders of the Company and the Board.
An AGM of the Company shall be held each year at the place as may be
determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an AGM, shall be
called an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM").
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Right to Convene EGM

Any one or more members holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after
the deposit of such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, be
signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company at the Company's principal place of
business at Units 3707-08, 37/F, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong, and such may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share registrars
in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the company secretary of the Company will ask the Board
to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered members. On the contrary,
if the request has been verified to not be in order, the shareholders
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, an EGM will not be
convened as requested. If within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s), may convene a meeting in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Ccompany.

The notice period to be given to all the registered members for
consideration of the proposal raised by the requisitionist(s) concerned
at the EGM varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

- Atleast 21 clear days’ notice (and not less than 10 clear business
days) if the proposal constitutes a special resolution of the
Company in EGM,;

- Atleast 14 clear days’ notice (and not less than 10 clear business
days) for proposal of all other EGMs.
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2. Right to Put Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
shall be in writing and sent by post to the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the company secretary.

3. Right to Put Forward Proposals at General
Meetings
There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Companies Act (As
Revised) of the Cayman Islands. However, shareholders are requested
to follow Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association for
including a resolution at an EGM. The requirements and procedures
are set out above. Pursuant to Article 85 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, no person other than a director retiring at a meeting
shall, unless recommended by the directors for election, be eligible for
appointment as a director at any general meeting unless a notice signed
by a member (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to
attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his
intention to propose such person for election and also a notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the registration office provided
that the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s) are
given, shall be at least 7 days and that (if the notices are submitted after
the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election) the period for lodging of such notice(s) shall commence on the
day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of
such general meeting. The written notice must state that person’s
biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules. The
procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a person for
election as director is posted on the Company’s website.

Investors Relations

The Company has maintained a continuing dialogue with the Company'’s
shareholders and investors through various channels, including, among
others, the Company’s interim reports, notices, announcements and the
Company'’s website at www.vastiud.com. The Company also holds press
conferences from time to time at which the executive directors and senior
management of the Group are available to answer questions regarding the
Group's business and performance.

Change in Constitutional Documents
For the year ended 31 December 2020, there had been no change to the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association.
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The Board is pleased to present its report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Principal Activities and Analysis of Operations
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of
the Group are the provision of services in the planning, development and
operation of large-scale industrial towns in China.

Business Review and Performance

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion and analysis of
the Group's performance during the year and the material factors underlying
its results and financial position as required by schedule 5 to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) are included
in the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
sections from pages 6 to 9 and pages 10 to 49 of this report, respectively. The
future development of the Group’s business is discussed in the Chairman’s
Statement from pages 6 to 9 of this report. The Chairman’s Statement and
the Management Discussion and Analysis section form part of this Directors’
Report.

Results

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
pages 88 to 89.

Dividend

The Board has proposed to recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.18 per share in cash to the shareholders of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2020, representing a total payment of approximately
HK$297,223,000. The final dividend is subject to approval of the shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM") of the Company proposed
to be held on 24 June 2021.

Upon shareholders’ approval to be obtained at the AGM, the final dividend
will be payable on or around 27 October 2021 to the shareholders of the
Company whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
at the close of business on 12 October 2021.
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Closure of Register of Members and Record
Date

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 21 June 2021
to 24 June 2021, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be registered, for the purpose of ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers of shares of the Company
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and appropriate transfer
forms must be lodged for registration with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 18 June 2021.

The period of closure of the register of members of the Company for the
purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlements to the final dividend is
from 13 October 2021 to 18 October 2021 (both days inclusive), and during
such period, no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order
to qualify for the entitlement of the final dividend, all transfers of shares of
the Company accompanied by the relevant share certificates and appropriate
transfer forms must be lodged for registration with the Company'’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 12 October 2021.

Five Year Financial Summary
Five year financial summary of the Group is set out on page 244.

Tax Relief and Exemption
The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

Investment Properties
Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group are set out in
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Borrowings and Capitalization of Interests
Details of borrowings are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of the Group's capitalized interest expenses and other
borrowing costs during the year under review are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Convertible Bonds, Notes and Senior Notes

On 27 December 2017, the Company entered into a subscription agreement
(the "2018 Subscription Agreement”) with Chance Talent Management
Limited (the 2018 Subscriber”) and other parties, pursuant to which the 2018
Subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and the Company has
conditionally agreed to issue, the three-year term 6% convertible notes in
the principal amount of US$50 million (the “2018 Convertible Bonds") and
the three-year term 6% notes in the principal amount of US$110 million (the
“2018 Notes”) (the “2018 Subscription”). The 2018 Convertible Bonds and the
2018 Notes were guaranteed by Mr. Wang Jianjun, Ms. Zhao Ying, Profit East
Limited and certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Completion of the 2018 Subscription took place on 9 January 2018 and
the 2018 Convertible Bonds and the 2018 Notes were issued to the 2018
Subscriber on the same day. Holders of the 2018 Convertible Bonds have
the right at any time during the term of the 2018 Convertible Bonds requiring
the Company to convert all or any part of the principal amount outstanding
under the 2018 Convertible Bonds into Shares of the Company at the initial
conversion price of HK$4.75 per Share, subject to adjustments according to
terms of the agreement.

Up to 31 December 2020, a total of US$64 million of the 2018 Notes had been
redeemed by the Group.

On 8 January 2021, the Company (among other parties) and the 2018
Subscriber entered into a deed of amendment to extend the maturity date of
the 2018 Convertible Bonds and the remaining outstanding 2018 Notes to 10
January 2022 and amend certain terms of the 2018 Subscription Agreement,
the terms of the 2018 Convertible Bonds and the 2018 Notes, and other
relevant transaction documents. The conversion price of the 2018 Convertible
Bonds was amended to HK$3.54 per Share, subject to adjustments according
to terms of the agreement. As of the date of this report, the outstanding
principal amount of each of the 2018 Convertible Bonds and the 2018 Notes
was US$50 million and US$46 million, respectively.

On 28 June 2019, the Company issued the 13% senior notes due 2021
with a principal amount of US$180 million (the “2019 Senior Notes”). The
Senior Notes are listed and traded on the Singapore Stock Exchange.
Details of issuance of the 2019 Senior Notes are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 25 June 2019 and 26 June 2019. The net proceeds after
deducting the estimated expenses payable by the Group in connection with
the issuance of the 2019 Senior Notes amounted to approximately US$175.4
million. As of the date of this report, the outstanding principal amount of the
2019 Senior Notes was US$180 million.

Details of the Group’s convertible bonds, notes and senior notes are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Share Capital

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year under review
and as at 31 December 2020 are set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Premium and Reserves

Movements in the share premium and reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year under review are set out on page 92 in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and in note 49 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves
The Company’s total distributable reserves as at 31 December 2020
amounted to RMB437,492,000.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group provided guarantees to banks and non-bank financial institutions
which granted mortgage loans to certain purchasers of the Group's
properties. As at 31 December 2020, such mortgage loan guarantees
amounted to RMB728.0 million compared to RMB954.2 million as at 31
December 2019. Such guarantees would be released upon the earlier of: (i)
the transfer of the relevant building ownership certificates to the purchasers;
or (ii) the satisfaction of obligations under the mortgage loans by the
purchasers.

Pledge of Assets

Certain assets of the Group have been pledged to the banks, trust fund
companies and other financial institutions to secure certain loans and
banking facilities granted to the Group. For details, please refer to note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements in this report.

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and
Disposals

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group entered into equity
transfer agreements with independent third parties in respect of the
acquisition of the entire equity of two companies at a total consideration
of RMB77.2 million. Besides, during the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group has disposed of its entire equity interests in four subsidiaries to
independent third parties for a total consideration of RMB9.5 million. The
Group recognised a gain of RMB2.1 million in the profit or loss.

These transactions did not constitute a discloseable transaction of the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules as none of the
applicable percentage ratios reached 5% or more at the time of the entering
into of such disposal agreement.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not make any material acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies and significant
investments during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Major Suppliers and Customers

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the percentages of purchases
from the Group’s largest supplier and the five largest suppliers were 36.4%
and 88.0%, respectively. The percentages of sales attributable to the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers were 18.6% and 64.8%,
respectively.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their close associates,
nor the substantial shareholders had any interest in the five largest customers
and suppliers of the Group.

Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately RMB5,213,000 (2019: RMB3,052,000).

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers
and Suppliers

The Group recognises that employees are one of the significant assets of
the Group. The Group aims to continue establishing a caring environment
to employees and emphasise the personal development of its employees.
The Group maintains a good relationship with our customers and suppliers.
The Group aims to continue providing quality products and services to our
customers and establishing co-operation strategy with our suppliers.

Remuneration Policy and Retirement Benefits
of the Group

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 838 employees (31
December 2019: 938 employees). The Group provides employees with
competitive remuneration and benefits, and the remuneration policy will be
reviewed on a regular basis based on the performance and contribution of
the employees and the industry remuneration level. In addition, the Group
also provides various training courses to enhance the employees’ skills and
capabilities in all aspects.

Details of the Group's the retirement benefit plans are set out in note 42 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) pursuant to
a resolution passed on 21 July 2015 which will be valid for 10 years from the
adoption date for the primary purpose of providing incentives to Directors
and eligible employees as incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the development and the growth of the Group.
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Under the Scheme, the Company may grant to eligible employees including
Directors, employees, consultants, business partners or advisers, to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Under the rules of the Scheme, the
Board has discretion to set a minimum period for which a share option has
to be held before it can be exercised. Such discretion allows the Board to
provide incentives to grantees to remain employed with the Group during
the minimum period and thereby enabling the Group to benefit from the
continued services of such grantees during such period. This discretion,
coupled with the power of the Board to impose any performance target as it
considers appropriate before any share option can be exercised, enables the
Group to incentivise the grantees. Subject to the Listing Rules, the Board also
has discretion in determining the subscription price in respect of any share
option.

The total number of shares that may fall to be allotted and issued under the
Scheme after the resolution regarding the adoption of the Scheme is passed
on 21 July 2015 were 163,764,100 shares, representing 10% of the total
number of shares in issue at the date on which the Scheme as adopted.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise
of the share options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company to any participants (including
cancelled, exercised and outstanding share options), in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares in issue,
unless (i) a circular is despatched to the shareholders; (ii) the shareholders
approve the grant of the share options in excess of the 1% limit referred to in
this paragraph; and (iii) the relevant participant and his close associates (or his
associates if the participant is a connected person) shall abstain from voting.
The number and terms (including the subscription price) of share options to
be granted to such participant(s) must be fixed before shareholders” approval.

On 28 July 2015, 90,750,000 share options to subscribe for up to a total of
90,750,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company were granted
to certain individuals under the Scheme. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 28 July 2015.

As at 31 December 2020, the number of shares in respect of which options
remained outstanding under the Scheme was 50,700,000, and the remaining
life of the scheme is approximately 4 years and 7 months.
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The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the

VAN B i BRI F AR AT 8 T MR -

year:
Price of Company's
Number of share options shares
R HEHA KR FARBIER
Date of Exercise Exercise
At1 At 31 grant of priceof  period of
January Granted Lapsed  December share share share
Name or category 2020 during during 2020 options options option At grant At exercise
of participant R20206  theyear  theyear  }2020% RoEE  ROBE  ROSDE date date
SMEHEERER 1818 REARE RERXXK 128318 REAH e IS RREAE  ROEAH
HKS HKS HKS
Executive directors
YTES
Yang Yun 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000 28-Jul-2015 3.02 Note 1 2.80 N/A
BR 20158 i3l NEA
7H288
Wang Yagang 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000  28-Jul-2015 3.02 Note 1 2.80 N/A
TZA 20155 Al ~Em
7R288
Huang Peikun 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000 28-Jul-2015 302 Note 1 2.80 N/A
Hi 20158 P TR
7R288
13,500,000 - - 13,500,000
Other employees and 37,800,000 - (600,000 37,200,000  28-Jul-2015 302 Note 1 2.80 N/A
those who have 2015%F il TR
contributed or may 7H288
contribute to the Group
HitEE R EERTHHEEEE
EHERHAL
51,300,000 - (600,000 50,700,000
Note 1: One-third of which are exercisable during the periods from 28 July 2016 to 31 MizE1 . =52 —R{H AR 201657 A28 H E£2022

July 2022, from 28 July 2017 to 31 July 2022 and from 28 July 2019 to 31 July

2022, respectively.

Details of the Group's Share Option Scheme are set out in note 43 to the

consolidated financial statements.

F7ANBHEATE - BH=H
JARA20174E7 A28 B 2202247 A31 A #if 1T
& - BT =5 2 — Bk EREZER 2019567 A28
A Z202247 A31 B EARE1T(E »

43
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2020 and
up to the date of this report were:

Position
Executive Director, Chairman of
the Board and President of the Company

Directors
Wang Jianjun

Yang yun Executive Director and Vice President
Wang Yagang Executive Director and Vice President
Huang Peikun Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
Wang Wei Executive Director

Zhao Ying Non-executive Director

Wwong Wing Kuen, Albert Independent Non-executive Director

Hsieh Yafang Independent Non-executive Director

Wang Yijiang Independent Non-executive Director

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 50 to 55. Upon specific enquiry by the Company, there has been no
change in the information of the Directors required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules since the Company's last published annual
report.

All Directors are appointed for a specific term of three years which may
be extended as each and the Company may agree, subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the AGM in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company. Article 84 of the articles of association of the
Company provides that at each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director
(including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with any member of the Group which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without the payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Significant Contracts
Save as disclosed in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which any Director or Controlling Shareholder of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the financial
year or at any time during the financial year under review.
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Directors’ Rights to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year under review,
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that
would enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their spouses or children
under the age of 18, were granted any right to subscribe for the equity or
debt securities of the Company or any other body corporate or had exercised
any such right.

Disclosure of Interests

Directors

As at 31 December 2020, the interest or short positions of the Directors or
the chief executive of the Company in the shares or underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company:

EEREROUESFHNER

BAREREESN AR HEEMMBR RN
Bl EAF E WM BT L EM R AR
AIERARERB AR A REAEMEAB RN
DREFMER - MEEEFRWEFEMAEH8
BRA T F R TR A BB A R B
HAit)E NE AR EBEFOEN - BETE
BATE TR SRR -

EEEE

2=
M2020F12A318 » AARIESREBITHRAER
RARNE REAREEE(FE R FHFRIHEED
([FEH RS ED ) EXVER) B A% {5 S8 R 19
MEHFFHEEREESR MR EOFEIS2EAA
RAIETBERZEMATREEE « SRR _E AR BIFIE%
10FTEIREST RIZE S 1T AE AR 7] B A2 iy i
WIGKBIAT ¢

RARERD - BN REFNIFR

Number of

underlying
shares held  Approximate Amount of
Number of under equity  percentage of debentures
Name of Director Nature of interest shares held derivatives  shareholding held

BERA

FTETAREN R
EEpR ERME PR S E HBERHEE BB FiiESSE
Ms. Zhao Ying (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 1,221,565,664 - 73.98% US$11,500,000
L () R LB R 11,500,00057C
Mr. Wang Jianjun (Note 2) Interest of spouse 1,221,565,664 - 73.98% US$11,500,000
FEELE(MF2) il EER 11,500,00057C
Mr. Huang Peikun Beneficial owner 220,000 4,500,000 0.29% US$3,000,000
HiEEE ERBEEA 3,000,00057T
Mr. Yang Yun Beneficial owner = 4,500,000 0.27% -
BarrE EnEBA
Mr. Wang Yagang Beneficial owner = 4,500,000 0.27% =
FHR%E EnEBA

Ms. Wang Wei Beneficial owner - - - US$6,000,000
Fhxrt BRBEEA 6,000,000 T

B R 2R E E T IREE AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes:

(1) Ms. Zhao Ying is the sole shareholder of Profit East Limited and is deemed to be
interested in the 1,216,812,664 shares and debentures held by Profit East Limited.
In addition, Tai Shing International Investment Company Limited (“Tai Shing") is
interested in 4,753,000 shares of the Company. Tai Shing is wholly-owned by Lily
Charm Holding Limited, which is wholly owned by TMF (Cayman) Ltd. on trust for
The Hope Trust. Ms. Zhao Ying, as the sole settlor and sole member of The Hope
Trust's protective committee, established The Hope Trust, which is an irrevocable
discretionary trust with TMF (Cayman) Ltd. as the trustee for the benefit of Ms.
Zhao Ying and her issue. As such, Ms. Zhao Ying is also deemed to be interested
in the shares held by Tai Shing.

(2 Mr. Wang lJianjun, the spouse of Ms. Zhao Ying, is deemed to be interested in all
the shares and debentures in which Ms. Zhao Ying is interested.

Saved as disclosed above and in the sub-section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above, so far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors or
chief executives had registered an interest or short position in any shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2020, the interests of relevant persons (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the Shares or the underlying shares, as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of SFO, were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company:

Name of shareholder Nature of interest

e

(1) HEZTAMNRBRARME—RE  WHEAR
FRBR AT EE1,216,812,664 115 K 5
PEEA R o I - FRERREBR AR
B 1) RAZRA F]4,753,0000 A 15 R B HE 2 - TRB%
1 Lily Charm Holding Limited 2 & # A& » M TMF
(Cayman) Ltd.fE&The Hope Trustf) 2t A2 &
ALily Charm Holding Limited ° The Hope Trustg
BT (fEAKE —ZFEA KThe Hope Trust{R &
ZBgHME—R B )AL ° The Hope TrustA#E#8
ZHEEFLAEZ=HA - ABATMF (Cayman) Ltd.
BEZTEAN TR EEET - Bt - BB
TR AR REASF AR DR EA s -

2 IBFRERERLLIORE  BRARMER
THARENEIRND RESFTEAER o

B EXX R EXT R BR8N B R EEE SN - &
EEA BEESSATETRABEARRIE
IR AR i B S E AR IR 5 R I &
{IEE3521A T AL A ST G R TR A ©

FERR
#2020F12A318 - RIRD ARG P #EF IR
BEHRIEEHFEIB6IEBFE NS DML
BRESKARMEBAL(ESRARAEER
TTHABBRIN Rz T

RAR RIS AR D TR
Approximate

percentage of
shareholding

Number of
securities held

{h AR

BRERE B EEME Fris®EFHE BABEDL
Profit East Limited Beneficial Owner 1,216,812,664 73.69%
FIRBRAT EmaA
Mr. Wang Wei (Note 1) Interest in a controlled Corporation 104,298,336 6.32%
F A (R A E S
Shenzhen Mingde Holding Development Co., Ltd.  Interest in a controlled Corporation 104,298,336 6.32%

(Note 1)
YR EERERAR AR (M) ZiEflEE R
S.F. Holding Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Interest in a controlled Corporation 104,298,336 6.32%
JEE AR D B BR A B (FEET) SRS EE S
Shenzhen S.F. Taisen Holding (Group) Interest in a controlled Corporation

Co., Ltd. (Note 1) 104,298,336 6.32%
A e L RRIZAR(EE)BRA R (HIEET) RS EE R
SF Holding Limited (Note 1) Interest in a controlled Corporation 104,298,336 6.32%
JIE &2 1A A BR A Rl * (B 1) RiEGEE R
Celestial Ocean Investments Limited (Note 1) Beneficial Owner 104,298,336 6.32%

RBFREERAR (M) EmEAA
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of shareholder Nature of interest securities held shareholding
{h IR
BRRERE, HE EEME iR 52 E BHRED
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 115,411,263 6.99%
PRESIREGREEAT(MIFE2) ZiEHEE R
China Construction Bank Corporation (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 115,411,263 6.99%
BB RITIRG AR A F (MEE2) ZIEHEE R
CCB International Group Holdings Limited (Note 2)  Interest in a controlled corporation 115,411,263 6.99%
BITER S EIZER AR AR (M3E2) ZIEHEE R
CCB Financial Holdings Limited (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 115,411,263 6.99%
BITerRMERBR AR (MEE2) ZiEHEE R
CCB International (Holdings) Limited (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 115,411,263 6.99%
IR B (%) AR A A (F7E2) ZiEHEE R
CCBI Investments Limited (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 115,411,263 6.99%
BIRBR R E AR AT (H5E2) G EE R
Chance Talent Management Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 115,411,263 6.99%

76

Chance Talent Management Limited (f$352) BEmEA A

*  For identification only * EHER

Notes: MiEE

(1) Celestial Ocean Investments Limited was directly interested in 104,298,336 shares (1) 720205128310 * KEREER A RNARQT

B R 2R E E T IREE AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

of the Company as at 31 December 2020. Celestial Ocean Investments Limited
was directly wholly-owned by SF Holding Limited, which was, in turn, directly
wholly-owned by Shenzhen S.F. Taisen Holding (Group) Co., Ltd. Shenzhen
S.F. Taisen Holding (Group) Co., Ltd. was directly wholly-owned by S.F. Holding
Co., Ltd., which was, in turn, owned as to 59.3% by Shenzhen Mingde Holding
Development Co., Ltd.. Shenzhen Mingde Holding Development Co., Ltd. was
owned as to 99.9% by Mr. Wang Wei. Therefore, each of SF Holding Limited,
Shenzhen S.F. Taisen Holding (Group) Co., Ltd., S.F. Holding Co., Ltd., Shenzhen
Mingde Holding Development Co., Ltd. and Mr. Wang Wei was deemed to be
interested in the 104,298,336 shares in which Celestial Ocean Investments Limited
was interested.

Chance Talent Management Limited, the subscriber of the 2018 Convertible
Bonds, was directly interested in 115,411,263 shares of the Company as at 31
December 2020 (the number of shares involved will be affected by the conversion
price of the 2018 Convertible Bonds which is subject to adjustments according
to terms of the agreement). Chance Talent Management Limited was directly
wholly-owned by CCBI Investments Limited, which was, in turn, directly wholly-
owned by CCB International (Holdings) Limited. CCB International (Holdings)
Limited was directly wholly-owned by CCB Financial Holdings Limited, which
was, in turn, directly wholly-owned by CCB International Group Holdings Limited.
CCB International Group Holdings Limited was directly wholly-owned by China
Construction Bank Corporation, which was owned as to 57.11% by Central Huijin
Investment Ltd. Therefore, each of CCBI Investments Limited, CCB International
(Holdings) Limited, CCB Financial Holdings Limited, CCB International Group
Holdings Limited, China Construction Bank Corporation and Central Huijin
Investment Ltd. was deemed to be interested in the 115,411,263 shares in which
Chance Talent Management Limited was interested.

104,298 336X M tn R B E e ins - RBIREHR
RARAIELIZERERAREEEEHS  MIE
BIERERARBERYIBLRHRZER(EE)E
RAREERZEHRE - FYIBLRRIEKR(EE)
BRAFAHIBELZEEROERATNEEEER
B MIEZER DB R A B RRYIAEERE
BERARIHEAES.3% - AINABIZRERER
NAEHRTEEEHEA9.9% « At » BLIZ=KH
RAR - ORIEERRIZER(EE) BRI - JE
LIERRNBRAR - FYIBEIZERERERA
ARTHALESERRARKEREBRAFE
AHEZERI104,298, 336 AX (D R R A HERS ©

720205128318 + Chance Talent Management
Limited (2018 F AT M EH KRB A ) R AR A
115,411,263 M A BEEER (RHEB &
Z2018F AT EHREHFNRRETE  MERES
W E T ) - Chance Talent Management
Limited B IRBIRIREBR AR EE T EHE -
MmERRER IR EBR AR A BERER(ER)E
RAREZEZERS - BRERGZER)BRAF
HETERIZERBERARERESEHRS - MET
SRZERAERAANEETEREBERAERA
RIEEE2AHE - BITEREEERERARH
PEEZRITRNHDEBRAREEZEHS - hP
BIRZRRITRMDERAABETRESREGRE
ERRIHEAS7.11% - At - ERERBEBR
AR BIRER(ER)BRAF - BITERIER
BRAR - BITBERSEZERBR AR - REZ
RIBITRODEBR DA RFRESREFRET
A A& B # R A 1 Chance Talent Management
Limited # /5 # & A9 115,411,263 A% B 1 7 %k 5 &
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Saved as disclosed above, so far as the directors are aware, no other persons
had registered an interest or short position in any shares or underlying shares
of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified.

Competing Interests

During the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the Directors is considered
to have an interest in any business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

Ms. Zhao Ying and Profit East Limited, the controlling shareholders of the
Company (the “Controlling Shareholders”), have entered into a deed of non-
competition in favour of the Company on 6 August 2014 (the “Deed of Non-
competition”). Details of the Deed of Non-Competition have been set out in
the prospectus of the Company dated 13 August 2014. There has been no
change to the terms of the Deed of Non-competition for the year ended 31
December 2020.

During the reporting period, no written notice of any New Opportunity
(as defined in the Deed of Non-competition) had been received by the
Company. The Company has received confirmations on compliance with
their undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition from the Controlling
Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Confirmation”).
Upon receiving the Confirmation, the independent non-executive directors
of the Company have reviewed the same as part of the annual review
process. In view of the above, the independent non-executive directors have
confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain, there is no breach by any of the
Controlling Shareholders of the non-competition undertakings in the Deed of
Non-competition given by them.

Loan Agreements with Covenants relating
to Specific Performance of the Controlling
Shareholders

Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Convertible Bonds and the 2018 Notes,
the Controlling Shareholders have covenanted to, until all obligations under
the 2018 Convertible Bonds or the 2018 Notes have been performed and
discharged in full by the Company and the guarantors, maintain an aggregate
beneficial ownership (directly or indirectly) of not less than (a) 51% of the
entire issued capital of the Company at all times on or prior to the date on
which all liabilities of the Company under the three-year term convertible
bonds in the principal amount of US$50,000,000 and the three-year term
notes in the principal amount of US$50,000,000 issued by the Company on 23
December 2015 have been unconditionally and irrevocably discharged in full;
and (b) 34% of the entire issued capital of the Company at all times after the
above-mentioned date. A breach of any of such covenant may constitute an
event of default pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Convertible Bonds and the
2018 Notes.

B ESCHEESD - EEHA B AL
A D EUEARG SRR B B R EAREES
RN EPIEIS AT RS RAT BANEY
MR -

RS
REE2020F12A31HLFE - BESEHRA
M) B A S (B S E B ok R R I R R R Bl AT B
ERRFH ST R -

201458 A6 + A A R A% SR it 58 22 & K F)
FHERAR([1EREEER I L —HUARE AZ
AN TBRFZLY([THEFLL]) - TRFRL
FBEHNART A A2014F8 A13E MBI E
2R - BE20205F12A31B ILEE - THEZY
1R T -

RERERE - ARBIREETATES (TER
THRFRL)MEMBA - HZ2020F12A31H
IEFE - ARREEEERRRIREER T RS
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)@MW ARABR2015512 A23B BTN AL HE
/50,000,000 T = FHA T B REHF R A S
/50,000,000 TTH) = FHAZIR A TR 2P E &
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The above requirements as to the maintenance of control result in the
disclosure obligation under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules.

Connected Transactions and Related Party
Transactions

On 4 January 2021, Profit East Limited provided an unsecured loan of
US$4,500,000 to the Company at an interest rate of 12% per annum for a
term of six months. As the loan is unsecured and conducted on normal
commercial terms or better to the Group, the loan is fully exempt pursuant to
Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

On 28 June 2019, Mr. Huang Peikun, Ms. Wang Wei and Profit East Limited
have each purchased the 2019 Senior Notes. The subscription price of the
2019 Senior Notes payable by Mr. Huang Peikun, Ms. Wang Wei and Profit
East Limited was 100% of the principal amount of the 2019 Senior Notes
respectively purchased and was the same as the subscription price payable
by the other investors of the 2019 Senior Notes. As the 2019 Senior Notes
were issued under normal commercial terms, and that the 2019 Senior Notes
were not secured by the assets of the Group, the purchase of the 2019 Senior
Notes by Mr. Huang Peikun, Ms. Wang Wei and Profit East Limited are exempt
connected transactions under Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, none of the related party transactions constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and there was no connected transaction
or continuing connected transaction of the Group that need to be disclosed
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group in the
normal course of business are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Directors (including all the independent non-executive Directors) have
confirmed that the connected transactions disclosed above are on normal
commercial terms and their respective terms are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The Company
has complied with all the reporting, announcement and other applicable
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the
connected transactions disclosed above.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the period.

R EETEERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of association
of the Company or the laws of Cayman Islands, the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, and there is no restriction against such rights
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Articles of Association provide that the Directors are entitled to be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain in or about the execution
of their duty in their respective offices, provided that this indemnity shall not
extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to such Director. The Company has purchased and maintained Directors’
liability insurance during the year under review, which provides appropriate
coverage for the Directors.

Environmental Policy

The Company is committed to supporting environmental sustainability. The
Company encourages environmental protection and adheres to the principle
of recycling and reducing, including encouraging double-sided printing and
copying, setting up recycling bins, promoting using recycled paper and
reducing energy consumption by switching off idle lightings and electrical
appliance. The Company will review its environmental practices from time
to time and will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures in the
Group's business operation. The Company will publish its environmental,
social and governance report on an annual basis in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with its shares listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
Group's subsidiaries are incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong
and China. The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Group’s
subsidiaries in China while the Group also has a corporate and administrative
office in Hong Kong. Our establishments and operations accordingly shall
comply with relevant laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands, the British
Virgin Islands, China and Hong Kong. During the year under review, the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance with any relevant laws and
regulations that had a significant impact on the Group.
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EEEHE

Corporate Governance Practices
The Company is committed to the principles of corporate governance and
corporate responsibility consistent with prudent management. The Board has
adopted the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules and the Model Code as the guidelines for the Directors’ dealings
in the securities of the Company since the Listing Date.

Sufficient Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment, at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Jianjun
Chairman

31 March 2021, Hong Kong

B R 2R E E T IREE AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

TEERESR
ARABNERBREERERETEEE LR
REFTEEEE -EFEC 8 LHHBRMALD
BRI SR 14PTE 0 K E AT RI MR TANERE
=EBEAREEFNES -

NRERERTRE
REARFESNARENRBERMA - NA
WEHH RAAFEHBRARTRE - BIA
DRRIE ETRAREARREHITRMDH
25%

B BLEm
BE20205F12 A3 H ILF BN S MR IRREL
2E) e WERTSATTER - 28 « BERD
SEHEIITR SR - MRS & BRI RN B E
RBAFRGERSE -

RREFS

IEE
EF5

202143A31H * &%



Independent Ruditor's Report
B E MR E

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA VAST INDUSTRIAL URBAN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China VAST
Industrial Urban Development Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 88 to
243, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs") issued by International Accounting Standards Board and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.
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BB R &

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
ERETER

BAEEFTEE
PSR FEEMBERFINBEAE - ERAF
ARG EVBRRERABREANE
o BUERRRMESH G A PBRRREE
BAZEESHATKNER  HRELEHE
FITRRHEBNER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
RN ETT RN EYERETSEE

Valuation of the completed investment properties
BRI REMENEE

We identified the valuation of the completed investment
properties with the use of income capitalisation method as a
key audit matter because it requires an estimation of future
results, a set of assumptions and a determination of key
inputs, including: (i) term yields; (ii) reversionary yields; and
(i) market unit rent of individual unit, which are judgmental.
Any changes to these inputs may have a significant impact on
the fair value measurements. Management determined the
fair values of the Group’s completed investment properties as
at 31 December 2020 with the assistance of an independent
qualified professional valuer. The fair values of the Group’s
completed investment properties were RMB1,047 million.

BB A BA RN ERRE R TIRE M T E AR
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Details of the completed investment properties and the related
key estimation uncertainty are set out in Note 18 and Note 4 to
the consolidated financial statements, respectively.
ERTHREMHERE@ERGTREENFEDIERGE
B ISRz 18 R I 7E4 ©

RS

Our procedures in relation to the determination of fair values

of the completed investment properties with the use of income

capitalisation method included:

KAWABRNLZETERTIREMELAFENEFBIE

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the independent qualified professional valuer;

o BB A BERBEGEMNBIRE e IREEME

. Obtaining a copy of valuation report prepared by
the independent qualified professional valuer and
discussing with the independent qualified professional
valuer together with our internal valuation specialists to
understand the basis of determination of valuation; and

. ERBYAEIREXHAEMBENGERSSA - WEE
SEERBEGEMRBEMABEESRE TR - AT
MEEMENEE &

. Challenging the independent qualified professional valuer
on the methodologies and judgments used in valuing
the completed investment properties, such as (i) term
yields; (ii) reversionary yields; and (iii) market unit rent
of individual unit, and obtaining the evidence that the
independent qualified professional valuer used to support
the key inputs.

D BRELE AR i%ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ%{a@I&ﬁ%%kﬁwﬁﬁﬁ
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Key Audit Matters (continueq)

Key audit matter
BRESEE

BARETEE )

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
RN ETT 2N EEERETEE

Valuation of the trade receivables at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL")
BATFEFABRR((RAFEFABE DWE S BERFER
fh{E

We identified the valuation of the trade receivables at FVTPL
as a key audit matter due to the significance of the balance
of trade receivables at FVTPL, and the valuation is based on
a set of inputs including future sales proceeds and estimated
repayment periods and discount rates which are judgmental.
Any changes to these inputs may have a significant impact on
the fair values.

B BIR A FEF A BmeE 5 BIGIER HE RBRER
F1E - ARRATENABENE SERIGRIBAMRHEEM -
BEAMEBEER —EHALZE - BERRIEEMERIERER
BREURTRE - ARSBHBAETEE - 256 AZURN
EE e e A P EEREATE -

Management determined the fair values of the Group’s
trade receivables at FVTPL as at 31 December 2020 with the
assistance of an independent qualified professional valuer. As
disclosed in Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements,
the fair values of the Group’s trade receivables at FVTPL were
RMB2,115 million.

EEEBTEVGERBEMEMBYT B BEEERAF
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Details of trade receivables at FVTPL and the related key
estimation uncertainty are set out in Note 38(c) and Note 4,
respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.
RATETT ABRHE 5 RUIIE G RSt T 1A
B D BIE R GRS B 5 SRR T E38(C) B fff 4 o

Our procedures in relation to the determination of fair value of
the trade receivables at FVTPL are as follows:
EEERATEFANERNE S EUGIEATEMNET B

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the independent qualified professional valuer;
o MBS EREEAERNBERRE e REEM

o Obtaining a copy of the valuation report prepared by
the independent qualified professional valuer and
discussing with the independent qualified professional
valuer together with our internal valuation specialists to
understand the basis of determination of valuation; and

e  EHBVAERIEGEMEENGERSEEAE - WB
UEBEREEMEMRBMNAREEZTETAR - A
TRETHENEE Rk

3 Challenging the independent qualified professional
valuer on the methodologies and judgments used in
valuing trade receivables at FVTPL, including future sales
proceeds, estimated repayment periods and discount
rates, and obtaining the evidence that the independent
qualified professional valuer used to support the key
inputs.
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BB R &

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

B R R E E T IAEE AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

3 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

3 Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

3 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

RS EETEERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

BB RNEA RSP BERRN

BEEw

KIBERHNERAER  LAEREMNRE
BREgTERNEEN  GERAHFE
HTREY BERENELENRENELS
RERNEHREHEEENERTEE
o MRBFIRBERTEELETE - &
PR EREZ B RETIRBIERS Y
BHMRNAABE  HWRZEARET
R AERRMNETER - BRAINER
EERIBEREREARE BRI RMESH
FRTEBEMSH » AW - RRERESLMGEN
AEeEs BEEETHBARELE -

AHhAR A M B MRMN BRI - BERA
R BEEREBR  ARGEPBEHRKRE
BRRAFOTA2IEAR S REM -

F BEEBANERAEXBEINTEER
ERADBENBRAEBARREGS B
BEREXNER - ROEREEFANT
M- EEARKRRAR - RARIEHRMD
BB RAEELE -

HAIpLETRIEEE - BtV AR EARR TS
B HhefRMEreRh ERNREES
Ripfa - SEEIEEEITER -

BRI R ERERERL - RARMELER
TEBTMARBERBEER - WERREEBAIAE
WAERAREZERMBILIENTE BRI M
FH - URUEER) BHEREE MEREANTTEI
ERAHEBIEE



Independent RAuditor's Report
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Lam Kam Chiu.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEBmkHMEEKER

For the Year Ended 31 December 2020 # 220204 12 531 H 1 F/E

Year ended 31 December

HZE128318ILEE
2020 2019
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
=3 ARET T ARETIT
Revenue KA
Goods and services 72 om R AR 7S 2,364,364 2,635,830
Leases HE 34,264 34,177
Total Revenue AL ON 5 2,398,628 2,670,007
Cost of sales and services SHE RARFSEK A (726,447) (799,339)
Gross profit Es 1,672,181 1,870,668
Other income LN 201,336 160,936
Other expenses EfbZ o (5,213) (3,781)
Other gains and losses HhUzs K g 18 115,923 (74,295)
Selling and marketing expenses HE R TISTTHMAX (87,889) (61,250)
Administrative expenses 1THFAX (322,943) (366,623)
Finance costs BhE RN 9 (339,135) (256,408)
Impairment losses under expected TEAME B REEIE T A
credit loss model, net of reversal BEEE - HIRREEE 10 (46,789) (13,745)
Change in fair value of trade BAFEF AR
receivables at fair value through (MEAFEFTAER DY
profit or loss (“FVTPL") B S EWFIEA T EEE) (115,686) (38,395)
Change in fair value of other BRATFEFAERD
financial assets at FVTPL Hi B EEATEES 21 397 (6,616)
Change in fair value of REMENFEE
investment properties 18 132,806 56,844
Share of losses of associates FE(LH & AR ESE (1,756) (2,006)
Share of losses of joint ventures Bh&ERRIEE (1,010) (111)
Change in fair value of derivative PTEMBTARNFEES) 32 1,520 21,890
Profit before tax R A5 AT yza ) 1,203,742 1,287,108
Income tax expense FrfSHif sz 13 (359,126) (458,702)
Profit and total comprehensive AE IR 2 E K
income for the year ek o] 11 844,616 828,406

B R R E E T IAEE AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (Continued)

mEEERAEMZEKER(E)

For the Year Ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12 531 H 1 /&

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BILEE
2020 2019
NOTE RMB’000 RMB'000
(g AR¥T T ARETF T
Profit (loss) and total RERF (B8 ) k2 EEs
comprehensive income (expense) (1) BB -
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZiN/NETE PN 846,531 830,423
Non-controlling interests eSS R s (1,915) (2,017)
Total comprehensive income for REZEWSEEE
the year 844,616 828,406
Earnings per share BREF
Basic (RMB) ERARETT) 15 0.51 0.50
Diluted (RMB) #E(ARETT) 15 0.49 0.48
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

AS at 31 December 2020 R’32020F 12531 H

At 31 December

R128318
2020 2019
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
BisE AR¥T R AREFTT
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment I ER e 16 1,078,932 893,752
Right-of-use assets TREEE 17 187,602 190,560
Investment properties REM 18 1,256,900 1,034,500
Interests in associates RECE N B R 19 269,180 272,136
Interests in joint ventures RNEZNTHRER 20 12,000 61,702
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEABZNNEEE 21 154,730 149,239
Trade receivables B 5 EWGRIE 26 1,649,147 1,111,984
Prepayments and other receivables T R E A U R 27 207,633 259,576
Amounts due from related parties JE UK B 75 IR 46() 144,955 161,787
Restricted bank deposits ZREIRITIER 28 176,615 39,000
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE 22 131,054 78,657
5,268,748 4,252,893
Current assets BN EE
In progress land development arrangements FET AR 23 4,444,957 4,127,317
Properties under development for sale FEREPYE 25 1,797,150 1,519,506
Completed properties for sale HFEERIME 25 819,825 1,117,632
Trade receivables 2 5 e a 26 1,106,708 1,600,725
Prepayments and other receivables TEfS R EoA e Wk E 27 163,216 386,718
Contract assets BHEE 24 75,905 86,605
Amounts due from related parties JE UK B 75 0B 46() 15,273 3,578
Restricted bank deposits ZREVRITIER 28 122,175 38,756
Time deposits with maturity FER A=A ALE
over three months TEHER 28 311,000 563,644
Bank balances and cash RITHEHRES 28 646,329 696,992
9,502,538 10,141,473
Total assets BERE 14,771,286 14,394,366
Current liabilities mEaE
Trade and other payables B 5 KEMENFIE 29 927,746 1,052,630
Advance from customers for HEEBNEPBR
rental business 15,083 14,801
Amounts due to related parties FEfH AR A OB 46(a) 5,586 105,597
Lease liabilities HEEE 33 2,238 22,817
Current tax liabilities BIEATRIE S & 606,341 609,017
Contract liabilities EHBE 30 89,639 62,060
Bank and other borrowings RITREAMAER 31 2,222,480 1,679,489
Convertible bonds, notes and senior notes AERES ZRRELAZE 32 1,789,688 =
Deferred income FEEWA 34 1,646 =
5,660,447 3,546,411
Net current assets MEEETE 3,842,091 6,595,062
Total assets less current liabilities BELBERTDAR 9,110,839 10,847,955

B R R E E T IAEE AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

e TR R ()

AS at 31 December 2020 R2020% 12531 H

At 31 December

R128318
2020 2019
NOTES RMB'000 RMB'000
(=3 ARETR AREFTT
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Bank and other borrowings RITREAMER 31 2,484,844 2,906,513
Convertible bonds, notes and senior notes AERES ZRRELZE 32 = 1,896,744
Derivative PTEMBE TR 32 = 1,620
Lease liabilities HEBE 33 7,282 23,940
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEEE 22 284,291 229,048
Deferred income FEIEWA 34 2,473 15,746
Contract liabilities BHEE 30 84,161 84,161
2,863,051 5,157,772
Net assets BEEE 6,247,788 5,690,183
Capital and reserves BRA K
Share capital AR 35 13,141 13,141
Reserves G 36 6,221,880 5,662,360
Equity attributable to owners of RRAREE AEGER
the Company 6,235,021 5,675,501
Non-controlling interests JEIE IR 12,767 14,682
TOTAL EQUITY BT 6,247,788 5,690,183

The consolidated financial statements on pages 88 to 243 were approved — EFE®E R 2021F3 A 31 B Bt/ I 54 T 3 E R
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 March 2021 and are 288 E B 243 B MR & M ISRk * WHMNUTE

signed on its behalf by: ERREZGES
Wang Jianjun T#=E Huang Peikun &1z
Director % Director &%
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

Attributable to owners of the Company

BRRAATERA
Equity
attributable
Share to non-
Share Share  Merger  Capital Statutory Revaluation option  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits  Sub-total interest equity
RiEE FRtER
RE  BRORE AEEE  EADE EROR  ERRE @ APENE Mt EbEE  BRER
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARMTn ARETR ARMTn ARETn ARETR ARMTn ARETR ARETR
As at 1 January 2019 #201951A18 13141 171,999 18 28,062 336,553 20,74 78346 4351383 5000273 18699 5018972
Total comprehensive income  AE2 I
(expense) for the year (BR)2S - - - - - - - 80483 8304 017) 828406
Dividend distribution PRRE
(Note 14) (Pizkra) - (164,509 = = = = = - (164,509 - (164,509
Share-based payment Bz amER
expenses (Note 43) (Bza3) = - - - - - 9310 - 9310 - 9310
Capital contribution bynon-  3EH| A
controlling interests B - - - - - - - - - 9250 9250
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEKBAT
(Note 45) (Hi3Eas5) 3 = = = = = = = = (11,250) (11,250
As at 31 December R2019%
2019 12A318 13141 7,494 48 28,062 336,583 20,74 87,656 5181806 5,675,501 14,682 5,690,183
Total comprenensiveincome - A2 %
(expense) for the year (BR)2Z - - - - - - - 846,531 846,531 (1915 844,616
Dividend distribution PRRE
(Note 14) (Fiz14) - - - - - - - (287,011)  (287,011) - (287,011)
Asat 31 December 2020 1420205128318 13141 7,494 48 28062 336,553 20,741 87,656 5741326 6,235,021 12,767 6,247,788

B R R E E T IAEE AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
MEEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

Year ended 31 December

BE12A310LLEE
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBF R AREF T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES TESEE
Profit before tax R4 T3 BT A 1,203,742 1,287,108
Adjustments for: PA TR IEEL R
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - MEN
equipment RETE 64,161 59,472
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 21,058 26,950
Change in fair value of investment BEYEATES
properties (132,806) (56,844)
Change in fair value of BATHESAEZNE S
trade receivables at FVTPL Y RIE A EE 115,686 38,395
Change in estimate of non-current BB G IB R A
receivables - 36,833
Change in fair value of other RAFEABREM
financial assets at FVTPL S EEATESE (397) 6,616
Share of losses of associates e B = A BlEE 1,756 2,006
Share of losses of joint ventures EhaERaEE 1,010 111
Impairment on other receivables H A B R (E 27,265 10,965
Impairment on trade receivables B 5 RIGIERE 2,318 1,470
Impairment on amounts due FEUK BRES 5 K IERE
from related parties 17,206 1,310
Exchange (gains) losses BE X (es ) 518 (104,706) 12,281
Loss on disposal of property, HEME « BENEED
plant and equipment i) 636 -
Loss on disposal of joint ventures HEAENRIEE 1,268 =
Interest income MEWA (167,551) (150,088)
Finance costs BB R 339,135 256,408
(Gain) loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBA R (M) EE (2,069) 25,795
Termination of lease RIFHE (14,840) o
Rent concessions HeESR (150) S
Share-based payment expenses es-apiok-di] - 9,310
Fair value change of derivative PTEM BT AN EES (1,520) (21,890)
Government grants IEQSR G| (14,107) =

Annual Report 2020 %



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

mERERER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31B1LEE
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Operating cash flows before EEESEHINLE
movements in working capital REME 1,357,095 1,546,208
Increase in progress land FHE T RIS IE B A AN
development arrangements (76,013) (263,488)
Increase in properties under FERBPYENIZIN
development for sale (261,740) (62,164)
Decrease (increase) in FESRTYHRD(ZM)
completed properties for sale 82,553 (171,285)
Decrease (increase) in contract assets EHREERD(EN) 10,700 (34,777)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 e IE AN (30,430) (266,880)
Decrease (increase) in prepayments and TE R A MR R
other receivables A (1) 204,612 (118,670)
Increase in amounts due from FENK ERES 77 FRIBIE AN
related parties (2,597) -
(Decrease) increase in trade and B 5 & E A e FIE
other payables CRA) (107,936) 183,404
Increase (decrease) in advance from HEXBH R PR
customers for rental business EANCKA) 282 (6,983)
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities AHABEMCRD) 27,579 (23,278)
(Decrease) increase in amounts e AR 5 B GRLA )3
due to related parties (11) 1,888
Increase in deferred income PRI ASE NN 2,480 15,746
Cash generated from operations KRBTSR S 1,206,574 799,721
Income tax and land appreciation TP R R HEE R
tax paid (358,956) (452,174)
Net cash generated from operating activities 44 EENFTISIR & %5 847,618 347,547

B R R E E T IAEE AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

mERERER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

Year ended 31 December

HBZE12A31B1LEE
2020 2019
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
Ffd 5 AR¥T T AREF T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZE

Interest received BELURLE 30,111 25,814
Payments for acquisition of property, plant  B&EY% « BE REE SN

and equipment IE (103,076) (354,938)
Payments for construction costs of BB IR KA FIE

investment properties (16,484) (19,970)
Payments for right-of-use assets HEAEEESNRFE - (46,022)
Payments for investment in associates FER SN TR A S NHFIE - (1,500)
Payments for investment in joint ventures e E R AIRE X TEFIE (13,010) (1,500)
Dividends received from an associate ) — eI Bt i 1 B R A AR 2 1,200 -
Proceeds from disposal of a joint venture LE—HAEARIFMBHE 434 -
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEKB QRS HIE 45 18,486 157,761
Payments for acquisition of subsidiaries Wi BB BT B A B2 A9 5RIE 44 (66,060) =
Payments for financial instruments at fair MIRA T ET A BT

value through profit or loss TAZFRIFIE (5,094) (121,825)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEME « BENEE

and equipment FfS 3R 159 294
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits REVEBR IR TE K 37,988 389,824
Placement of restricted bank deposits TFASZRHIERITER (259,022) (51,620)
Placement of deposits with original maturity £ AR ZIHi B 8 =& A 891F %K

over three months (281,204) (453,644)
Withdrawal of deposits with original maturity  $2ERER 5 H1 B8 = 8 A 19773

over three months 533,848 296,000

Net cash used in investing activities WEERSFARGSFE (121,724) (181,326)

Annual Report 2020 %
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

mERERER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

Year ended 31 December

BE12A318LLEE
2020 2019
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
B AR%TT AREF T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEE
New bank borrowings raised FEARITER 47 2,864,619 1,669,821
New other borrowings raised G AR 47 100,000 270,000
Loan from a related party H—RREHH ER 47 - 5,140
Repayment of bank borrowings RITIEFUBNK 47 (1,962,993) (1,497,182)
Repayment of other borrowings E & FURR 47 (890,817) (1,033,600)
Repayment of loan from a related party H—RBEH S EREER 47 - (267,977)
Interest paid BERFLE 47 (576,134) (569,894)
Issuance of senior notes BITBERE 47 - 1,237,446
Dividend paid BEERE (287,011) (164,505)
Repayment of convertible bonds and notes Al EA R EFEZK 47 - (444,760)
Repayments of leases liabilities HEABEER (6,560) (21,475)
Capital contribution by non-controlling FEFRRR AR R A EE
shareholder - 9,250
Transaction costs paid for issuance of BITRAEBRAINN
senior notes R A 47 - (31,528)
Net cash used in financing activities REEHAR S F8E (758,896) (839,264)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRESEEBYRD FE
EQUIVALENTS (33,002) (673,043)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT MATENREREBESEEY
1 JANUARY 696,992 1,346,244
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNDE[E R & (17,661) 23,791
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AM12B31EHRER
AS AT 31 DECEMBER, represented REeEEY > BBITERR
by bank balances and cash BE 28 646,329 696,992

96 B R R £ AT E AR A & China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

General Information

China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited (the
“Company’’) was incorporated and registered as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands on 13 February 2014. The shares of the Company
have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited with effect from 25 August 2014. The address of the
registered office of the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal
place of business of the Company is China VAST Development Building,
Hongtai East 2nd Avenue, Chaoyang District, Beijing, China. The
principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its subsidiaries
are primarily engaged in industrial towns development, property
development and property leasing.

The ultimate holding company and immediate holding company of the
Company is Profit East Limited (“Profit East”), a company which was
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and is ultimately
controlled by Ms. Zhao Ying. Ms. Zhao Ying and her husband, Mr.
Wang Jianjun, are collectively referred to as the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholders of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"), which is also the functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand (‘000) unless otherwise indicated.

Application of Amendments to International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")
Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year
In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards and the
following amendments to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:
Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material
and IAS 8
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to IFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
IAS 39 and IFRS 7

—RIEE

R AREXTHEERBEBRAA(IAA
A]11)R2014562 A13B IRIEFA SRS A alA
ERSEESTMKIREREERAA -
ARRARIRG B 201448 A 25 A tB1E & S B
ERGABRABIER LM - XAFAE
il 9% = B2 #b 11E A Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands » "2 &l ) £ E &
¥MEAPEIL RmEHGERRR B
BAZRERAE - ARANEZEB AR
BER - EffB AR EEREEXEMEE
R’ MFBHREMERE -

RRBNREER AR R ERER AR A
MRBERAB(TFR]) - EREBELE
S(REBRLHS ) EMKT - B#ERAL
TGS - BEXETRAELKRTEER
EHMERAR RN REIZERRR -

RAMBHREAARB(TARE ]2
ARE B AARRE RN E A E (G A
SE ) ERERAMLE - BB HHEBI - BT
BEHEDETHRAAZSAN T -

FE Al EAZR] Bl R Bt 5 3 & %
A ([ BRR 53R &5 28] 1)
T2 £ 2 38 I 4 M BV 24 5T B PR Bt
B &2

RAEE - AREEEAHEREHE
BFe((EREHEEER ) EAHT
BT B 2R 25 S 21 8 2 EAR A A 5
FTUARE R THIR2020F1 A1 32
1o 047 P MR 6 A I LR B T 9 o 2
RIEET - ARBUFABTSHRE -

BREHEAE IR
B s ERI RS R ERT
BRI RS
FIREFT
ERMHREENFSR . MERENE
AR ERERFIR R
ARIBREERETSE
gl

BRMNTES

AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR AR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

Application of Amendments to International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")
(Continued)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendment to IFRS 16
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions.

Except as described below, the application of the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards and the
amendments to IFRSS in the current year had no material impact on the
Group'’s financial positions and performance for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
Statements.

2.1 Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS
1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material

The Group has applied the Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 for
the first time in the current year. The amendments provide a
new definition of material that states “information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information about a specific
reporting entity.” The amendments also clarify that materiality
depends on the nature or magnitude of information, either
individually or in combination with other information, in the
context of the financial statements taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments in the current year had no
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

RS EETEERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

2. Application of Amendments to International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")

(Continued)

2.2 Impacts on application of Amendments to

IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the
current year. The amendments clarify that while businesses usually
have outputs, outputs are not required for an integrated set of
activities and assets to qualify as a business. To be considered a
business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include,
at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together

significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

The amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of replacing any missing inputs or
processes and continuing to produce outputs. The amendments
also introduce additional guidance that helps to determine

whether a substantive process has been acquired.

In addition, the amendments introduce an optional concentration
test that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. Under the optional
concentration test, the acquired set of activities and assets is not
a business if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group
of similar assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude
cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. The election
on whether to apply the optional concentration test is available on

transaction-by-transaction basis.

The amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial

statements.

J& R B S RT BB B 75 3 o 28
S (T BRI PR Bt 5 3R 5 22 B ) ()
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR AR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

2. Application of Amendments to International 2. FERC ST ERR B B REE
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") B ([ EIBR B #3522 81 ) )

(Continued)
2.3 Impacts on early application of Amendment to 2.3 Tmiﬂg)ﬂlwﬂﬁ“i& )

IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The Group has applied the amendment for the first time in
the current year. The amendment introduces a new practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to assess whether a Covid-
19-related rent concession is a lease modification. The practical
expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 that meets all of the following
conditions:

3 the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

o there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same way
it would account for the changes applying IFRS 16 Leases (“IFRS
16”) if the changes were not a lease modification. Forgiveness
or waiver of lease payments are accounted for as variable lease
payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the
amounts forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment
recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which the event
occurs.

The application of the amendment had no impact to the opening
retained profits at 1 January 2020. The Group has benefited from
1 month waiver of lease payment on a lease in a property. The
Group has derecognised the part of lease liability that has been
extinguished by the forgiveness of lease payments using the
discount rates originally applied to these leases respectively,
resulting in a decrease in the lease liabilities of RMB150,000,
which has been recognised as variable lease payments in profit or
loss for the current year.

100 “FEEREETEFESR2AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

2. Application of Amendments to International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")
(Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
and the related Amendments’
Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39,  Interest Rate Benchmark
IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 Reform — Phase 24
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and IAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture3
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current?
Amendments to IAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies?
IFRS Practice Statement 2
Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use?
Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?
Amendments to Annual Improvements to
IFRS Standards IFRS Standards 2018-20202

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned below, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR AR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &; Z20204 12 431 H 1- /=

2. Application of Amendments to International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")
(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance on the
assessment of right to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date for classification of liabilities as current or non-current,
which:

. specify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-
current should be based on rights that are in existence at the end
of the reporting period. Specifically, the amendments clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected by management
intentions or expectations to settle the liability within 12
months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance with covenants,
the right exists if the conditions are met at the end of the
reporting period, even if the lender does not test compliance
until a later date; and

° clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer of the entity’s
own equity instruments, these terms do not affect its classification
as current or non-current only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December 2020,
and the related terms and conditions stipulated in the agreements
between the Group and the relevant lenders/convertible instrument
holders, the application of the amendments will not result in
reclassification of the Group's liabilities.

102 HEEREETEFEESR2AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRAR MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies
3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs issued by IASB. For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is reasonably expected
to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The directors of the Company have, at the time of approving the
consolidated financial statements, a reasonable expectation that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR AR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with IFRS16,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in I1AS 2 Inventories
or value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

3 Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

3 has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

3 has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR AR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)
All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

Effective from 1 January 2020, the Group can elect to apply an
optional concentration test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis,
that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The concentration
test is met if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group
of similar identifiable assets. The gross assets under assessment
exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and
goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If
the concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets is
determined not to be a business and no further assessment is
needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises
the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to investment properties
which are subsequently measured under fair value model and
financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair values, the
remaining balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the
other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative
fair values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does not
give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets
of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates and joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a
joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets
of the associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group's share of losses of an associate or a joint
venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &; Z20204 12 431 H 1- /=

3.

108 +=

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)
An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers
The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
go0ods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the Group
performs;

. the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

3 the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(“IFRS 9"). In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR AR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
g0o0ods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including
allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance obligations
(land infrastructure development, marketing and promotional
service and industrial towns maintenance), the Group allocates
the transaction price to each performance obligation on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at contract
inception. It represents the price at which the Group would sell
a promised good or service separately to a customer. If a stand-
alone selling price is not directly observable, the Group estimates
it using appropriate technigues such that the transaction price
ultimately allocated to any performance obligation reflects the
amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to the
customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on input method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs to
the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of
£00ds or services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z20204 12 431 H 1 F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continueq)

3. MEZE
BEEST X @

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration (marketing
and promotional service), the Group estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled using either the expected
value method or the most likely amount, which better predicts the
amount of consideration to which the Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in the
transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that
such an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue reversal
in the future when the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the
estimated transaction price (including updating its assessment of
whether an estimate of variable consideration is constrained) to
represent faithfully the circumstances present at the end of the
reporting period and the changes in circumstances during the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR AR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Existence of significant financing component
In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effects of the
time value of money if the timing of payments agreed (either
explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the Group with a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services
to the customer. In those circumstances, the contract contains
a significant financing component. A significant financing
component may exist regardless of whether the promise of
financing is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by the
payment terms agreed to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer of
the associated goods or services less than one year, the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction
price for any significant financing component.

For advance payments received from customers before the
transfer of the associated goods or services in which the Group
adjusts for the promised amount of consideration for a significant
financing component, the Group applies a discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception. The relevant
interest expenses during the period between the advance
payments were received and the transfer of the associated
goods and services are accounted for on the same basis as other
borrowing costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the
Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it would
not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as an asset
if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so recognised is
subsequently amortised to profit or loss on a systematic basis
that is consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods
or services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within one
year.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application or arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under IFRS16 at inception, modification date
or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subseqguently changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR AR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative standalone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-
value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;
. any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

3 any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRAR MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities other than adjustments to lease
liabilities resulting from Covid-19-related rent concessions in
which the Group applied the practical expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end
of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life
and the lease term.

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term, upon exercising purchase
options, the carrying amount of the relevant right-of-use assets is
transferred to property, plant and equipment.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property or inventory as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position. Right-
of-use assets that meet the definition of investment property
and inventory are presented within “investment properties”,
“properties under development for sale” and “completed
properties for sale” respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR AR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits
Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS 9 and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable;

3 the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)
The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

. the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

. the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR AR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications
Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the Group
applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for a lease
modification as a separate lease if:

3 the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

3 the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRAR MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Covid-19-related rent concessions
In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has elected to
apply the practical expedient not to assess whether the change is
a lease modification if all of the following conditions are met:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

. any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

o there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes in
lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same way it
would account for the changes applying IFRS 16 if the changes are
not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments
are accounted for as variable lease payments. The related lease
liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived
with a corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or 10ss
in the period in which the event occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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the year ended 31 December 2020 # 20204 12531 H 1 F /&

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases
Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term except for investment properties measured
under fair value model.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under IFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for as
lease modifications, including lease incentives provided through
forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a
new lease from the effective date of the modification, considering
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the original
lease as part of the lease payments for the new lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than that entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are re-
translated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the re-translation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the
general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on
general borrowings. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR AR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Government grants
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
income in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income”.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes
are charged as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions. Payments to defined
contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Share-based payment
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve. For share
options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value
of the share options granted is expensed immediately to profit or
loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
capital and share premium. When the share options are forfeited
after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Maodification of equity-settled share-based payments

If the modification increases the fair value of the equity
instruments or is otherwise beneficial to the employee, measured
immediately before and after the modification, the Group includes
the incremental fair value granted in the measurement of the
amount recognised for services received. The incremental
fair value granted is the difference between the fair value of
the modified equity instrument and that of the original equity
instrument, both estimated as at the date of the modification.
If the modification reduces the total fair value of the equity
instruments or is not otherwise beneficial to the employee, the
Group continues to account for the services received as if that
modification had not occurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR AR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &; Z20204 12 431 H 1- /=

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

124 +=

Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, interests
in associates and joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

I E MR AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

3. MAGEUBBRERNVEER
BEESH X @

3.2 EEEBEM®)

BiE
TS B A A= LA B IE R
TH 2 F0 o

B HENDIRNER SR F RS
M o ERTOEN NRAIRELRS B R
Hih 2R R 2 RORTHADER] -
B /5 B ER 5 NI R Lt 5 [ D B AR
B AR AR IAE - Wi —
SR TRERTIRBIAR - AEE
ENEAR IR BB AN s IR E R e
LEERHANTHRAE -

BEFRARREBFEMBHRRTEE
A ERRRE(E R AR EERTUR
) OB B 2 [ B B R = R PR
R o EIEHIAR B —RBTEERT
BN EZRMER o ERRTENHR

AEERFREZSANRERER
B REHIRE E —ARFLFTA A HA
T Z RMER - BVREAR ST
MEERBEMELANEREZR(E
BAHRIN R T ERRTOE N
TEEeEN AT SRIAERE
BB EESRALRE

RIER A BE TR M B A B # &%
B RBE AR REERRMERE
Wmﬁﬁmﬁhiﬁﬁ%ﬂ’ﬁﬁﬁ
REmEHIR O ERER - BE
%ﬁETﬁi*XﬁﬁTm %%@
AIRRSN - 2NRIERITAR ARRIRA AT BE
ERRERVENBERHEERE
£ - BRESN AT R ARRED - 75
SHEREZFRE RERARA AT
BERERMELNELERAEE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z20204 12 431 H 1 F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities for
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12 Income
Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are not recognized at initial recognition and
over the lease terms due to application of the initial recognition
exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR AR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably, interest
in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the
consolidated statement of financial position except for those that
are classified and accounted for as investment properties under
the fair value model. When the consideration cannot be allocated
reliably between non-lease building element and undivided
interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRAR MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including properties under construction
for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values, adjusted
to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the period
in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment properties under construction.

Investment property carried at fair value is transferred to owner-
occupied property when there is a change in use evidenced by
the ending of an operating lease and the commencement of
owner occupation. The property’s deemed cost for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR AR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

In progress land development arrangements
Development cost of in progress land development arrangements
which are under collaboration arrangements with the relevant
local government authority comprises the aggregate cost of
development, materials and supplies, capitalised staff costs,
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowing funds during the
period of construction and other costs directly attributable to such
in progress land development arrangements.

In progress land development arrangements is stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value takes into
account the Group's share of estimated proceeds derived from
the sale of developed land by the local government authorities,
less costs to completion and the costs to be incurred in realising
the revenue derived from the sale of developed land based on
prevailing market conditions.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development which are intended to be sold
upon completion of development are classified as current assets.
Except for the leasehold land element which is measured at
cost model in accordance with the accounting policies of right-
of-use assets upon the application of IFRS 16, properties under
development for sale are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on a specific identification
basis including allocation of the related development expenditure
incurred and where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for the
properties less estimated cost to completion and costs necessary
to make the sales.

Properties under development for sale are transferred to
completed properties for sale upon completion.

128 HHEREETEFESR2AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

3. MAGEUBBRERNVEER
BEESH X @

3.2 EEEBEM®)

FELHBRIER

SRR R IR TR S E R T
& TR IA B MR R A B IR
BN - MR R e EARERT
A - ZEBEARERESHNER
TEEFRRAARZERFE L ER
B EEEIGREAAA -

Fr6E T o FA 3578 B Rk A B A B3R %
EMENBIEEDIR - 7T FHER
AEMBFHRHE D FHE L HAE
EEF IS TR R E R R THIK
ARBREERMASRHEDHEL
HPTSRAEER KA 2 R AREE
PG D% -

FERRTYE
BRI R HENERTYED
BRRBEE - FEELE DN E
PR BB B 75 3 5 HE RIS 1657 1R SR AR
FREEENE S IRBARAEXGTE
S R R AP Y S ARK AR B R B3R
FEMENBREEALR - RAREE
HRIEEEE - EROEMELNS
RAR B A R (M3 ) B ANMEE TR
R o BRI AR YRGS ERT
PR SH & RO SRR AS R SE P AR A AS

FEERTYFERTREREHE
B®RTHE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR HRR MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Completed properties for sale
Completed properties for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Net realisable value is determined based on
prevailing market conditions.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
(other than those presented in investment properties, properties
under development for sale and completed properties for sale) to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of tangible assets and right-of-use assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit, when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units
to which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the
carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR AR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (continued)
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated to reduce the assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or
the group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an
asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a settlement date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“IFRS 15").
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR AR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

3 the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI"):

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

3 the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.
In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI

as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(0]

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR AR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)
(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the reserve; and
are not subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative
gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on
disposal of the equity investments, and will be transferred to
retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income” line item in
profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “change
in fair value of trade receivables at FVTPL"” and “change in
fair value of other financial assets at FVTPL".
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRAR MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
receivables — at amortised cost, other receivables, amounts due
from related parties, restricted bank deposits, time deposits
with maturity over three months, bank balances) and financial
guarantee contracts and contract assets, which are subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for contract assets and
trade receivables — at amortised cost. The ECL on these assets are
assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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the year ended 31 December 2020 # 20204 12531 H 1 F /&

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

3 significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

3 existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

3 an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

3 an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic or technological environment
of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if i) it has
a low risk of default, i) the borrower has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term and iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual
cash flow obligations.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial recognition for the
purposes of assessing impairment. In assessing whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk, for
financial guarantee contracts, the Group considers the
changes in the risk that the specified debtor will default on
the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR AR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(i) Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower,;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

(V) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. For lease
receivables, the cash flows used for determining the ECL are
consistent with the cash flows used in measuring the lease
receivable in accordance with IFRS 16.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR AR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required to
make payments only in the event of a default by the debtor
in accordance with the terms of the instrument that is
guaranteed. Accordingly, the ECL is the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss
that it incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to
receive from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which the
effective interest rate cannot be determined, the Group
applies a discount rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks that
are specific to the cash flows but only if, and to the extent
that, the risks are taken into account by adjusting the
discount rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being
discounted.

Except for financial guarantee contracts, the Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for
all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount,
with the exception of trade receivables carried at amortised
cost and contract assets where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the FVTOCI
reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
retained profits.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR AR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities of the Group including trade and other
payables, bank and other borrowings, convertible bonds, notes
and senior notes, and amounts due to related parties are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liabilities are either held for trading or those designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair
values. It is subsequently measured at the higher of:

. the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance
with IFRS 9; and

3 the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,

cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRAR MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Convertible bonds and notes

A conversion option that will be settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is a
conversion option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative
components are recognised at fair value. In subsequent periods,
the debt component of the convertible bonds and notes is
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
derivative component is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds
and notes are allocated to the debt and derivative components in
proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating
to the debt component are included in the carrying amount of the
debt portion and are amortised over the period of the convertible
bonds and notes using the effective interest method. Transaction
costs relating to the derivative component are charged to profit or
loss immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

i)

For

3.

144 +&

A S R 2R Y o (4R

the year ended 31 December 2020 # 20204 12531 H 1 F /&

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continueq)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts that contain financial
asset hosts within the scope of IFRS 9 are not separated. The
entire hybrid contract is classified and subsequently measured in
its entirety as either amortised cost or fair value as appropriate.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are
not financial assets within the scope of IFRS 9 are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative,
their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of
the host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at
FVTPL.

Generally, multiple embedded derivatives in a single instrument
that are separated from the host contracts are treated as a
single compound embedded derivative unless those derivatives
relate to different risk exposures and are readily separable and
independent of each other.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or l0ss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
The following is the critical judgment, apart from those involving
estimations, that management has made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in these consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value model,
with regards to the Group’s investment properties located in the
mainland China, the directors of the Company considered that they
are held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in these investment
properties over time. Therefore, the directors of the Company have
determined with the presumption that the carrying amounts of
investment properties located in the mainland China measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted. As
a result, the Group recognised deferred taxes on changes in fair value
of the Group'’s investment properties located in the mainland China
on the basis that the entire carrying amounts of these properties are
recovered through use.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next twelve months.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Critical Accounting Judgments and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty continueq)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value of completed investment properties
Completed investment properties were stated at fair values determined
by management with the assistance of an independent qualified
professional valuer. The determination of the fair values of the
completed investment properties with the use of income capitalisation
method involves an estimation of future results, a set of assumptions
and a determination of key inputs, including: (i) term vyields; (ii)
reversionary yields, and (i) market unit rent of individual unit; which
are judgmental. In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the
Company have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
valuation is reflective of the current market conditions. Changes to
these assumptions would result in changes in the fair values of the
Group’s completed investment properties and the corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The directors of the Company have performed internal assessment on
the risks of change in macroeconomic environment through performing
sensitivity analysis in relation to the Group’s completed investment
properties.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the Group’s completed
investment properties is RMB1,046,700,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB859,800,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 220204 12431 H 1FF/Z

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty continueq)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value measurement of certain trade
receivables at FVTPL

Certain of the Group’s trade receivables amounting to RMB2,115,360,000
as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: RMB2,037,290,000)
are classified as FVTPL and measured at fair values, which were
determined by management with the assistance of an independent
qualified professional valuer. Judgement and estimation are required in
establishing the relevant valuation techniques and the relevant inputs
thereof, mainly including future sales proceeds, estimated repayment
periods and discount rates. See note 38(c) for further disclosures.
Changes to these assumptions would result in changes in the fair
values of these trade receivables and the corresponding adjustments to
the amount of gain or loss reported in profit or loss.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables at amortised
cost and other receivables

Trade receivables at amortised cost and other receivables are assessed
for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. Due to greater
financial uncertainty triggered by the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has
increased the expected loss rates in the current year as there is higher
risk that a prolonged pandemic could led to increased credit default
rates. The information about the ECL and the Group's trade receivables
and other receivables are disclosed in notes 26, 27 and 46.

B S 5T I i & {4 5 85 B
EEWNEFERR@

st TRABEZENEEZRIR (&)
BRAFEFABRNE TESEW
RENAFEFE

72020412 A31 8 A R#2,115,360,0007C
(20194F 12 A 318 : A K% 2,037,290,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty continueq)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Income tax expense

As at 31 December 2020, deferred tax assets of RMB131,054,000 (31
December 2019: RMB78,657,000) were recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Deferred tax assets in respect of certain
tax losses of RMB551,649,000 (31 December 2019: RMB419,626,000)
and deductible temporary differences of RMB8,034,000 (31 December
2019: RMB33,436,000) were not recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The realisation of the deferred tax assets mainly depends
on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future. In cases where the actual future profits
generated are less or more than expected, a reversal or future provision
of deferred tax assets may arise, which will be recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which such a reversal or further provision takes
place.

Revenue
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019.

B S 5T I & {4 5 T 85 B
HEWFERR @

AT THBAEENEERR @)
REBiMx

720209123318 - AR%131,054,0007C
(201912 A318 : AR¥78,657,0007T)
BEE R IE B ETE AR & B AR R R B
R o B AR BETE AR R AR - A
Bt T BIEE B A K 551,649,000 7T
(20195128318 + AR#¥419,626,0007T)
K TR N8 R = B8 A R #58,034,0007T.(2019
#12A318 : AR#33,436,00070) R4 A
MIBARRRAERBELERIBEE - BLEFH
BEESBREZIARARELEERRED
FHEREET TR - ERREBRELE
WFEDRRZATER - BRI 85 HIREE
TRIBE ER D SR REE - BEREKR
O S — B EARI R IE S P R o

WA
LATF 2 7K 5= B & = 20204 % 20194E12 A 31
Bt FEERUWRADHT ©

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A31MHLEE
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Income arising from land development THbFEEETE A WA
arrangements
— A point in time —EHE R 1,990,183 2,110,584
— Qver time —AEERFER 175,991 310,547
2,166,174 2,421,131
Revenue from properties sales MEESHE A
— A point in time —EE I 198,190 214,699
Total revenue from contract with customers BEAHRBIRA 2,364,364 2,635,830
Revenue from property leasing VISR E WA 34,264 34,177
Total revenue FEUON 2,398,628 2,670,007
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 220204 12431 H 1FF/Z

5. Revenue continued)
All of the Group’s revenue is generated in the PRC based on where
goods are sold or services are rendered, and substantially all of the
Group's identifiable assets and liabilities are located in the PRC.

)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Industrial towns development under
collaboration arrangements

The industrial town development agreements the Group signed
with the Longhe local government authority (“Longhe Park”) is
a kind of collaboration arrangement, under which the Group
cooperates with the local government authority to develop
and operate the industrial town, including land infrastructure
development, marketing and promotional services, and industrial
town maintenance services.

For land infrastructure development under collaboration
arrangements with above local government authority, the Group
is given the right to carry out construction and preparation works
in respect of land infrastructure within certain districts. When
the land plots are sold by the local government authority to
land buyers through public auction, tender or listing, the Group
is entitled to receive from the local government authority a
proportion of the proceeds from land sales.

The Group's share of the proceeds from the land development is
recognised upon completion of related construction works and
when the amount of income can be measured reliably, which
occurs upon sales of land plots by the local government authority.
Accordingly, at the time of the sales of land, proceeds entitled to
be received from the local government authority by the Group are
recognised as revenue.

As consideration for its promotion and maintenance services, the
Group shares certain percent of the local government authority’s
return from the operating of Longhe Park annually.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

5. Revenue (continued)

150 +&

M

B

Bl

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (continued)

Industrial towns development for other parks
The industrial town development agreements the Group signed
with the local government authorities of other industrial parks
contain three performance obligations as follows: (i) land
infrastructure development, (i) marketing and promotional service
and (iii) industrial towns maintenance.

. For land infrastructure development services and
the industrial towns maintenance services (including
infrastructure maintenance and property management),
each service is recognised as one performance obligation
satisfied over time as the Group creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced. Revenue is recognised for these construction
and maintenance services based on the stage of completion
of the contract using input method.

A contract asset, net of contract liability related to the
same contract, is recognised over the period in which
the construction services are performed representing the
Group's right to consideration for the services performed
because the rights are conditioned on the Group's future
performance in achieving specified milestones. The contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional.

3 For the marketing and promotional services, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when control of the services
is transferred to the customer. The estimated amount
of variable consideration is included in the transaction
price only to the extent that is highly probable that such
estimation will not result in a significant revenue reversal in
the future when the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 220204 12431 H 1FF/Z

5. Revenue (continued

M

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (continued)

Revenue from properties sales (revenue
recognised at a point in time)

For contracts entered into with customers on sales of properties,
the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
alternative use to the Group. Based on the opinion from external
legal counsel, taking into consideration the relevant contract
terms and the legal environment, the Group concludes that the
Group does not have an enforceable right to payment prior to
transfer of the relevant properties to customers. Revenue from
sales of residential properties is therefore recognised at a point
in time when the completed property is transferred to customers,
being at the point that the customer obtains the control of the
completed property and the Group has present right to payment
and collection of the consideration is probable.

The Group receives the deposits from customers when they sign
the sale and purchase agreement. However, depending on market
conditions, the Group may offer customers a discount compared
to the listed sales price, provided that the customers agree to
pay the balance of the consideration early while construction is
still ongoing. Such advance payment schemes result in contract
liabilities being recognised throughout the property construction
period for the full amount of the contract price.

The Group considers the advance payment schemes contain
significant financing component and accordingly the amount
of consideration is adjusted for the effects of the time value of
money taking into consideration the credit characteristics of
the Group. As this accrual increases the amount of the contract
liability during the period of construction, it increases the amount
of revenue recognised when control of the completed property is
transferred to the customer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 2020412431 H 1F F/Z

5. Revenue (continued 5. WA

(ii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining (i) PBEEFAANRBRBHNE
performance obligation for contracts with ENRXZESR
customers
For sales from properties, the performance obligation of the WEHEENMS  AEENBHEE
Group is part of a contract that has an expected duration of one BB R IRE KR E 1555 E
year or less as permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction price RITEERIE B — F A THA M —3
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed. D DBEZERERREEHNRS

BRI ARBKE

(iii) Leases (iii) A=
Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31ALEE
2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%T ARET T

For operating leases: KERE -

Lease payments that are fixed EERBERRK 34,264 34,177
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

6. Segment Information

The executive directors of the Group are identified as the chief
operating decision maker (the “CODM") of the Group for the purposes
of resources allocation and performance assessment. The information
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment focuses specifically on respective businesses
of the Group. The Group’s operating and reportable segments are as
follows:

o Industrial towns development — Land infrastructure and industrial
towns development and maintenance

° Property development — Development and sale of properties

. Property leasing — Lease of properties

7 ERE R
HORERRFEREME - AEEAT
EERRBERAEENTIERLERES
(TEBERERRE]) - RO EERKLFE
KB MEBEERKEERNERICE
EERNARENESHER - AREHKZE
FEDEAT

.« EEXTABE - DUERRENRE
$TRBR R
o UEBR-MERRRME

o PEHEE-HEME

Segment revenue and results DEBARESE
Industrial
towns Property Property
development  development leasing Total
EEXTERRE MERR NERE CE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARBTR ARBT R ARBTR
For the year ended HZ2020F12A31H
31 December 2020 LEE
Segment revenue AEUA
- External segment revenue e N 2,166,174 198,190 34,264 2,398,628
Consolidated revenue AR 2,166,174 198,190 34,264 2,398,628
Segment results DEEE 1,230,186 64,204 153,945 1,448,335
Inter-segment elimination A EEHE I 6,538 (6,538) - -
Unallocated profit or loss items: ROERER
Other income HAA 30,714
Other expenses Hi i (105)
Other gains and losses Hib s KSR 106,063
Selling and marketing expenses HERMHTHRX (14,995)
Administrative expenses Y (123,952)
Change in fair value of derivative TEMBTAATERE 1,520
Finance costs BERK (227,814)
Change in fair value of other financial BRATE A BRI
assets at FVTPL HBEEATEZS) (16,489)
Share of profits of associates FEEE & A AL F 1,475
Share of losses of joint ventures ElhAEAREE (1,010)
Profit before tax BB AR 1,203,742
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

6. Segment Information (continueq)
Segment revenue and results (Continued)

DEBER
DEMA R EE (&)

Industrial
towns Property Property
development development leasing Total
EXTHEERE MEERE MERE G
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETFT ARETFT ARETT
For the year ended #Z2019%12A318
31 December 2019 IHEE
Segment revenue AEUA
~ External segment revenue — M BB 2,421,131 214,699 34,177 2,670,007
Consolidated revenue RAMA 2,421,131 214,699 34,177 2,670,007
Segment results DEEE 1,626,793 (4.814) 29,939 1,651,918
Unallocated profit or loss items: AOBERER
Other income =N 29,052
Other expenses Hips i (2,803)
Other gains and losses Hiliam REE (72,883)
Selling and marketing expenses HERMSTHAX (11,493)
Administrative expenses THHEY (118,556)
Change in fair value of derivative TERBEIAATEES 21,890
Finance costs BB A (177,015)
Change in fair value of other financial BATEFABED
assets at FVTPL Hinfi B EEATEE (5,584)
Share of losses of associates i AN ] (27,307)
Share of losses of joint ventures EEEERRER (111)
Profit before tax Tl 1,287,108

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments
information are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3 to these consolidated financial statements. Segment results
represent the profit earned and loss incurred by each segment
without allocation of certain items incurred for central management
purpose. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of

resources allocation and assessment of segment performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

6. Segment Information (continued) 6. DEPER)
Segment assets and liabilities PHEEREE
Industrial
towns Property Property
development development leasing Total
EXTEBRE YIBR YEHEE &t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥TRT AR¥TRT AR¥TR

As at 31 December 2020 7A2020%F12H831H
Segment assets DERE E 9,326,213 3,493,374 1,818,957 14,638,544
Inter-segment elimination D EPEE (999,630) - - (999,630)
Unallocated assets: ROMLEE :
Property, plant and equipment  #% - &= K& 561,530
Deferred tax assets FRERIBE = 131,054
Prepayments and other TE T R E At FE U
receivables B 4,134
Amount due from a related party  FEUk BaE% 5 2R 586
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIE S 249,559
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFERAER
BB 15 & B 28,265
Interests in associates BN R RIAERS 145,244
Interests in joint ventures REE AR RER 12,000
Total assets BEE 14,771,286
Segment liabilities AEEE 5,148,203 1,127,382 545,312 6,820,897
Inter-segment elimination D EFREIE = (501,787) (497,843) (999,630)
Unallocated liabilities: RAOMLALE :
Other payables H e 50E 4,859
Amounts due to related parties & BEEs 5 2k08 3,163
Current tax liabilities BNEATEIE B (& 606,341
Convertible bonds, notes and AIEIRES C ER
senior notes REXZE 1,789,688
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBAE 284,291
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EMER 13,889
Total liabilities wrats 8,523,498
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

6. Segment Information (continueq)

Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

6. DEER @
THEEREEB®H)

Industrial
towns Property Property
development  development leasing Total
EXEMHEER VIR MERE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTFT ARETT ARETT
As at 31 December 2019 M2019%12H31H
Segment assets DEPEEE 8,542,297 3,670,812 1,366,833 13,579,942
Inter-segment elimination DB EH (792,378) - - (792,378)
Unallocated assets: ROBLEAE :
Property, plant and equipment  ¥1¥ - BiE MR & 377,260
Deferred tax assets BERIBE E 78,657
Prepayments and other TEf R E A FEUL
receivables I8 104,734
Amount due from a related party  fEUr— 44 BaE 77 5118 586
Time deposits with maturity over Z|EAE & =1& A LA -
three months K HAE R 252,644
Bank balances and cash WITHER RIS 546,590
Financial assets at FVTPL BRATFEABR
KIS A E 39,660
Interests in associates NN [EL 3 144,969
Interests in joint ventures RE &R RAERS 61,702
Total assets BEE 14,394,366
Segment liabilities AEEE 5,342,782 935,740 447 144 6,725,666
Inter-segment elimination 7 B EHEEH = (438,588) (353,790) (792,378)
Unallocated liabilities: ROLALE -
Other payables H i e~ 718 15,893
Amounts due to related parties  FE{ RS 7 2IE 3,223
Current tax liabilities BIERFiIE A (& 609,017
Convertible bonds, notes and AERES - 2R
senior notes REERIR 1,896,744
Derivative PTEMB TR 1,620
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEA E 229,048
Bank and other borrowings #RIT R EADIETR 15,350
Total liabilities HEE 8,704,183
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

6. Segment Information (continued) 6. TEER )
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) PTHEEREE )
For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating R EDBRARZSHBOLERMS ¢

resources between segments:

e Other than deferred tax assets and certain assets for central s REEHBRBERFFRERBENZ
management purpose, all assets are allocated to segment assets; ETEEN  MEEEBASREDH
and BE R
e Other than deferred tax liabilities and certain liabilities for central s BRELHERBRIEFREEANZ
management purpose, all liabilities are allocated to segment ETRESN  MEREASEESH
liabilities. B -
Other segment information Hith o EpE R
Year ended 31 December 2020 H£E2020F12A318LFE
Amounts included in the measurement of segment profit or loss or ATADHERS S HEEN T
segment assets
Industrial
towns Property Property Segment
development  development |easing total  Unallocated  Consolidated
EXNEYR NERE NERE A AR &e

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET 7L ARETT ARETT ARBTT AREFT ARRTT

Addition to non-current assets FRDEELNEM 71,088 392 125,891 197,371 179,400 376,111
Interests in associates REEDRNER - - 123,936 123,936 145,244 269,180
Interests in joint ventures REENTNER = - - - 12,000 12,000
Interest income FBHA 135,257 22,936 2,050 160,243 7,308 167,551
Interest expense flER%

~Charge tothe profitor loss -BERMG (102,558) (8,763) - (111,321) (227,814) (339,135)

- Capitalisation -v4 (241,627) (23,328) - (264,955) - (264,955)
Loss on disposal of property LENE  BRR

plant and equipment FRRER (426) (45) (165) (636) - (636)
Share of losses of associates EEBERAER - - (3.231) (3.231) 1475 (1,756)
Share of losses of joint ventures EEAERAER - = - - (1,010) (1,010
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH (26,593) (14,502) (28,246) (69,341) (15,878) (85,219)
Change n fair value of investment properties  FANEATEES - - 132,806 132,806 - 132,306

Annual Report 2020 3%~ 157



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR AR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 2020412431 H 1F F/Z

6. Segment Information (continueq)
Other segment information (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2019
Amounts included in the measurement of segment profit or loss or

DEER )
HittpHER (@)
HZE2019F12A31BLLEE
HAD RS PEENSE

segment assets
Indlustrial
fowns Property Property Segment
(evelopment  development leasing tofal Unallocated ~ Consolidated
EXMELR NEER NERE L Ch AR )
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTL ARETTL ARETT ARETT ARETT
Addition to non-current assets FRBEENEN 21440 1832 119,844 143116 = 143116
Interests in associates REEDRNER - - 127,161 127,061 144969 M13%
Interests in joint ventures RAEAFIER = - - - 61,702 61,702
Interest income BB 124,500 10171 265 134936 15,152 150,088
Interest expense HERZ
~Charge tothe profitor loss -BERG (76.958) (2439) = (79,399 (177,015 (256,408)
- Capitalisation -y (284513) (22,48 - (306954) - (306.954)
(Gain) loss on clsposal of property, HEVE BER
plant and equipment Fik () BE 1 ] - - - -
Share of losses of associates EEBERAER - - 25,301 25,301 (27,307) 2008
Share of losses of jint ventures EEAERAER = = - - (1) (1)
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH (13694) (29743) 39940) (83377) (3,045) (3,422
Change n fair value of investment properties  EAMEATEES - - 56,844 56,844 - 56,84
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

6. Segment Information (continued) 6. DEPER)
Information about major customers EEIXEXZFNEY
Revenue from customers individually contributing over 10% of the T EERMEARER K AI0%A FHEEH
Group’s revenue is as follows: WAL

Year ended 31 December

BE12A318LFE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Customer A? PN 444,955 N/A i@
Customer B2 ZPER? 317,398 N/AT N3
Customer C? =pPC? 310,176 N/A! T 3E A
Customer D2 =FD? 290,904 N/A! g A
Customer E2 X PR N/A" 58 A1 1,287,004
Customer F2 X2 N/A" 38 A1 310,524
1,363,433 1,597,528
Notes: B
1. The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the Group’s 1. B AME RSB WA I0%AT ©
revenue.
2. Revenue arising from land development arrangements. 2. RELMFAZEEBAKA -
The Group's revenue from external customers by location of operations AEEREREHEEERLEE IS
of the relevant group entities is derived solely in the mainland China. HINRE PR AERE R B A - ANE
Non-current assets of the Group by location of assets are all located in Bz EE B S ENIEREE E R 2 6L
the mainland China. AR B A, o
7. Other Income and Expenses 7. HWAMEZH
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31AILLEE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ANRETFIT
Other income: EHAUA -
Interest income on bank deposits HRITE A EHA 25,682 25,814
Interest income on trade receivables B 5 FEMGRIEF S WA 127,750 115,387
Interest income on amount due from a JFE U — 2 B 75 5RIE
related party FEHA 9,209 8,887
Imputed interest income on other receivables H h FEUGRIE A HEE A S A 4,910 -
Total interest income A E UG A 4858 167,551 150,088
Government grants (note) B B (P &%) 16,586 5,387
Provision of infrastructure services TR B R AR S 11,586 T
Others Hih 5,613 5,461
201,336 160,936
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 2020412431 H 1F F/Z

7. Other Income and EXpenses (ontinued) 7. EMRARNEZH @
Year ended 31 December
HZE12A318LLFE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Other expenses: Hh i -
Donations B (5,213) (3,052)
Others Hth = (729)
(5,213) (3,781)
Note: The amounts mainly represented the grants from the local government M ZeBEERASERE A EEEEL
authority for contributions to local economic development by the Group. R BRSPS HR#E) - BE
During the year ended 31 December 2020, included in the government 20205F 12 A31H IEFE » 5 A L XXBUT
grants above was an amount of RMB481,000 (2019: nil) related to Bh ARRM481,0007T (20194 : 4) AHFE
Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong government in BT s 37 78 it A AR B il B IR G B [ (R BE 2
respect of Covid-19-related subsidies. FrElEEn e -
8. Other Gains and Losses 8. Hftilhzm K E51E
Year ended 31 December
HZE12A318LLFE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Net gains and losses SFEU s & e R
Exchange gains (losses), net bE 5 5 e (&518) 104,706 (12,281)
Gain (loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HEH B A A W (B1E)
(note 45) (P =E45) 2,069 (25,795)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEKE&ED
plant and equipment, net SFER (636) -
Change in estimate of non-current other B B E A E W FR A
receivables ) = (36,833)
Loss on disposal of joint ventures HEAZNREE (1,268) =
Deposit forfeiture WIET & 11,009 -
Others Hth 43 614
115,923 (74,295)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

9.

10.

Finance Costs

9. BMERA

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Interests on bank loans RITEFRHFE (287,300) (220,830)
Interests on other loans HhERAF S (89,583) (163,149)
Interests on convertible bonds and AERES REROFS
notes (note 32) (Pf3E32) (50,482) (74,483)
Interest on loan from a related party loan KB —REE T ERNERFE - (12,170)
Interest on senior note (note 32) BAEEENF S (H17F32) (174,493) (89,877)
Interests on lease liabilities HEBENFE (2,232) (2,853)
Total borrowing costs Ep % L] (604,090) (563,362)
Less: Amount capitalised in: W BRNMEEH
In progress land development FETHFAZEEE
arrangements 241,627 284,513
Properties under development for sale HFEEREDME 23,328 22,441
(339,135) (256,408)

The weighted average capitalisation rate on funds borrowed generally is
7.92% (2019: 9.28%) per annum for the current year.

Impairment Losses Under Expected Credit

Loss Model, Net of Reversal

REFNNEFHEREMEERB AT
7.92% (20194 : 9.28%) °

10. BHIE IR RE IR T AR
EHEE - HRED

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31HLEE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARETT

Impairment losses recognised on: HRBEBE

— Other receivables — E fth FEYGRIR 27,265 10,965
— Trade receivables — & 5 EWGIR 2,318 1,470
— Amounts due from related parties — PEUR RS 5 ROE 17,206 1,310
46,789 13,745

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 38(b).

B RRERHE A F B E R HIEESS(D) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

11. Profit for the Year 11. REEF
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting): AERFAIE (GEA) THIZERE ¢

Year ended 31 December

HBZ12831HLLEE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Directors’ emoluments (including share-based FEEHM (R ERD
payment expenses, if any) XfNERMNE)) 12,736 15,032
Staff costs 8T RA
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMER 186,933 226,065
Contribution to retirement benefits scheme RONEFETEI R 18,196 35,275
Share-based payment expenses LSERE- 3z = 6,832
Total staff costs BIABE(BEESHM)
(including Directors” emoluments) 217,865 283,204
Less: Amount capitalised in: B BRNMEEH
In progress land development FELTHAEIER
arrangements (30,235) (29,046)
Properties under development for sale FEERPYZE (333) (1,041)
187,297 253,117
Rental income from property leasing MERERS WA (34,264) (34,177)
Less: Direct operating expenses B MEREEELERY
for property leasing 13,810 13,986
(20,454) (20,191)
Cost of properties sold EEYIZER AR 92,530 185,946
Cost of land development arrangements T H BB IR B AN 620,107 599,407
Short-term lease expense EERERAY 4,779 1,818
Covid-19-related rent concessions (note 17) b A AR R SE R (M EE17) (150) -
Auditor’s remuneration IZERET BN < 3,406 2,928
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — ¥1%¥ - B RRETE 64,161 59,472
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TRESENE 21,058 26,950
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

12. Emoluments of Directors, Chief Executive 12. 2= - FE{THAERAS

and the Five Highest Paid Individuals BEEH AT HEEH
Emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to the directors of the Company were B sSENAR R ESNFHMOT
as follows:

Contribution
Salaries to retirement Discretionary Share-based

and other benefits performance- payment
Fees benefits scheme related bonus expense Total
Fem RINER REHN RAZA
He HitfEH HE [ miERA BR CH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AR®TRT ARMTR AR¥TR AR%TT ARE¥Tx
Year ended 31 December HZ2020%12A31A
2020 LEE
Executive directors: IES:
Wang Jianjun (Note () FEE(BizE) - 827 15 360 - 1,202
Yang Yun B - 575 2 360 - 937
Wang Yagang FLH - 575 22 360 - 957
Huang Peikun HiEH - 4,497 15 2,998 - 7,510
Wang Wei I# = 1,094 15 - - 1,109
Non-executive director: FHTES
Zhao Ying ikl - 252 13 - - 265
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:
directors:
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert Tk 252 - - - - 252
Hsieh Yafang EiE: 252 - - - - 252
Wang Yijiang I 252 - - - - 252
756 7,820 82 4,078 - 12,736
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e TR AR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

12. Emoluments of Directors, Chief Executive 12. 2= - FE{THAERAS

and the Five Highest Paid Individuals EEHATHEM 2
Emoluments (continued)
Contribution
Salaries  toretirement  Discretionary  Share-based
and other benefits  performance- payment
Fees benefits scheme  related bonus expense Total
HelE RINER TR RiAZA
ne HiigH HE 50 MiETEA 2R =
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETr ARETn ARET:
Year ended 31 December BZ2019%12A31R
2019 L5E
Executive directors: HTEE:
Wang Jianjun (Note (i) TEE (i) - 666 45 240 - 951
Yang Yun B - 362 32 216 826 1436
\ang Yagang A = 362 2 216 826 1436
Huang Peikun HiEH - 4,858 16 3239 826 8,939
Wang Wei T% = 1,165 16 = = 1,181
Non-executive director: FHTES
Zhao Ying izs - 269 13 - - 282
Independent non-executive BUENIES:
directors:
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert Tk 269 - - - - 269
Hsieh Yafang IS 269 - - - - 269
Wang Yijiang Sl 269 = = = = 269
807 7,682 154 3911 2,478 15,032
Note: Bt eE
()  Mr. Wang lJianjun is also the president (regarded as chief executive) of () ERELEETRRDREE(RIEEEITR

AB)  EREBEROFMITEERETR
BR IR P AN o

the Company and his emoluments disclosed above also include those for
services rendered by him as the president.

PN TFARREZNHMERERNE
REEARBRAEENZH IR RS
B -

The emoluments of directors of the Company shown above were mainly
for their services in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group.

TEAEAEERE B AR BB BREE
HRIETE ©

Bonuses are calculated based on the Group's or respective subsidiaries’
performance for such financial year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

12. Emoluments of Directors, Chief Executive 12. 2= - FE{THAERAS

and the Five Highest Paid Individuals BEHATHEMN o
Emoluments (continued)
Five highest paid individuals hEEREHAL

The five highest paid individuals included 4 directors of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 3). The emoluments of the
remaining 1 highest paid individual for the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: 2) are as follows:

HE2020F12A3MHILEFE  Ad&m
FATBERARFNBES(2019F : =
&) o BE2020F 12831 B ILFE » Hfp—
(20195 : W& ) I ATHIEBI T -

Year ended 31 December

HZ12831HLLEE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARETT
Salaries and other benefits o HEE AT 1,431 686
Discretionary performance-related bonus RIFBMAMIEIEAL = 432
Share-based payment expenses R EA = 1,653
Contribution to retirement benefits scheme RGBT EI K 15 32
1,446 2,803

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the directors of
the Company whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

WHARBEEME T HHEENORD
FEE T ABUIAT -

Number of employees

ETA#
2020 2019
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") 1,000,001 B ([ 7% ) 1,000,0017T
to HK$2,000,000 %2,000,0007T 1 2

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, none of the directors
of the Company or the five highest paid individuals waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments.

Saved as disclosed above, the directors of the Company confirm that
no housing or other allowances, benefits in kind, contributions to
pension scheme, discretionary bonus, inducement to join the Group,
compensation for loss of any office in connection with the management
of the affairs of any member of the Group has been made to the five
highest paid individuals during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
nil).

H 20205 N 2019F 12 A31H IEFE - &
ARRIEEN AR ES T ATHERENR
B RS U E (AT B o

Br Bt BEE SN - ARRERRER - NE
F2020F12R31HILFE - HiEE AR
Ea#r AL EEREMER - BEWH
@ RREE B - WIS ~ EAI
AR LB E S R EAEEEMK R
N A FHE R AT R R E (20194 ¢
&) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &; Z20204 12 431 H 1- /=

13.Income Tax Expense

166 +&

13. FiG 5B <

Year ended 31 December

HZE1283181LEE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Current tax: B HATIR -
— PRC enterprise income tax — B EMET (356,135) (412,005)
— Land appreciation tax — T HhIRET (16,461) (5,731)
— Over provision in prior year — K FHEEEE 16,316 5,560
(356,280) (412,176)
Deferred tax (note 22) EIERTE (FizE22) (2,846) (46,526)
(359,126) (458,702)

Certain subsidiaries of the Group, Langfang VAST Urban Development
Co., Ltd. (“Langfang VAST"), Langfang Hongsheng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. and Langfang Yonglun Property Development
Co., Ltd. were subject to the enterprise income tax of mainland China
at a tax rate of 25% on a verification collection basis at deemed
profit which represents 10% or 15% of its revenue after adjusting the
subsidies paid to customers (enterprises establishing their businesses
in Longhe Park) prior to 1 January 2014 in accordance with authorised
tax valuation method (#% & #(4&k) approved by local tax bureau pursuant
to the applicable PRC tax regulations (the “Deemed Profit Basis”). From
1 January 2014, the three subsidiaries of the Group mentioned above no
longer enjoyed the tax benefit of the authorised tax valuation method.
Certain income tax calculated on Deemed Profit Basis of unrealised
profit earned in prior years was realised in 2019 and 2020.

According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations of the PRC
on Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") (FH2& A R 0B 4 b 32 EF Z 1T {6:471)
effective from 1 January 1994, and the Detailed Implementation Rules
on the Provisional Regulations of the PRC on LAT (12 A R LRI +
HEREITIEFIE AR effective from 27 January 1995, all income
from the sale or transfer of state-owned land use rights and buildings
of the Group (being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including borrowing costs and property development
expenditures) is subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30%
to 60% of the appreciation of land value with an exemption provided
for property sales of ordinary residential properties (& @iZ*(F =) if
their appreciation values do not exceed 20% of the sum of the total
deductible items.

I E MR AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

BEFBEEATE  AEEETHERQF
BRI TH AR EE XM ER E B R AR ([ B
%)) - BB EREHEREFR AR
kEBHTkmEEREERQRAREZ
TEBUREAE - DA 5 IS BB A% BB
WiitE - ARRE &N (B120144E1 A 18 A
B FFRAaTNEEFPHEERS M
Bh A& B 10% 8k 15% WA ) ([ 32 E i F
gi’%m&zs%ﬁ%%ﬁz%ﬁwﬂmmmﬁiﬁﬁ
B - B2014F1A18# » it =A%
IE’JMTJ* AITBEZAEZEBKROTIEE
= o Z80 1R PR LA A AF 2 BRER Y AR B IR 5 A
R 3R E ) Al AL YE T LAY AT 15 B A2 2019 4F A1
20205 &3, o

BAR1994F 1 A1 B A (P EAR L
B+ AR TIRGI([ LIS ER ) &
1995481 A27 BB E AR EA R LFIE
T IR EFETIRBIE R ARDREE - Br
HE{E KB AR 8 38 AT HK 0 E B AR5 20% ) F
ZREFEMWENEE  MTELHEREER
SEEA T EAEREENBA(LEY
EFBREREERN AN R YRS S
LRMKINE ) % 1%+ 12 EH30% = 60%
SRR RGN T Mo IR ER
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

13.Income Tax EXpense continued) 13. FISBiM @)

Except for the above, under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income
Tax (the “EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

The tax expense can be reconciled to profit before tax as follows:

Br bt ESN - ARIBCRE AR 2R
BEEN[REMERE]) REEMETR
EHeARRI - o BT N R % R B E Y
TR /325% °

BiIASZ AT B R B A A AR A T

Year ended 31 December

HZE1283181LEE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Profit before tax FR A5 AT g A 1,203,742 1,287,108
Tax at PRC enterprise income tax rate of 25% R B EATSHE25%
FTHEABIR (300,935) (321,777)
LAT + I (E R (16,461) (5,731)
Tax effect of LAT TS ER TSR 4,115 1,433
QOver provision in prior year EFRRERME 16,316 5,560
Effect on Deemed Profit Basis of enterprise 1R ZEFT1S I S 38 E A1)
income tax BN E 35 1,764
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax A MB AL MRS E
purpose (2,289) (1,821)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REROFIEEENTRIETE (33,560) (67,397)
Tax effect of deductible temporary difference RERK RN R =5
not recognised R 2 = (3,736)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised &f @A R ERRIBIEE S = 1,314
Utilisation of deductible temporary difference ) BT AR ERA AT 0
previously not recognised Ry SR 6,351 31,691
Tax effect of share of losses of associates FE(REG & A R BRI B IS 2 (439) (502)
Tax effect of share of losses of joint ventures BiEaEARBBNHETE (253) (28)
Effect of tax free policy of Cayman Islands and ~ FISBE N EBRLESH
BVI RMB R B (36,005) (46,382)
Tax effect of planned dividend distribution =121 B A AR I
out of mainland China DRI B RT S 2 = (53,376)
Others Hith 3,999 286
Income tax expense B EiFAX (359,126) (458,702)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

14.

15.

Dividend

A final dividend of HK$0.18 per share in respect of the year ended
31 December 2020 amounting to approximately HK$297,223,000 in
aggregate has been proposed by the directors of the Company and
is subject to the approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2020 will be paid out from the Company's retained profits.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, such distribution is in
compliance with the Articles of Association adopted by the Company
and also the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands.

During the reporting period, a final dividend of HK$0.2 per share
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 amounting to
HK$330,247,000 in aggregate (equivalent to RMB287,011,000) was
declared and paid out from the Company’s retained profits.

During the year of 2019, a final dividend of HK$0.11 per share in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2018 amounting to HK$181,636,000 in
aggregate (equivalent to RMB164,505,000) was declared and paid out
from the Company's share premium.

Earnings Per Share
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

14.

15.

IRE

BE20205F12 A3 L FEMRHRE R
FRRER0.18TT B FH4)E #5297,223,000
T ZBRFEAARTESRE WAL
A RNBREF RS LR BRIRIE - 8
202012 A31 B ILFEORBBFREARR
ANARA MBS - KIBEARREERN
BR - DIRFEARARANEHSEA
AILAK B BEP £ 228 R ENE(1961F
BDEIRS - EREMERD °

REEHR - B ZE2019F12 8318 IEF
EHRBREGRAERE02T - BB
330,247,000 7t ( #1 & A R ¥ 287,011,000
) BYEEIRREARABIRSDEFEX
o

20194 » HE2018F 12831 B ILEE
MR B FRB K011 - BB
181,636,000 7T ( #T & A R # 164,505,000
TL) c BEERREAR RN AR AREER L
1o

BRAER
ARTREE ARG SREARBEETIR
BRI T B E -

Year ended 31 December

HZE1283181LEE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T ARET T
Earnings ZF
Profit for the year attributable to owners of HEREARZFMEARAF]
the Company for the purpose of basic A AEEARE &
earnings per share 846,531 830,423
Adjustment to the profit for the year HERESRF M S AR
attributable to owners of the Company for A NG ANF @ F R 7%
the purpose of diluted earnings per share
— impact of convertible bonds issued — RNRARIFTEITRAI SR ES
by the Company W8 3,697 11,580
Profit for the year attributable to owners of RERESRFM S AAR
the Company for the purpose of WA ARG E & A
diluted earnings per share 850,228 842,003
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

15. Earnings Per Share (continued) 15. 5 REF @)
Year ended 31 December
HZE1283181LEE
2020 2019
‘000 ‘000
T T
Number of shares R
Weighted average number of ordinary shares MEREAREF AT ER
for the purpose of basic earnings per share Dot R 1,651,237 1,651,237
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BT BN E
— Convertible bonds — A ERES 98,237 90,909
Weighted average number of ordinary shares EREERF M= T ER
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share DnAEF 9 £k 1,749,474 1,742,146

The profit attributable to owners of the Company and the number of
ordinary shares for the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share
for the year ended 31 December 2020 had been adjusted assuming
that the conversion of the convertible bonds has been effective from 1

January 2019.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019 does not assume the exercise of share
options because the adjusted exercise price of those options was
higher than the average market price of the shares for both periods.

HMETEEH E2020F 12 A31 B I FEFRK
EERFM S WARRHES ARMEER R
TEREE  CREBRERESFSHRA
201941 A1 B RBAE K 1E L A% -

S EEE 20204 201912 A3 B IE &
£ R GRS & R I R R AR () Bk 1T
£ RERBZZRMDBETEBESSRZ
M EA R A T R D T A5 (B4 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

16. Property, Plant and Equipment

16. M5 - BMERRE

Furniture,
Motor fittings and
Buildings vehicles  equipment Total
RA - #E
2Ry RE &L st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBFrT ARETT ARETRT
Cost 2%
As at 1 January 2019 H2019%1 818 910,926 31,904 29,764 972,594
Additions NE 43,439 4,385 2,080 49,904
Disposals HE (259) (426) (28) (713)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR
(note 45) (P 5E45) = (523) (112) (635)
As at 31 December 2019 K2019%12 8318 954,106 35,340 31,704 1,021,150
Additions NE 62,615 7,723 563 70,901
Completed properties for sales FELRIYE
transferred to property, EEEYEE
plant and equipment BB K w5 A 179,235 - - 179,235
Disposals HE - (1,459) (6,766) (8,225)
As at 31 December 2020 M2020512 4318 1,195,956 41,604 25,501 1,263,061
Depreciation e
As at 1 January 2019 R2019F1 418 (34,277) (16,948) (17,237) (68,462)
Provided for the year FREE (47,220) (6,362) (5,890) (59,472)
Eliminated on disposals B 8 - 398 21 419
Eliminated on disposal of HENE QAR
subsidiaries (note 45) 785 (I 145) - 101 16 117
As at 31 December 2019 20195128318 (81,497) (22,811) (23,090) (127,398)
Provided for the year FNEE (55,026) (5,161) (3,974) (64,161)
Eliminated on disposals H B B T - 1,288 6,142 7,430
As at 31 December 2020 20204128318 (136,523) (26,684) (20,922) (184,129)
Carrying amount BREE
As at 31 December 2020 720205128318 1,059,433 14,920 4,579 1,078,932
As at 31 December 2019 20195128318 872,609 12,529 8,614 893,752
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

16. Property, Plant and Equipment (ontinued) 16. Y13 - MEREE @)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis, taking into account their residual value, at the
following rates per annum:

Buildings
Motor vehicles
Furniture, fittings and equipment

4.82%-4.85%
24.25%-24.45%
32.33%-32.44%

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's property, plant and equipment
with a carrying amount of approximately RMB782,603,000 (31 December
2019: RMB610,629,000) were pledged to banks to secure certain
mortgage loans to the Group, details of which are set out in note 31(a).

Ltz - BB MR IR B At R E R
BERABREZANFRFTE

BEY) 4.82%-4.85%
R 24.25%-24.45%
XA HERLRE 32.33%-32.44%

202012 A318 - AEBEERABENAR
#782,603,0007C (2019412 4318 : AR
#£610,629,0007T) U2 - RE REHEE
WTFRIT  (ERAEEERSE TIRBER
R - FHEERHES)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

17. Right-Of-Use Assets 17. EAEEE
Leasehold Leased

land properties Total

HELH HEWE st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT

As at 1 January 2019 K2019F1 818 106,138 42,145 148,283
Additions AE 46,022 23,234 69,256
Disposals k= (29) = (29)
Depreciation provided for the year FNYTERE (4,153) (22,797) (26,950)
As at 31 December 2019 H2019412 8318 147,978 42,582 190,560
Additions NE - 1,022 1,022

Completed properties for sales FEQRIMELES
transferred to right-of-use assets FREEE 36,019 = 36,019
Disposals k= - (18,941) (18,941)
Depreciation provided for the year FRITEREE (5,667) (15,391) (21,058)
As at 31 December 2020 20204128318 178,330 9,272 187,602
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2020 2019

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET ARETT

Expense relating to short-term leases EEHHEEENER 4,779 1,818
Total cash outflow for leases HERS R LA 11,339 69,315

For both years, the Group leases various offices for its operations.
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of 1 year to 10 years.
(2019: 1 year to 10 years). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain different terms and conditions. In determining the
lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

The above items of right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis, at the following rates per annum:

5.00%
10.00%-50.00%

Leasehold land
Leased properties

Details of the lease maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in
note 33.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

17. Right-Of-Use Assets (continued) 17. EREEE
As at 31 December 2020, the Group's right-of-use assets with a carrying M2020F12A31H » ASBEREELN A
amount of approximately RMB86,652,000 (2019: RMB56,278,000) were A R ¥ 86,652,000 7T (2019 F : A R #&
pledged to the bank to secure certain mortgage loan to the Group, 56,278,0007T) K {E A & EE &1 T iR
details of which are set out in note 31(a). T EAAEEERE TRBERNIK

- FFIBEPEE31(@) ©

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the lessor of one of the HE2020F12A3MBLIEFE - HP—RH
offices provided the Group with rent concessions of RMB150,000 for AEMHBAMASEERELEANES
half a month. BE= AREE150,0007T °

18. Investment Properties 18. REWE

The Group leases out properties under operating leases with rentals
payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 20
years.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the
lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective
functional currencies of group entities. The lease contracts do not
contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase the
property at the end of lease term.

AEEHBEKLEHERETYE  IBAR
BE - VIREB—RBIFE205F -

HAMEHEONEEEREANIGER
BitlE  MASEYERBERFMAR
SMNERBR - MER KL EE S RIREERE
R/ SAERAAREEHREE YA E
R o

Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties development Total
B®T BRP
REWME REWME - h
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT ARBTFT ARET T
Fair value DFRE
As at 1 January 2019 201941818 827,200 126,500 953,700
Additions NE 14,134 9,822 23,956
Change in fair value NEEES) 18,466 38,378 56,844
As at 31 December 2019 72019412 831H 859,800 174,700 1,034,500
Additions NE 6,548 263 6,811
Acquisition of assets through FEBUENTE A ]
acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 44) U BE &z (FfizT44) 82,783 - 82,783
Change in fair value NFEEZE) 97,569 35,237 132,806
As at 31 December 2020 72020124318 1,046,700 210,200 1,256,900
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

18. Investment Properties (continued 18. REW X )

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's investment properties with
a carrying amount of approximately RMB1,065,900,000 (2019:
RMB841,600,000) were pledged to a bank to secure certain mortgage
loan to the Group, details of which are set out in Note 31(a).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's investment properties
with a carrying amount of approximately RMB84,800,000 (2019:
RMB56,900,000) were pledged to secure certain other loans to the
Group, details of which are set out in Note 31(b).

The fair values of the Group's investment properties were arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out at the end of respective reporting
periods by Messrs Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited,
an independent qualified professional valuer not connected with the
Group.

In measuring the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use
of the properties is their current use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

18. Investment Properties continued) 18. REWZE )
The following table gives information about how the fair values of these TRESZEREMER T EWNAFEE (B
investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation Bl 2 L B A E T R A SE ) HE R -
techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy A RABIEAFE =5 ASIER A BRZ
into which the fair value measurements are categorised based on EBAFEAEDTROAFLEEE -
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is
observable.
As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 7"2020512831HK%2019612H31H
Investment properties Fair value Valuation technique(s) Relationship of
held by the Group hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) unobservable inputs to fair value
AEERERENE ATEER HERTRIZRAE EXTABRRALE AUERGABERATENER
Investment properties - Completed Level3 Income capitalisation Term yield, taking into account yield generated Adlightincrease in the term yield used would
REME-EAT £=8 method (term and from comparable properties and adjustment to result in a significant decrease in the fair value
reversionary approach) reflect the certainty of term income Securedand  measurement of the investment properties,
WABK(LE(ESRESE)  tobereceived, of range from 35%105% (2019 and vice versa.
35% 10 5%) [FRAEBRAERT - eBRRANEATHE
ERNEE FRAEIBNEEENNERE  SEARTE R4
REBIERERIBAENE BT ELR
AE - NTI5%E5H(20195 : 35%F5%) «
The key inputs are Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit A slight increase in the reversionary yield used
(1) Termyield; market rental income and unit market valug of the  would result in a significant decrease in the fair value
() Reversionaryyield; and  comparable properties, of range from 4% t05.5%  measurement of the investment properties and vice
(3)  Market unit rent of in both years. Vrsa.
individual unit RENEE FRAESNENFEELD R AEERARRT  JeEHRANRATAE
IERARER ReWARENME - MEEEONTHE  HEABTH R
() FllsE: 555
() EHkEE: R
@ EREuSHTEENES
Market unit rent, using dliect market comparable A slight increase in the market unit rent used would
and taking into account time, location and other  resultin a significant increase in the fair value
indlividual factors such as size and quantum of measurement of the investment properties and vice
properties, of range from RMB0.85/sg.m./dayto  versa.
RMB2.10/5q.m./day (201%: RMBO.83/sam./dayto  fFTRAMHEMBERA - BlSEBRENELT
RMB2.13/50.m./day) NG LR - K2R -
mRENRS  FREETATHIBER kit
RER - At ENRR - AngEA)R
& N TEAGTARARKOSIZEAGT
FARARE2107 (20195 : BREEARARE
0BTEERETARARS2137) -
Investment properties - Level3 Direct comparison method Accommodation valuie, using direct market Anincrease in the accommodation valuie used would
Under development E=0 ERIRA comparable and taking into account time, location  result in an increase in the fair value measurement
REME-ERH Thekey inputis: and individual factors such as size and quantum ~ of the investment properties, and vice versa.
(1) Site unitrate of properties, of range from RMB642/sq.m. to (FRAEmLE LT - AIeERRENELTET
IEGAHEA: 3,320/s.m. (2019; RMBS76/sam. 10 2,618/5qm). L7 R2A% -
() FEAER BENE  RREEDATRESER Rt kR

B #HREAER  fimaEA RES A
FETARARSITEETARARS3I
T019F  BEARARBSTOTEEFARA
RE261870) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204 12431 H 1 F/Z

18.

19.

Investment Properties (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages an
independent qualified professional valuer to perform the valuation
of the Group's investment properties. At the end of each reporting
period, management of the Group worked closely with the independent
qualified professional valuer to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements. The
Group first considers and adopts Level 2 inputs where inputs can be
derived from observable quoted prices in the active market. When
Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group adopts valuation techniques
that include Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the
fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations are reported to
management of the Group.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the years.

Interests in Associates

18. REWHE o)

DNHEFERMAERRE
EHAEEREBEMEN D FEMBER - K
S BRI LR A A0 T35 R ER R B - i
VEE—RHABE  AKEEREEL
EERBRMAEMBAEENREMEE
TThME - REREPRE - ARENEE
BB A EREXMBEMZEAE - A
By REEEENGHERMNEAFE;E
MEABE - AREELEZEREAE -
FBABE - NERBARER BERT
SRR BRRERS - WML EE R
AR AEERERAREE=4BA
BEHGERN - WEEATFERAEAN
28 AEeniKEEEERSEMKD
BRE

FA - WEEARERE=4 -

19. R E QB RIS

At 31 December

M®12A31H

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETT

Cost of investments in associates — unlisted Bt N TR AR —FE E T 245,756 245,756
Share of post-acquisition profits net of FE(G UL EE & 5= T

dividends received kR E WS 36,261 39,217

Impairment loss (note a) BB R (fiEa) (12,837) (12,837)

269,180 272,136

Note:

a. During the year ended 31 December 2010, according to the agreement
with other equity holders of Huayuan (as defined below), Langfang VAST
unilaterally made additional cash contribution to Huayuan as further capital
injection into Huayuan amounting to RMB19,750,000 with the shareholding
interest in Huayuan unchanged. An impairment loss amounting to
RMB12,837,000 was recognised by the Group based on an estimation of
the recoverable amount of the Group's interest in Huayuan during the year
ended 31 December 2010.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

19. Interests in Associates (continued)

19. REE D BRER (a)

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following

BEREHA - ARBAUTHEAR :

associates:
Place and date of Issued and fully paid/ Equity interest
Name of company (note i) establishment/acquisition  registered capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
RRIER(H) I/ W SR A BRTRAR/AMER rEEELER TEER
At 31 December
#2831
2020 2019
% %
Langfang Huayuan Shengshi Heating Mainland China RMB117,000,000 35 35 Heatenergy generation
Co, Ltd. ("Huayuan’) 21 August 2007 (Paid-up registered capital) REEE
BTERSE AN ERAR hER, AR 117,000,000
(E2)) W07E8EE (BRiHER)
Langfang Kaihong Furniture Mart Mainland China RMB100,000,000 30 30 Property leasing
Co, Ltd. (*Kaihong’) 10 December 2010 (Paic-Up registered capital) NERE
BHTE EREBFERAR PEIRI, ARH100,000,0007
E5R) 20106127108 (BRFRER)
Langfang Shengshi Zhiye Real Estates Mainland China RMB10,000,000 20 20 Property development
Development Co. Lid. (“Shengshi Zhiye') 10 May 2017 (Paic-Up registered capital) NERRE
BTt EXEHEREARAR PEIR AR 10,000,000
([EtE%)) 017554108 (BIRsHRER)
Central Technology Development (Bejjing) ~ Mainland China RMB100,000,000 30 30 Technology development
Co. Lid. 27 July 2017 (Paid-up registered capital) BEERE
RELERERE (IR ERAR HEIRi AR 100,000,000
1747R27H (BRiER)
Wuhan Aviclub Real Estate Development Mainland China RMB36,917,100 30 30 Aviation consulting
C0. Lid. 17 May 2017 (Paid-up registered capital) mzia
HEEREM A BEREARAT PEIRi ARE36917,1007T
17458178 (BRFMER)
Sinosteel Metals & Resources Mainland China RMB98,450,000 46 46 Trade business
Co. Ltd. (*Sinomerco”) 1 December 2017 (Paid-up registered capital) Ve
piaSERERAA hERY R 98,450,007
(44 ) 17812818 (BRFMER)
Hubei Eche Supply Chain Management Mainland China RMB100,000,000 10 10 Trade business
Co, Ltd. (notei) 25 July 2018 (Paic-up registered capital) U
B EERERARAR ) PERY ARE100000 00072
18%E7A25H (BRFMER)
Yinchuan Suyin Industrial Park Mainland China RMB5,000,000 30 30 Consulting service
Development Co,, Ltd. 29 March 2019 (Paid-up registered capital) AR
B EREXRERERAR PEIRI ARE5,000,0007C
201943A29H (BRiER)
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19. Interests in Associates (continued)

19. REEE DB ER @)

Place and date of Issued and fully paid/ Equity interest
Name of company (note i) establishment/acquisition  registered capital attributable to the Group ~ Principal activities
ARIZB () R/ REER A BRTRMR/RMER FREEER TEER
At 31 December
M2A318
2020 2019
% %
CAS Vast (Beijing) Health Technology Mainland China = 49 49 Consulting service
Development Co., Ltd. 7 March 2018 SRR
ERER( R BRREERERAA RER,
018%3A7H
Shijiazhuang Airshow Co., Ltd. (note i) Mainland China = 10 10 Inactive
AFEMEERA (HE) 8 August 2018 figis 34
B
201858A8H
Hebei Aifeiou Vast Aviation Consulting Mainland China = 33 33 Inactive
Service Co,, Ltd. 29 March 2018 EREH
LERB LM EFAREER LA B
2018F3A29A
Langfang Apex Vast Sports Service Mainland China - 33 33 Inactive
Co,, Lid. ("Apex Vast’) 29 March 2019 e
B R AR EE REARAA eI
([ZERER]) 019534298
Notes: Bt eE

English name for identification only.

ii. The Group has significant influence on managerial decision-making of these
entities by appointing directors on its board of directors. As a result, these

entities are accounted for as investments in associates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z 202041231 H 1F F/Z

19. Interests in Associates (continued) 19. REEE AR ER @)
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material BRANEEF BEHA N RA 5 E Rt
associates is set out below. The summarised financial information below I o LA B E R 5 5 2 R RIR IR
represents amounts shown in the associates’ financial statements BRI e ER S R g AR m R
prepared in accordance with IFRSs for equity accounting purposes. M FERER P REEE ©
Huayuan ZiR

At 31 December

M12831H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Current assets TMENE B 63,272 54,192
Non-current assets IERBEE 494,379 490,168
Current liabilities mEBAE (157,210) (140,722)
Non-current liabilities FEREEE (211,134) (214,823)
Net assets AEFE 189,307 188,815

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT
Total revenue FEULON 77,095 103,099

Profit and total comprehensive income AN A R 2 E s

for the year 4% 492 6,624
Group's share of profit of the associate 7 5= [ FE (G B 2 A R A 172 2,318
Dividends received from the associate B UE N AR R - %
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19. REE R RIRIRER @)
R ()
BB ARG B SR A M BRER
RN RS EEELENT

19. Interests in Associates (continueq)
Huayuan (Continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of the interest in Huayuan recognised in these
consolidated financial statements:

At 31 December

M12831H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETFT
Net assets of Huayuan ERHEEFE 189,307 188,815
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest REBNRIEBENES
in Huayuan TERERR LI 35% 35%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest AREBNE R ERERE
in Huayuan 66,257 66,085
Kaihong &
At 31 December
M12831H
2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Current assets TENEE 46,207 33,047
Non-current assets EREBEE 581,761 624,916
Current liabilities mENARE (41,939) (24,464)
Non-current liabilities ErRBaGE (172,908) (209,608)
Net assets BEFE 413,121 423,891
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19. Interests in Associates (continued) 19. REE&E A RIS ()
Kaihong (continued) CIPNE)
Year ended 31 December
BE12A31MALEE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Total revenue FEAL N 47,907 53,982
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive AE(ER)EAERE2E (L)

(expenses) income for the year W25 4858 (10,770) 84,338
Group's share of (loss) profit of the associate NEE BTN T (EE) ks (3,231) 25,301
Dividends received from the associate BB LN TR B - -
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to ta‘;ﬁﬁ%éﬂﬁiL/\Eiﬁﬁ?éﬁﬂ%iﬁiﬁﬂ
the carrying amount of the interest in Kaihong recognised in these RV R REEHRAT
consolidated financial statements:

At 31 December
M12831H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T ARBTFT
Net assets of Kaihong YA BERE 413,121 423,891
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBRYERHES

interest in Kaihong REREZS H 5 30% 30%
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEBRIEHERREE

interest in Kaihong 123,936 127,167
As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s equity interest in Kaihong with M20206F12 A31 8 - AL BERG2/ IR
a carrying amount of approximately RMB123,936,000 (31 December R B %9 A R 123,936,000 7T (2019 4 12
2019: RMB127,167,000) was pledged to a non-financial institution in the A318 : AR#127,167,00070) EE# T
mainland China to secure certain mortgage loan of the Group, details of A —F S RS - (FARERER
which are set out in note 31(p). ETRBEROER - BAF BN T

31(b) °
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19. Interests in Associates (continued) 19. REEE DB (a)
Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material: ERIFFEREERARNELES

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLLEE
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT
Group’s share of profit (loss) of associates R EE B R (LR A T
(B18) 103 (29,625)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's AREBFRZEHLE N TH
interests in these associates SR Aa(E 78,987 78,884
There is no unrecognised share of losses of any associate. A MR R (G (R T B i R RS 18 -
There is no significant restriction on the ability of the associates to BERNRINBEREERES FTAEE K
transfer funds to the Group in form of cash dividends, or to repay BEAREERRNENEESTEARS

advances made by the Group.

20. Interests in Joint Ventures 20. AEE A RIRER
Details of the Group's investments in joint ventures are as follows: REFRESLARNIREFIBOT ¢

At 31 December

M12H31H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT
Cost of unlisted investments FE TR E KA 13,010 61,500
Share of post-establishment (losses) profits FEAG RS 1% (B 1) A (1,010) 202
12,000 61,702
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20. Interests in Joint Ventures continued) 20. REE N RIMRER @)
The Group had interests in the following joint ventures: REEE A& AT P EAREZ

Proportion of ownership

interest held by
Place of the Group as
Date of establishment  Fully paid-up/ at 31 December Principal
Name of entities establishment and operation  registered capital FEEM2A318 activities
BRa% R AH RYMEEfFE BHE FHER FRNEEEERLA TEER
2020 2019
% %

Hubei International Aviation 8 December 2016 Mainland China ~ RMB100,000,000 100 60 Inactive
Development Co., Ltd. 201612 A8H B (Paid-up registered ERER
(“Hubei International”) capital)

M EBERMEEETRER AR #100,000,0007T
ARAR(HILER]) (R ER)

Hubei Vast Development Equity 12 November 2018 Mainland China ~ RMB100,000,000 = 50 Investment,
Investment Management 20185114128 B (Paid-up registered consulting
Co., Ltd. ("Hubei Vast") capital) KE %A

M ARERRERE AR #100,000,0007T
ERARAR(HILER]) (BREMER)

Suhong (Changshu) Technology 15 June 2020 Mainland China ~ RMB1,000,000 51 - Inactive
Industrial Development 202064158 HEI R (Paid-up registered ERER
Co., Ltd. (“Su